AGENDA
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
Monday, June 16, 2025

The Greene County Commission will hold a Public Hearing beginning on Monday, June
16, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. concerning the proposed FY 2025-2026 Greene County Budget
prior to the scheduled Greene County Commission Meeting

The Greene County Commission will meet in regular session at the Greene County
Courthouse on Monday, June 16, 2025, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the
Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor)

Call to Order

*Invocation — Commissioner Nick Gunter
*Pledge to Flag — Commissioner Lisa Anderson

Proclamations

A Proclamation for C.A.R.E. Organization Day- Previously Presented on May 27, 2025

A Proclamation Honoring Faye Colyer's 104" Birthday- Previously Presented June 6, 2025
A Proclamation for Korean War Veterans Day- July 27, 2025

A Proclamation for Tennessee Beef Month- July 2025

A Joint Proclamation for Gifts for Kids Christmas in July Month- July 2025

For the Greater Good

Public Hearing

Approval of Prior Minutes

Reports
e Greene County Audit Committee Report
o Greene County Veterans Report
¢ Greene County Board of Education Financial Report
e Greene County Solid Waste Department Report
¢ Greene County Committee Minutes

Election of Notaries
Old Business

Resolutions

A. Consideration of A Resolution To Amend The Greene County Schools Budget For Changes In
Revenues & Expenditures For The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 (The General Purpose School Fund)

B. Consideration of A Resolution Consideration of A Resolution To Amend The Greene County Schools
Budget For Changes In Revenues & Expenditures For The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 (The General
Purpose School Fund)

C. Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body Appropriating A Total Of
$13,676 To The Sheriff's Department For The Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025

D. Consideration of A Resolution To Amend The 2024-2025 Budget To Increase Appropriations In
Multiple Funds For Temporary Personnel Costs Associated with The Youth Employment Program
Administered By The First Tennessee Development District For The FYE June 30, 2025

E. Consideration Of A Resolution Appropriating Funds From The Opioid Abatement Council To The
Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition, Recovery Court, And Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion
(LEAD) Program For Amounts Received During The FYE June 30, 2025



Greene County Legislative Body Meeting Agenda June 16, 2025

F. Consideration Of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body Appropriating Funds And
Amending The FYE June 30, 2025, Budget For Fund #116- Solid Waste (Exhibit A)

G. Consideration Of A Resolution To Transfer Ownership Interests In Facilities And Properties On Hal
Henard Road (Attachment A) (Attachment B)

H. Consideration Of A Resolution To Authorize The County Mayor To Enter Into A Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement For The Use And Benefit of Greene County And All Of Its Individual County
Departments

I.  Consideration Of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body To Accept A Donation Of
Real Property From The Greene County Board of Education

J. Consideration Of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body Fixing The Tax Levy In
Greene County, Tennessee For The Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025

K. Consideration Of A Resolution Making Appropriations For The Various Funds, Departments,
Institutions, Offices And Agencies Of Greene County, Tennessee, For The Fiscal Year Beginning
July 1, 2025, and Ending June 30, 2026

L. Consideration Of A Resolution Making Appropriations To Nonprofit Organizations Of Greene
County, Tennessee For The Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025, And Ending June 30, 2026

Other Business
Adjournment

Closing Prayer- Commissioner Chase Murray

NEXT GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING INFORMATION
“THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE MONDAY, JULY 21, 2025*

“THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING
WILL BE THURSDAY, JULY 10, 2025, AT 12:00 P.M. **

GREENE COUNTY GOVERNMENT HOLIDAY CLOSURES

"*THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED ON
THURSDAY, JUNE 19, 2025, FOR THE JUNETEENTH HOLIDAY**

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED ON
FRIDAY, JULY 4, 2025, FOR THE JULY 4™ HOLIDAY**

“THE GREENE COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE WILL ALSO BE CLOSED ON
SATURDAY, JULY 5, 2025, FOR THE JULY 4™ HOLIDAY**



GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

JUNE 2025

MONDAY, JUNE 16
TUESDAY, JUNE 17
THURSDAY, JUNE 19
TUESDAY, JUNE 24
THURSDAY, JUNE 26
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 25

JULY

2025

WEDNESDAY, JULY 2
FRIDAY, JULY 4
TUESDAY, JULY 8
TUESDAY, JULY 8
THURDAY, JULY 10
THURSDAY, JULY 17
MONDAY, JULY 21
WEDNESDAY, JULY 23
THURSDAY, JULY 24
TUESDAY, JULY 29

AUGUST 2025

MONDAY, AUGUST 4
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 6
THURSDAY, AUGUST 7
TUESDAY, AUGUST 12
TUESDAY, AUGUST 12
THURSDAY, AUGUST 14
MONDAY, AUGUST 18
TUESDAY, AUGUST 19
THURSDAY, AUGUST 21
TURSDAY, AUGUST 26

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 27

6:00 PM
1:00 PM

8:30 AM
3:00 PM
8:30 AM

8:30 AM

1:00 PM
3:30 PM
3:00 PM
3:30 PM
6:00 PM
8:30 AM
3:00 PM
8:30 AM

3:30 PM
8:30 AM
3:00 PM
1:00 PM
3:30 PM
3:30 PM
6:00 PM
6:00 PM
3:00 PM
8:30 AM
8:30 AM

COUNTY COMMISISON

911 BOARD

JUNETEENTH HOLIDAY
ZONING APPEALS- If Needed
COURTHOUSE RENOVATION
INSURANCE MEETING

BUDGET & FINANCE
HOLIDAY- JULY 4t
PLANNING COMMITTEE

911 BOARD

COURTHOUSE RENOVATION
ANIMAL CONTROL

COUNTY COMMISISON
INSURANCE MEETING
COURTHOUSE RENOVATION
ZONING APPEALS- If Needed

EDUCATION COMMITTEE
BUDGET & FINANCE
COURTHOUSE RENOVATION
PLANNING COMMITTEE

911 BOARD

EMS BOARD

COUNTY COMMISISON
AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE
COURTHOUSE RENOVATION
ZONING APPEALS-If Needed
INSURANCE MEETING

“*THIS CALENDAR IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE**

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
ANNEX

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX
COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
ANNEX

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
ANNEX

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE

UT EXTENSION OFFICE
COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX



County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, the volunteer organization Community Aid Relief Effort (C.A.R.E.) comprised of
members of the Amish and Mennonite communities, selflessly dedicated their time, labor,
and resources to aid in the recovery and rebuilding efforts of Greene County, Tennessee,
following the catastrophic devastation of Hurricane Helene on September 27, 2024; and

WHEREAS, C.A R.E. organizes volunteers from across Pennsylvania, providing construction
assistance to disaster victims across the United States. Operating with complete self-
sufficiency, they leave an enduring impact on the communities they serve, embodying a true
missionary calling, as they become the hands and feet of Christ; and

WHEREAS, these highly skilled and extraordinarily compassionate volunteers traveled to our
community out of a spirit of service, offering their expertise in reconstruction, repair, and
support to those in need, exemplifying the highest ideals of generosity and kindness; and

WHEREAS, each of the individuals that comprise the C.A.R.E. Organization have made
many personal sacrifices, week after week, while asking nothing in return, to simply be here

in Greene County, helping us rebuild after one of the most devastating moments in our
history; and

WHEREAS, well over 100 Greene County families have directly benefited from their selfless
generosity. The commitment of C.A.R.E. shall stand as a shining example, inspiring future
acts of compassion and service during times of need. They have left an indelible mark on the

fabric of our community, proving that acts of selflessness and goodwill transcend all
boundaries; and

WHEREAS, their unwavering commitment to restoring homes, churches, and places of
gathering has brought renewed hope and stability to the people of Greene County,
demonstrating that strength is found in unity and resilience is fortified by compassion; and

NOW THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, on behalf of all citizens
of Greene County, Tennessee, do hereby recognize and extend our deepest gratitude to
C.A.R.E. for their extraordinary service, unwavering dedication, and profound impact on the
lives of those affected by Hurricane Helene. In honor of their commitment to uplifting and
restoring our community, | do herby declare May 27, 2025, as

C.UAR.E. Onganization Day

in Greene County, Tennessee. | encourage all citizens to support and show appreciation to
these extraordinary faithful missionaries whose kindness and service continue to make a
lasting difference. These hard-working, neighbors made a conscientious effort to show the
love of Christ through their helping hands and spirit of service, and we are forever grateful.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee, to be affixed
this twepty-seventh day of May 2025.

C Momian—

Greene County Mayor

A7) Moy 2025
Date _J




County of Greene
PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, longevity of life is a blessing for an individual and for a community which
benefits from the knowledge, creativity, and experiences this individual brings to all; and

WHEREAS, Faye Marie Colyer was born on May 15, 1921, in Cocke County, Tennessee,
to the late Rev. C.D. and Betty Smith Clowers, and is the only surviving sibling of the eight
children born to this devoted couple; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Colyer, alongside her brothers and sisters, spent her childhood working
diligently on her family’s farm, embodying the values of hard work, perseverance, and
commitment to her community. Her father, a Methodist minister, ensured that his children
were firmly rooted in the word of God, instilling in each of them a lifelong devotion to faith,
service, and love; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Colyer accepted Christ at an early age, becoming a member of Love’s
Memorial Methodist Church in the Caney Branch community, where she has remained
steadfast in her faith, now as the oldest member of Love’s Memorial Church and a
devoted attendee of Pine Grove Church; and

WHEREAS, Together with her late husband, Roy Colyer, she faithfully served her
community as the co-owner of Colyer and Inscore Store for 32 years, providing for the
needs of local families and fostering strong bonds within Warrensburg and beyond; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Colyer and her beloved husband shared 42 years of marriage, raising
their son, the late Ronnie Colyer, and leaving behind a legacy of love, resilience, and
dedication to family and faith; and

WHEREAS, Her unwavering faith, exceptional strength, and profound love for her
community have made her an inspiration to generations, as she now stands as quite
possibly the oldest resident of Greene County; and

NOW THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, on behalf of all citizens
of Greene County, Tennessee, do hereby proclaim that in honor of her extraordinary life,
immeasurable contributions, and a remarkable 104 years, today we celebrate

Faye Manie Colyer
recognizing her as a pillar of faith, family, and community. We wish her all the best, and
continued health and happiness in the years to come.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee, to be affixed

this fifteenth day of May 2025.
U o —
7

Greene County Mayor

/S /Moy 2025

Date//




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, the Korean War, which took place from 1950 to 1953, was a significant
chapter in our nation’s history, often referred to as the “Forgotten War”; and

WHEREAS, Tennessee has a rich heritage of patriotic service and has been home to
countless brave men and women who selflessly served their county during the Korean
War, with their bravery and resilience leaving an indelible mark on history; and

WHEREAS, on behalf of a grateful nation, we express our deepest gratitude to our
Veterans, and it is our duty and responsibility to remember and honor the sacrifices made
by more than 35,000 brave men and women, to ensure their stories are preserved and
shared with future generations; and

WHEREAS, recognizing the importance of understanding our past, we acknowledge the
profound impact of the Korean War on global history and its role in shaping the world as
we know it today; and

WHEREAS, through learning about the legacy of those who served in the Korean War,
we gain a deeper appreciation for their courage, resilience, and dedication to preserving
freedom and democracy. We stand in awe of the unwavering commitment and express
our deepest gratitude to those that served; and

WHEREAS, by increasing awareness and knowledge about the Korean War, we can
foster a greater sense of gratitude and respect for the sacrifices made by our veterans
and their families. Their contributions to our nation’s defense will aways be honored and
cherished; and

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do
hereby proclaim July 27, 2025, as

Hevearn Wear Velevarns Day

in Greene County, Tennessee, and encourage all citizens to join me in this worthy
observance. The bravery and heroism shown during the Korean War have left an
enduring legacy and we stand in awe of the unwavering commitment and express our
deepest respect and gratitude for all that served.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee, to be affixed
this sixteenth day of June 2025.

Greene County Mayor N

/6 Qumey 2025

““Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

B-y The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, the beef industry is deeply rooted in our state’s heritage and cattle farming
has been a long-standing tradition, making beef Tennessee’s third highest grossing farm
commodity, generating over 13 percent of the state’s 4.4 billion agricultural cash receipts;
and

WHEREAS, Tennessee ranks 8 in the nation for number of farms and 17t in the nation
for cattle production with approximately 1.7 million head cattle and calves, while Greene
County proudly ranks 1%t in Tennessee for beef production; and

WHEREAS, the state of Tennessee recognizes the important contributions of our state’s
37,000 cattle producers; and

WHEREAS, cattle are among the most efficient means of converting forage to human
food on Tennessee's over 5 million acres of pasture and hay and thereby contribute to
the conservation of soil by allowing those acres to remain in grass and legumes; and

WHEREAS, beef provides a valuable source of high-quality protein, as well as numerous
vitamins and minerals important to a healthful diet; and

WHEREAS, Tennessee’s beef producers work tirelessly to raise high-quality cattle,
utilizing sustainable and responsible farming practices; and

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do
hereby proclaim July 2025 as

Tennessee Deef Mardth

in Greene County, Tennessee, and | encourage all citizens to support and appreciate the
contributions of our hard-working farmers and their families that supply the beef industry
with the highest quality products available. We should also pay tribute to their
conscientious care for their cattle, and for the environment, all while sustaining and
maintaining our very vital food supply.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee, to be affixed
this sixteenth day of June 2025.

521@0 HNomdor

Greene County Mayor

/b ,Qu% 202

“Date




a}II:R )
g
QIAL>>

i
GREENEVILLE

N N E § 5 E E

2

County of Greene and Town of Greeneville

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayors

WHEREAS, Gifts For Kids Christmas in July is a cherished event that brings joy and happiness
to children in our community. Each year the citizens of Greeneville and Greene County participate
in the support of Gifts for Kids, a non-profit organization, located exclusively in Greene County;
and

WHEREAS, this event aims to provide for children of qualifying at-risk families in our communities
through their collection and distribution of new and gently used toys, school-appropriate jeans,
and warm apparel, and

WHEREAS, all benefits, monies, and donations from this Christmas in July fundraising activities
will support Gifts For Kids so that hopefully even more children can be helped this year, ensuring
that every child can experience the joy of receiving a gift; and

WHEREAS, we urge all citizens of Greene County to MAKE A DIFFERENCE and PASS IT
FORWARD by sharing your financial blessings and volunteering your time and talents during the
2025 year with Gifts For Kids, spreading love and kindness to those who need it most; and

WHEREAS, you are encouraged to drop off your new and gently used toys, school-appropriate
jeans, and warm appare! at the Gifts For Kids drop-off site located on West Irish Street adjoining
the Forward Air Corporate facility; and

NOW, THEREFORE, We, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, and C. Cal
Doty, Mayor of the Town of Greeneville, Tennessee, do hereby proclaim the month of July 2025
as

Gitts far Fids Christmas in Juby Manth

Furthermore, we hereby encourage our fellow citizens, businesses, churches, and community
organizations to participate in the various activities that are planned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have
hereunto set our hands and caused
the official seal of Greene County,
Tennessee, and the Town of
Greeneville, Tennessee, to be affixed
this sixteenth day of June 2025.

Kevin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor

LA, I

C. Cal Doty, Town ‘P(Greeneville Mayor

/b gumz, 2025
7

Date




STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF GREENE

GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
MAY 19, 2025
6:00 P.M.

The Greene County Legislative Body was in regular session on May 19, 2025 at
6:00 p.m. at the Greene County Courthouse in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor).

Mayor Morrison called the meeting to order to transact business that has lawfully come
before the Honorable Body. Commissioners Jason Cobblegave the Invocation. Commissioner
Tim White led the Pledge to the Flag.

Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson,
Waddle, and White were presented. Commissioner Quillen was absent. There were 20 — present

and 1 — absent.



PROCLAMATIONS

A PROCLAMATION FOR MENTAL HEALTH AWARENESS MONTH
MAY 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read Proclamation stating I do hereby proclaim
May 2025, as Mental Health Awareness Month in Greene County and I urge all residents to learn
more about mental health, support those affected by mental illnesses, and promote mental
wellness in our community.

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation to Megan Malone, Cindy Harvarti, and

George Harvarti with Frontier Health.

A PROCLAMATION FOR JUNE DAIRY MONTH - JUNE 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read Proclamation stating “I do hereby proclaim
June 2025, a June Dairy Month in Greene County, Tennessee, and commend its observance to
all citizens and encourage everyone to support and celebrate our dairy farmers by visiting our
local dairy farms to learn more about agriculture and the vital role dairy producers play in our
global food system.”

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation to Anthony Shelton, Interim Agriculture
Extension Agent. Anthony Shelton announced that he had taken a position as University of
Tennessee Livestock Marketing for Northeast Tennessee. He stated that Christian Dalton would
be the new 4-H Agent Director and will be serving as the Greene County UT Agriculture

Director starting June 1, 2025.



A PROCLAMATION FOR GREAT OUTDOORS MONTH - JUNE 2025
Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read the Proclamation stating, “I do hereby
proclaim June 2025, as Great Outdoors Month in Greene County, Tennessee, and encourage
all citizens to go out and enjoy some of the many activities that our great state and our
county has to offer.”
Great Outdoors helps build strong communities, protecting natural, cultural, and scenic

resources and providing opportunities for exploration, recreation, and restoration.

A PROCLAMATION FOR SUMMER MEALS MONTH - JUNE 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read the Proclamation stating, “I do hereby
proclaim June 2025, as Summer Meals Month and I urge all residents, community organizations,
businesses, and educational institutions to support and promote the Summer Meals progam,
ensuring that no child or family in Greene County goes hungry during the summer months.”

Summer Meal programs can help children stay healthy and prepare them to return
to school ready to learn and thrive, and provides children with a fun, safe place to be with
friends and stay active. By increasing awareness about the Summer Meal programs through
outreach in the community and investing in summer programming to attract more kids to meal
sites, Greene County can increase access to Summer Meals programs. Greene County,
Tennessee, is committed to ensuring that no child goes hungry this summer.

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation to Rhonda Chaffin, Director of Second

Harvest Food Bank for Northeast Tennessee.



A PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL MEN’S HEALTH WEEK
JUNE 9 -15, 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read the Proclamation stating, “I do hereby
Proclaim June 9 — 15, 2025, as National Men’s Health Week in Greene County and encourage
all wellness, and to support initiatives that aim to improve the health outcomes of men and
encourage all of our citizens to pursue preventative health practices and efforts throughout the
year.”

During Men’s Health Month, we celebrate the achievements and contributions
of men and recognize the importance of their health, and how crucial their well-being is to the
success of families, communities, and society as a whole and the centerpiece of Men’s Health
Month is National Men’s Health Week, a special awareness period passed by Congress and
signed into by President Bill Clinton on May 31, 1994.

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation for National Men’s Health Week to T. J.

Manis, EMS Director.



FOR THE GREATER GOOD

Mayor Morrison announced that Greeneville, Greene County has received a Proclamation
for being named a top micropolitan area.

Greeneville and Greene County duly earned the top three micropolitan designation
in the State of Tennessee and the top seventy designation for the nation, most befitting honors
that recognize the community’s commitment to continuing economic development and success.

Greeneville and Greene County’s placement on the list has been driven by local business
expansions and progress at the former Greene Valley Development Center, which has brought
significant capital investment and increased employment opportunites to the area.

The citizens and leaders of Greene County are extremely proud of their historic
Community and have been ever-vigilant in keeping Greeneville’s legacy visible to the State
and the nation as a whole. It is most appropriate that we honor this fine community and its
citizenry as they commemorate this significant milestone.

Be it resolved by the Senate of The One Hundred Fourteenth General Assembly of the
State of Tennessee, The House of Representatives concurring, that we honor Greeneville, Greene
County upon being recognized as a top ten micropolitan area by Site Selection Magazine,
extending our best wishes for continued success, growth, and prosperity.

Mayor Morrison announced the Proclamation would be to presented to Jeff Taylor,
CEO of the Greene County Partnership at a later date. Mr. Taylor spoke to the commission in
regards to the various events going on in Greeneville and Greene County.

Mayor Morrison announced to the Commission that Greene County had received a Home
Disaster Recovery Grant for $1,000,000 and that if anyone still needs assistance for home

damage from the Hurricane can call Bill Forrester at 423-722-5099 with the First Tennessee Develop

District.



APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioners Murray and seconded by Commissioner
Burkey to approve the prior minutes.

Mayor Morrison called for the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton,
Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was

20 —aye; 0 - nay; and 1 — absent. Mayor Morrison announced the prior minutes were approved.



REPORTS
GREENE COUNTY VETERAN’S REPORT
GREENE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCIAL REPORT
GREENE COUNTY SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT REPORT
COMMITTEE REPORT

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the Greene County Veteran’s Report, Greene County Board of Education
Financial Report, Greene County Solid Waste Department Report, and Committee Minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton,
Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was

20 —aye; 0 —nay; and 1 — absent. The motion to approve the Reports and Committee Minutes

passed.



ELECTION OF NOTARIES

Mayor Morrison read the names requesting to be notaries to be approved by the
Commission. A motion was made by Commissioner Clemmer and seconded by Commissioner
Arrowood to approve the notary list.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton,
Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was
20 — aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent. Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve the

notaries passed.



OLD BUSINESS

Mayor Morrison announced there was no Old Business to discuss.

Commissioner Bowers announced that Faye Colyer, who resides at Brookdale Assisted
Living, formerly of the Orebank Community, celebrated her 104" Birthday last week.

He asked that she be recognized.



RESOLUTION A: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO AMEND
THE 2024-2025 FISCAL YEAR GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS CAPITAL PROJECTS
BUDGET FOR BOND PROCEEDS

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commission Murray
to approve the Consideration of A Resolution To Amend The 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Greene
County Schools Capital Projects Budget For Bond Proceeds.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White

voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION B: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE ENHANCED
AMBULANCE MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENT PROJECT FOR THE EMERGENCY

MEDICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the Consideration of a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body
Appropriating Funds For the Enhanced Ambulance Medicaid Reimbursement Project For the
Emergency Medical Service Department for the FYE June 30, 2025.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and

White voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and

1 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION C: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE EMERGENCY
MEDICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,310 FOR AN
ALLOCATION OF IN-SERVICE TRAINING SUPPLEMENT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Anderson and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the Consideration of a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body

To Appropriate Funds To The Emergency Medical Services Department In The Amount of
$35,310 For An Allocation Of In-Service Training Supplement For The FYE June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioner
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White vote yes.

Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent. The motion

to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION D: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO AMEND THE 2024-2025 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET
TO INCREASE APPROPRIATIONS TO THE INSPECTION AND REGULATION
DEPARTMENT TO ADJUST PART-TIME WAGES DUE TO A FORMULA ERROR
IN THE ORIGINAL BUDGET WORKSHEET FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioners Burkey and seconded by Commissioner Kiker
to approve the Consideration a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to amend the
2024-2025 Fiscal Year Budget To Increase Appropriations To the Inspection and Regulation
Department To Adjust Part-Time Wages Due To A Formula Error In The Original Budget
Worksheet For The FYE June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,

Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted

yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION E: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING UP TO
$450,000 FOR THE PURPOSE AND IMPLEMENATION OF BODY-WORN
AND VEHICLE CAMERAS FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT AND ANIMAL CONTROL.
OFFICERS FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

A motion was made by Commissioner Bible and seconded by Commissioner Anderson
to approve the Consideration of a Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body
Appropriating Up To $450,000 For The Purchase and Implementation Of Body-Worn And
Vehicle Cameras For Law Enforcement and Animal Contro] Officers For The FYE June 30,
2025,

Greene County Sheriff Wesley Holt stated that department’s current cameras are no
longer supported by the company from which they were purchased. As a result, cameras
cannot be replaced or repaired, and some officers currently do not have cameras. New cameras
are being purchased from a different company. The previous cameras were purchased in 2018.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted

yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was 20 - aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION F: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY AUTHORIZING SHORT-TERM LOANS
TO COUNTY WATER UTILITY DISTRICTS PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE
ANNOTATED 9-21-107 AND ESTABLISHING A GREENE COUNTY COMMITTEE
FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative
Body Authorizing Short-Term Loans To County Water Utility Districts Pursuant To Tennessee
Code Annotated 9-21-107 And Establishing A Greene County County Committee For the FYE
June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and Waddle

voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 —nay; and 1 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION G: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF
A THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING FUNDS
FOR ONGOING RECOVERY EFFORTS FROM HURRICAN HELENE FOR THE
FYE JUNE 30, 2025

A motion was made by Commissioner Burkey and seconded by Commissioner
Kiker to approve the Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body
Appropriating Funds For Ongoing Recovery Efforts From Hurricane Helene For The FYE
June 30, 2025.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and

White voted yes. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent. The motion to approve the

Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION H: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO NAME
A BRIDGE IN HONOR OF LCPL JAMES OAKLEY JAYNES, WHO GAVE HIS
LIFE IN SERVICE TO HIS COUNTRY DURING THE VIETNAM WAR

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Arrowood to approve the Consideration Of A Resolution To Name A Bridge In Honor Of
LCPL James Oakley Jaynes, Who Gave His Life In Service To His Country During The
Vietnam War.

Commissioner Bowers said he wanted to honor all of the 22 Greene County men
who died in Vietnam serving their country. He said, “I have no problem honoring our
Vietnam War dead, ¢ “However, 22 of our servicemen died in Vietnam, and I think
that we should honor all of them at one time instead of one at a time.”

Commissioner Bowers said he felt the 21 other families who lost a family member

in Vietnam would be very upset they were left out, and asked to amend the resolution War dead
on a plaque at the bridge.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bowers and seconded by Commissioner
Babbs to amend the Resolution to request to name all local Vietnam War dead on a plaque
at the bridge.

Commissioner Chase Murray said it would be difficult to amend the resolution as it
was written.

Commissioner Peters brought the resolution to the commission at the request of someone
living near Chuckey Crossroads who told him Lance Cpl. James Oakley Jaynes, a Chuckey
native who died in the Vietnam War had no family or descendants, and that the Jaynes family
use to live in the community. The resident asked for the bridge to be named after Jaynes

to honor his sacrifice and carry on his legacy.



Commissioner Peters requested to pull the resolution as its sponsor so that Comissioner
Bowers could bring a different resolution for the naming of the bridge at a future meeting.
Mayor Morrison announced that Resolution H was pulled by the sponsor, Commissioner

Peters, to be considered at a later name.



OTHER BUSINESS
APPOINT LARRY JUSTIS TO FILL A VACANCY ON THE
GREENE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

A motion was made Commissioner Kiker and seconded Commissioner Burkey
to appoint Larry Justis to fill a vacancy on Greene County Planning Commission.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypad. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and
White voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The motion to approve the appointment

of Larry Justis to fill a vacancy on the Greene County Planning Commission passed.



ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Murray and seconded by Commissioner
Lawing to adjourn the meeting.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Parton, Peters, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and
White voted yes. Commissioner Quillen was absent. The motion to adjourn the Commission

Meeting passed.

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Chase Murray

NEXT GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING INFORMATION
**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE MONDAY, JUNE 16, 2025**
**THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT
COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE
THURSDAY, JUNE 5, 2025, AT 12:00 P.M.**
GREENE COUNTY GOVERNMENT HOLIDAY CLOSURES

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED ON
MONDAY, MAY 26, 2025, FOR THE MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY **

“’THE GREENE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE WILL ALSO BE CLOSE ON
SATURDAY, MAY 24, 2025, FOR THE MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY**



GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE GOVERNMENT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman: J. Thomas Love
Vice-Chairman: Tonya Easley
Secretary: David M. Ellis
Member: Michelle S. Freeman
Member: Benjamin I. Gall

In accordance with the resolution adopted by the Greene County Commission on November 18,
2013, which established and created the duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee, the
following report provides an explanation of how the Audit Committee discharged its calendar year
2025 duties:

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Greene County Government Audit Committee is responsible for reporting annually to the
Greene County Commission on how the committee discharged its duties with respect to the
following matters:

1.

The audit committee should carefully review all audit findings included in the Annual
Financial Report of Greene County, Tennessee and have consultation with the external
auditors regarding any irregularities and deficiencies disclosed in the annual audit. The
committee should satisfy itself'that appropriate and timely corrective action has been taken by
County management to remedy any identified weaknesses. The committee should determine
what corrective action, if necessary, should be recommended to the County Commission. On
March 6, 2025, the Division of Local Government Audit of the Tennessee Comptroller of the
Treasury provided notification to Greene County officials of the March 10, 2025, release date
of the Annual Financial Report of Greene County, Tennessee, for the year ended June 30, 2024.
The Independent Auditor’s Report, dated February 12, 2025, covering the basic financial
statements of Greene County is unmodified, indicating a fair presentation in all material
respects in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

On May 15, 2025, the Audit Committee, Greene County government management and school
department officials, and the external auditors from the Division of Local Government Audit
met to review one audit finding related to the June 30, 2024 Annual Financial Report of Greene
County. Detailed information regarding the audit finding, auditor recommendations,
management’s response, and management’s corrective action plan is shown on pages 228-231
of the Annual Financial Report of June 30, 2024.

Finding 2024-001 — Office of Director of Schools. This three-part audit finding, regarded as a
significant deficiency in internal control under Government Auditing Standards, is a repeat
finding as described in the prior-year audit report in which the following inadequate
recordkeeping practices continue to occur: (1) the accounts payable subsidiary records of the
various school system funds were not reconciled and maintained in agreement with the

Page 1 of 4



accounts payable control account in the general ledger; (2) general ledger balances of several
cash in bank clearing accounts were not updated for reconciling items identified from monthly
bank account reconciliations; and (3) the School Federal Projects Fund had a negative
(improper) cash in bank balance at June 30, 2024, due to uncorrected prior period clerical and
payroll-related processing errors. As noted in its current and prior year corrective action plan,
school management continues to attribute many of the accounts payable reconciliation issues
to complications encountered with the vendor invoice entry and payment processing software
now in use. Uncertainty exists as to whether non-relevant data can be safely purged from the
system. Despite these difficulties, proposed audit adjustments were determined and submitted
to management to properly reconcile existing accounts payable discrepancies through the end
of the current audit report period.

Corrective Actions Recommended to the Greene County Commission

After review and discussion of school system management responses and corrective action
plans regarding the audit finding referred to above, the audit committee has concluded the
reconciliation issues associated with accounts payable will not be fully resolved until school
management retains professional assistance to determine if a work-around solution is available
for the software now in use or if the current system should be replaced. Likewise, the audit
committee recommends school management seek additional professional assistance for
guidance regarding: (1) proper bank reconciliation preparation and presentation along with
necessary follow-up adjusting entries to correct identified reconciling items; and (2) adjusting
entries needed to correct the above-mentioned prior period clerical and payroll-related
processing errors associated with the negative June 30, 2024, cash in bank balance of the
School Federal Projects Fund.

Greene County does not have a central system of accounting, budgeting, and purchasing which
has resulted in decentralization of financial management tasks among county departments and
some duplication of efforts. Although not regarded as an audit finding, the Division of Local
Government Audit recommends Greene County adopt as a best practice the County Financial
Management System of 1981 which would provide for a central system of accounting,
budgeting, and purchasing covering all county departments. Local Government Audit
considers the adoption of the 1981 financial management system to be a best practice that
would also substantially improve accountability and internal controls over the accounting,
budgeting, and purchasing processes of Greene County government.

Government Auditing Standards require the external auditors to report the current-year status
of prior-year uncorrected audit findings. The Summary Schedule of Prior-Year Findings on
page 226 of the current Annual Financial Report indicates the current status of Finding
Numbers 2023-001, 2023-002, 2023-003, 2023-004, and 2023-005 as corrected. Finding
Number 2023-006 is reported as not corrected.

The audit committee should consider the effectiveness of the internal control system (including
information technology security and control); the effectiveness of the system for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations; and review of the process for communicating the
County’s ethics policies to County personnel and monitoring compliance therewith. The
external auditors take into consideration the County’s existing internal control procedures over
financial reporting for purposes of planning and performing the audit in order to express an

Page 2 of 4



opinion on the County’s financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. This limited consideration of internal
control is not designed to identify all deficiencies that might be considered a material weakness
or a significant deficiency in internal control. As such, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control may exist which have not been identified. A deficiency in
internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
a material misstatement of the County’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. The audit report did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that were considered to be material weaknesses. However,
the audit report identified Finding Number 2024-001 as a deficiency in internal control over
financial reporting considered to be significant. The external auditors perform tests of Greene
County’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement. However, the external auditors do not express
an audit opinion regarding the County’s compliance with those provisions. Noncompliance
findings can have a direct and material effect on the County’s financial statements. The audit
report did not identify any occurrences of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Management of Greene County is responsible for ensuring compliance and for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with federal statutes and regulations
associated with participation in federal government aid programs. The external auditors
determine and perform auditing procedures designed to: (1) permit the expression of an audit
opinion on the County’s compliance with each major federal program’s compliance
requirements; and (2) test and report on internal control over compliance for each major federal
program, but not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control
over compliance. The audit opinion expressed regarding compliance requirements of the
County’s major federal government programs states Greene County, for the year ended June
30, 2024, complied in all material respects with the types of compliance requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs. Even though the
auditor’s consideration of internal control over compliance was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be considered material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies, the audit report did not identify any deficiencies that were
considered to be material weaknesses in internal control over compliance of any major federal
program.

The Greene County Government Ethics Committee formulated and prepared the Revised
Ethics Policy for Greene County which was adopted by resolution of the Greene County
Commission on January 19, 2016. The County Clerk was directed to mail a copy of the
resolution and the revised policy to each County office and to all boards, committees, and
authorities appointed or created by the County and to post a copy of the Revised Ethics Policy
on each public bulletin board in the County Courthouse and Courthouse Annex.

Page 3 of 4



3. The audit committee should establish a process for handling employees, taxpayers, or other
citizens confidential reporting of suspected illegal, improper, wasteful, or fraudulent activity
under provisions of Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-3-406. The audit committee emphasizes the
availability of the toll-free fraud hotline (800-232-5454) of the Tennessee Comptroller of the
Treasury where the public can report suspected fraud, waste, and abuse of Greene County
funds and property. There is also a quick link from the homepage of the Greene County official
website to an online fraud, waste, and abuse reporting form on the Comptroller’s website. In
addition, the audit committee advises county management of the need to publish a public notice
at least annually in a local newspaper of general circulation to make citizens aware of how to
report suspected waste, fraud, or abuse of Greene County funds and property.

The Report of the Audit Committee has been reviewed and adopted by the Audit Committee.

Respectively submitted,

%.%ﬂ.

J. Thomas Love, Committee Chairman

May 30, 2025

Page 4 of 4



STATE OF TENNESSEE
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
101 LONGVIEW DRIVE
GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
(423) 798-1707

June 5, 2025

Monthly report for May 2025

o & & o ¢ @& o

1

RN

Sincerely,

R CTI

Sonja Forbes
Director/VSO

Electronic claims submitted: 165
Mailed claims, documents, etc.: 149
Telephone calls: 285

Walk-ins: 83

Appointments: 72

Referrals to other agencies: 49
Veteran's Organization’s Meetings

Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990

American Legion Post 64

Disabled American Veterans Chapter 42

Elbert Kinser Detachment Marine Corp League
Veteran’s meeting held monthly at Farmer’s Daughter



G202 ‘Wog |1dy
Joday |eloueuld
s|jooyog AJuno) susaln)



(xz'cev'6LT00T) sepueen jyoa
(SZ'68Z°288) anuaAaY alqeieARuNPaUdJaq BYWO * - -0666Z-1HT
(00'6£0'121) saxe| Auedod wenbujeq pausjeq - - -SPESZ-THT
(00'€82'5£6'9) saxey Apadatd suND paLeq R A
(s5°7v2'28) {101u0D) Spund JIEYI0 WoIZ SI3)suUBI| - - -OISBT-TpT
(28122 195°85) {1oau09)) s9nUaAaY = - -00S8Z-TtT
(S2'996'956°CL) {lonuon) suoneudosddy = - -00TZ-TH1
SO'TZ6 VT 80SS6UUBL JO FIEIS DL anq - - OESTTIHT
(00°000°052) Spung 13yl o1 ang = = -008TZ-TvT
Q00 papuy = - -T6ETT-THT
oga ‘8dd = - -SBETZ-THT
0070 Aunuuy anjep = - WBETT TR
000 sepy - - CIBETE-THI
000 SUOONP3Q UCUN IIPSID = = -08ETZ-TH1
'7b Aungesiq elqesn = - OLETT-THT
000 pewnsny = - <99L1Z-THI
000 N0y sbulnes yjlesH =« -G8€TZ-THT
st £83UY|| |2OM41D 3jqesh} == BEETT-THT
00°0 WOLIN eigesn = A 14
00’0 ey fop v|gensi = = -I9LTIZ-1p1
00'0 SB3IA97] PUY SIUBIYSIWES) = - ~09ETZ-THT
000 UaWwpoop, wapow = = ={GETT-THT
000 YN JUdWre] 99SSIULDY = = -SSE1T-THT
000 Je3ued ejqesn = - -ESETT-THT
000 SUJ 9417 uuep 2080 = - -TSETT-TPT
o1'6¢ Qe sysuaqdwon = = ~ISLTIT-THI
158 swauag dwod - - -0S€TZ-Tp1
000 Aep perun = - -6PETT-THT
000 Sul YyeeH 003sL0) T - SHETEIPT
£0'EE U3pI0Y Aqesn =t BETT-THT
00’0 OSvL - Bulpuadg xal4 - @EQ P[RS = v SHETT-TPT
000 SiY s1eyEs [eudleN = - AEIZ-THT
000 su| Ayapi4 uesuswy = - -LHETZIT
0Tie o)1 3jqesn - - TETETTT
20LTE'T SU 13Yyaeg| 09 19 = = -TpEIZ-TH1
000 Q€IS PUGAH LOWRMRY = = -TEETC-TpI
000 1S3M jeeug yL0p = - -TgETR-pt
(88'b25) SUORNQUIUOD JUBWSINISY = - -0EEIT-THT
0070 uonsnpaq aleapey asAoidws = - -STETZ-THT
00D xe] Aunoeg [eros R 174 3 g ()
000 pledun puy playyitm Xel awosu) = - OTETT-TbT
(¢e2v9'0es) . alqeded sjuncooy = - 0TTZ-THT
SLTLS LET'VST SI0UNOSBY JO SMOJIND PALIAJSJ Pue SJISSY  [R0L
SLTLS'LET'YST WSSy |=0)
86'EEZ'986 U3 81, 10U 104 ISRy O] pbys dxg - = -009bI-TT
SbLT9'SH9'8y (lonucY) Jeap Juaung - seinjipuadxy = = ~00SPT-THT
S8'20£°S€6°T {I04u00) seoueIqUINAUY pajepInbiun - - -Q0THT-THL
§£'89£°089'69 s8NnueAY pejeLST - - -00THT-THT
(00'8L1'39T) xel Auadoud 1qe10a)jodur 104 aauemoly = = OISTI-THT
00'PBLLET'L slgenrsney saxel Ausdolg - = -DOSTT-THT
ST687'288 SIUBLILLIBADY SO0 Wwalg ang s~ VEPTT-THT
(0z'0) 2|qeAla0ay SJUNodIYy == OTPIT-THT
08'1TE'€20'ST BASRI] UM ysed = = OPTTI-THT
£8'T00°9 jueg u[ ysep * = OLTTT-T41
adue|eg Bujpuz uopdpuoseq Juncooy qUNNIUNCDY
1004os asodung [eseuag IPT ipuny
240 | abeg ST0T ludy
WY 2pi8 SZOT/ZT/S weleed 301 - 13YS Duejeg M ‘Aq pageasy
pioymer) eiiey nsn uorleanp3 jo pieog Aunod susesn 08 - S Suejeg Pauydad JO] PweN REKdWL



Iooyas asoding (iU TeT s1e30) pung

000 ;
(s£145'2eT’vsT) €8 PulJ pue ‘SSOUNCSIY JO SMOYUT PasIaIRg ‘SNMIqerT QoL
(bS'rE+'850°PT) saginba oL
(00°000°002) Zpl ol veol - peubisseun < THI- -0006E-THT
0S°S61°9L2° paubisseun 1ebpng - - -00066-THT
{96'0¢8'Z81°€1) paubisseun = = -00065-THT
{91°1£2"191) weBoid j00yas PapUsHQ - Jog JSUUON O uoReIBd( Jo- poUBISsy - 453 0LLVE-THT
(15"%+9'68b) AUIZL] It 9oy - P3 104 peuBisSy - GlW- -SSLbE-THT
(09°969°2¢) $8200Nn§ oL sabppg - uoneanp3 Joy paubssy = O~ 5SZbE-THT
(£7'596°28) uoneanp3 joy paubissy = = SSAPE-THT
(1p°220'9} 13pPEY JoaUED - UORINASU J04 PojOMISeY = VI -09SPE-THT
(8T 10H'E62'T) 23/, Joud - seouesquinoul < - -OTIVETHT
(s8z0£586'T) 1B9A RN - SAvUEIqUINOUT s OTHETHT
20z 8bey STOT IHdy
WV 2b'8 STOZ/ZT/S Wi wpeq 306 - 133Ys Duejeg 91 :Aq pageasd

paamen) ejhey 80 UoReanpg 3o paeog Munod auswn  J0A - 199YS WueRq PAUYS] IO IweN Redwa]



TITEELEEL] 00 Z0T 85 T5 6749 (TOUZZTO8T)  OOOOEZILT [ OOEZIT INNIFATT VIO T 83HL0 VIOl 00Uve
(05°096'T) 6L vF 00 ZFT 2T (00ESE6) 000002 000 00000'¢e ] T o0 ==
(SP°LTLL) %L9°ES 26'bCT 0E9 (80°548°624) 00°000°09€°T 00’0 00°000°09£°T SYID g suonnquucy 0LSbb
000 %00'S8 00°'SH {00°852) 00°00€ 000 00°00¢ {ENPIAIPU] WOt PaIdA0IaY Sabeweq 09S¥h
000 Jabpng ON (99°999'99) {99'99999) 000 000 000 AU004d jO JjES oSt
000 %5b'8PPT (¥8°696'97) (r8'696°82) 00°000°C 000 00°000C j3wainbg jo ajes 0LShy
(69°909°tp) %{8'69 60'€£L'2S (16°992°221) 00°000°SL1 00°0 00°000°S£ Spunyay SNo3Ue||RaSI 0LIvb
(£6°289) %8'v8 L a4 (9S'#b5°2) 00°000° 000 00°'000°€ S|eule pa|pARYy JO Jjes StTib
(00°008'2) %ET'8ST (sz's52°cT) (5T'€52°€9) 00'000°0F 000 00°000°0% s|EuaY/asea] oTTby
(0£'98£'20T) %9L'10S (1£°580°€0L) (1£'580°848) 00°000°SLT 000 00°000°SZ1 paule3 1sau9uL OTTHb
(OB VET ECJ e09 OL A R L S A B A 550 — TS NS oI SS T
00D %00 0 000007 000 000001 000 000007 Uno oyoeq e
[Crarss 249 %6486 StZSK'T (85'120°002) 00°p2S°20Z 000 00'+25720¢ PIIY3-5394 30IAIDS AJURWILIC) T8SEY
(19'289°8) Y%t1 0b 88°'588"Lb (CIv1T°2E) 00700008 000 00'000°08 SI00Y2S [ENPAIPU] WOl S101309Y 7494
000 %LEST LTI Y (8Z£81°8) 00°000°0S 000 00'000°0S SWaISAS Jsyj0O uoneyodsues | 1€SEL
000 %00°0 0C'000°T 00’0 00°000'1 000 00°000°T Souoey} bulpusp 08EEY
000 Y%Ll '€ 00'bLL'S {00°922) 00°000'9 000 00°000°9 AIPLPIIF 40 3[eS HOTEY
TWOePLl . %%ECSS Tevve (69 SL0°1) o005 T 000 DOO0S ¢ SiTWE3d UNV 535N3011 V101 U00TS
(708rT) Thte 99 TEPPE (69559 1) 00005 000 00005°¢ 55090 abelie . OILiE
199651 CL6) TovB £6 DL 660286 (OB OO0 IS0ST]  UUUOOZBEO OV (LY U0 UOL SEUST ~ S=EXVI VOO IWIOL  UOU0%
L00'sE) %50°bE 082%¢ (0Z°9€T) 00°00k ooc 00°00F SOXEL [200 ] ES 19010 oF
(Ir-arn) %67°621 {2€°£58°S) (2€°£58°ST) 00°000°02 000 00'000°0T Xe] ISIX7 Jueyg 0zZE0b
000 %2591 9L€ST Y (bZ9b8) 00°000°S 00°0 00'000°S XB] Juug XN /700
(8Y°C66'SH8) %8506 80°508°Lb8 (26'b61°2ST'8) 00°000°'000°6 000 00°000°00¢°6 Xe|_ s9les uondg |exo oreoy
(OT°6ES'T) %06°LC 6£°v20'8T (19°5£6°9) 00°000°s¢ 000 00°000°52 4330 Saxe] JO NaJ7 Ul SjusWAed £9T0b
(86°€69°£T) %CT P (T'bLL'60T) (Ch'pLL69E) 00000°09¢Z 00°¢ 00000092 AN (8207 sexel jo nal ul SJuSWARY Z910p
(£8'02E) %8P'ES 62°164°C (1£°802°€) 00°000°9 000 00°000'9 VAL SOXe| JO nan ul sjusuiied 1910+
(65982} %LEEPEE (£0°2£2'2F) (E0°LLE°ED) 00°00T'T 00°0 00°00T1°T soxel dn-oid 0STO%
(SZ'$85°E) %69°8L TTISTET {84°LP1°1S) 00°000°S9 00°0 00°000°59 Ajjeuad g 3sassjur ovI0b
(68'625°p) %T9'29 1TT1H'8C (6£°885°LY) 00°000°94 00'0 00'000°92 Hap I A
(1o %65°18 z8'9¢ (8T°€9T) 00°007 000 00°002 A3jannjueg uogO(|0D) SIS SeI0y
(S6'EVE) %TLES T1€¢CE'6L (69°££9°05T1) 00°000081 000 00'000°08T YA 10Ud-SUOIDS(10D) S,2315M | 174t 4
(££°052°¢8) %9896 60°£¥6°002 (16'250°661°9) 00°000°00p"9 000 00°000°00%'9 XE | AUD004d Juaun) OTI0b
INUDAIY JU4INY pozijeay pazijeaaun pozijeay AlA pajewnsy 7oL Sjuswpuswy 154 (eu)buQ
% |COYOS IS0y Jelausy TbT ! pund
¢ 40 T 3bed $TO0T I1nay pund gns Aq
JUSWIIRIS BNUAADY
Wd 85:2 S20Z/L/5 W) /ereq punj-qns Aq S3NUIAIY JO JUIwW)e}S 597 :Aq pjeaL)

pIomen) ejAey

asn

uonedNpy Jo pieog AJunod suaais

pauyaq 397 SwieN ajejdwia)



IFT PUNg 103 (2500

TIEELB 628 =) TolB E8
W0 %9969 TE G2 LT G evLes) OO UODSZ 000 ~00 000 &2 — SI0BN0S BIA10 1VI0L 00067
000 98561 ¥resc a9 (CIA7309) 00000752 000 00°000°SZ SIjsuel] Dunesdn 00560
000 38bpng ON (66'F6F"LE) (66'P6b'LE) oo 00°0 000 AISACI9Y SoueINSUL 006t
RUTA7L 529 ol UL TEP6089 I8 ZCLosl) ST Ce0 ¢ee ST ¢60 L U0 0L6 281 INSWNBIA0D 143033 TVI0L  GO0Z%
000 i (10} T aoo i i 1
(88°20Z°2) %S81¥0T (69°0bE"2) (69°0¥£'8S) 00°000°9s 000 0000095 Juswesinquisy J10Y ob9LY
{ZT8109°2) %99S P0'SEQ'ES (96°+68°€9) 00°0£6'911 000 00°0£6°9TT 9)E1S Ybnoay . |elapad 1BYio 065y
00’0 %TT L8 00°000°S (91°760°pE) 91°260°6¢ 91°260'vE 00°000°S paaaedipuey au Jo uogesnp3 5944
TOEEISUIZF) TeGZ U8 2 CLPREPILOL (OB ZOEDILIF] GG CCLPLCIa b5 969795  ODOPZ LIPS Gap JIS5INNTLI0 JIVIS Ivi0L  O00%F
oo'o %000 00°04LTE 000 00°0LTE 000 000LTE SJUEID |IEis 90 0Begp
00'0 %000 8T'8ZE'E0T 0o'o 8T'8ZL'E0T 8z°9ze°e0C 000 juels Aundas |00Yds JIIgnd 08691
00'0 %00°0 08°6££°€12'S 000 08'6£€°ETT'S 08'6¢E°C1C’S 00°0 SISPOW 1004IS daReAcuu] 0649
(96'€E°08) %ET 06 SEH06'6C (89°'560°€£2) 00°000°€0¢ 000 00°000°€0t Spunj uonednpy 23e1s Byi0 0659
(ST°0€8°52) %ZEE8 48°691°S (51°0£8°92) 00°000°TE 000 00'000°TE uonenpy svAug 0559
(PO'ET6°9T) Bbpng oN (65°9ZS°6E) (65°9¢5°6€) 000 000 00°0 1oppen Jsaue) 0T99¢
000 %E6 €T 65095181 (60°060°£S) 89°055°8¢¢ 89°055°8E¢C 000 |00Y2SaLd UOKEINPT [B1DSdS eI SISO
(59°6¥5°£82) %+5°'69 S0'6TL 690 (B£°T85°TL0°T) £8°006°0vS°T £8°L8L°12 00°€bT'61S'T H-9id 21835 Q1S9
(90°LLL°6VE'D) %EL 06 0%’ 68T 800" {09°€PT EP9 6E) 00°€EH'169°ED 000 00°EEY' T69EY 3USPNIS U JUSLLISSAUL SSSIULIB | 0159
aNUIAY Juaund pozieay pazijealuyfy pazijeay alA pajewysy [e101L  SHUSWPUSWY 153 Jeuiblp
% |ooURS ISOMIN [BIUI9) 14T : pung
T 40 T abed S20T (uay pun4 qns Aq
JUBWARRIS SNuIADY
Wd 85972 S20Z/L/S Bwii/aeq pungd-qns Aq SONUaAaY JO JusWalels 201 *Aq pajeas)
pioymes] ejaey Hesn uojednp3l jo pieog Aun0Y UIIUH pauyaq Do AWeN ejdwd ]




%Z0VS  (PTLSH'90E) Sb'GL6°0E PETT'PIS 00°0 (00°959'158} (00°959'15) (00°000°008) Juawdinby uonongsuy senbsy 7T/
%I00L  {$97088°€9) SH'61H'9 16:40L'TT £b'68T {00°800'c12) 00'000°9% (60°800°652) sebiey) PR 665
%0566  {0T0TH) 000 08'689'18 000 (00'001°28) (00"000'9%) {00°001’0¢g) s|eLRlepW puy solddns JaN0 66
%Z9°09T  BE'SEL'STT 1072188 L£°€9€'812 80'8£2'8C (00°05£°061) (00°000°0TT) (000s£'08) alemyos T/Zb
%6ZEP8  E£9EPITLE S6LTT'T8E 89'S75'0k 00'0 (00°000°0S) 000 (00°0006°0S) punog - SjooqraLt  6bb
%000 (00°000°5) 000 000 000 (00°000°S) 000 {00°000°S) ouoADA[T - SHooqal  OEb
%916/  (B0'969'6C) STLST'HT PL9P9'88 TE'EHT (00°0052HT) 000 (00°005°zHT) saddng jeuopnasur 62k
%bs'96  (00°T02°2) 00'SHTIE 00°bS0’bb 000 (00°000'84) 000 (00°000'82) SIVNAIBS PAPRAUOD Y0 66E
%ST'88  {S9bL1°T) 0L'2651 S9°ZEL T 000 (00°005°8T) 00°0 {00°005°81) 1dinb3-sa0iA1RS Nieday puy soueusquiel  9EE
%ILbeT  00°006'T 000 00°0ST'9 00°0S6 {oo'0sT'D) (00'05T’p) 000 SapURBY SeAly YIM Spenuoy  ZIE
%6618 {0£€09°2T) 000 0£'96£°S bS'EITL {00°000°02) 00°0 {00°000°02) uoneZIMGeIS PUGAH - Juswauysy  LTZ
%EL'99  (98°EK2'SOT) 000 $1612'807 ££°092'SC (00" eop’ETE} 000 {00 sop’cTE) aevpa JeAodws  ZTZ
%ZLSS  (9TEISTI} 000 $£7986'p1 00°'0 (00°000°92) o000 {00'000'97) uonesuadwo) uswiodwaun 012
%IEPT  (L1L55TE) 000 £8'9ET'01 £8'9£€°T (00°v69'1p) 00°0 (00'569°1H) asueinsur [euaq 802
%bS'68  (61°TS0LLE) 000 18°£€£7'822'¢ Sb'SLE'DEE (00°58€'509°¢) 000 (00°58£'509°E) ueinsy] [epsly  LOZ
%0cz8  (£v°090'1) 000 €5'626'y v$'205 {00°066'S) 000 (00°066'S) soueinsur 3y 90T
%Iz (K9220'0TH) 000 9E'IEBED'T 94'€20'2€T {00°66£'015'T) 00'o {00°66€°015'T) Wwawame ¥;ms  HOC
%8559 (00°2E'TOY) 0070 00°100'648 ¥2'262'901 (0o szg'obe'T) 000 (00°sze'obe'T) Aunss [epes 10T
%be8TT  98°H15'9Z 000 98'bTS'991 00°95K €7 {00°000'061) (00°000°5€) {00°000°501) SISLPESL AMASANG paypan-uoN 86T
%6CHIT  10°Z00°0T 000 10°200'08 PSZEEB {00°000°0£) 000 {00°000°02) SIBYoesL AIMISANS payyy  SET
%596y (Z9'STI'9LE) 000 8E°STE'0LE LL681'Sp (00'1£6'9p2) 00°052°y (00" 181150 sabepy, 9 soueles OIO 681
%b1'89  (TL°E62°06E) 000 8Z'8p8'pES £L161'76 (00°Zp1'527'1) 00°000"s€ (00'Z6T092'1) Suelsissy [euonjedonpy €91
%eE6E  (00POP9E) 000 007965'€2 000 (00"000'09) 000 {00°000°09) SPenuo) papusixg sappel seaie) /71
%817 {1T'606°€E) 000 68'060°91 ££'6€6'T (00'000°0S) 00°0 {00°000°0S) weibold oppet soo1ey  LT1
%E1°99  {0€°ZLT'1£1°0) 000 0£°96£'100°bT TTZIHoTL'T (00696°7£1'12) 000 (00°696'2£1'12) seywesl 91T
00TTL
axg aouejeg saduelqumuz  saumipuadxa  sainjipuadx3y 336pnyg SjuBWpUAWY  jJunowy 326png uondidsag JUNOIDY  JAqWINN JUNODY
Ww6png pasaquindusun  BupuesINg 23eQ-03-JEaX  EG-0I-LIUOHK papudy 39bpng
3O %
|ooyos asadind jesauan YT : puny

$T Jo T abey SZ0T (udy

Wd T€:Z 5202/2T/S Bwi) /aeq puny Aq [qo Aq Arewwing saanjlpusdxg jo Juswale}s 97 1Aq paaess)
plojmer) ejfey esn uonedNPd Jo pieog AJunod au3dun Pauysa 397 dweN ajedwsy



00ETL

%ZE0L (VL'EEQ'BLE'T)  Z6°'S6Y'LS 91°966'90T'C Ob"TSE'S6E (be'ses'zro’y)  (+8'Tv9°T97) {D0'EBB'6LE"Y) wesbaid uoneonpg lepPads  00ZTL 19901
%6666  {b8€) 00°2£9'€S $8'68TLT 00°0 (8902604} (89°0£6°02) 000 uswdinb3 uogeonp] fedads  §¢7
%61°C (£6°299'E) £0'28 000 000 (00'052'E) 000 (00r0sL’e) sjeuajel puy sanddns eyio  66%
%096 {9v'ie6) 68'9€L'E 59°5e8'6 £9'508 (00°00S b1} 000 (00°005'PT) seiddns (euomnnsu]  67H
%000 {00°005) 00°0 000 000 {00°008) 000 (00008} 1dinb3-sa0jAiS Jledsy puy oueusjuely  9€E
%00°0 {00°00S) 000 000 000 (00°005) 000 (00°005) Bunsay puy uoweneas  ZZE
%IE69  (EP0OSHZB) 000 ELTZT98T 0£'€T98E (91°229'892) (91°2£9161) (00°000°24) sabuaby ajeAnd yipm spenuey  Z1E
%1618  (Ob'Lbb'1) 00’0 097559 657018 (00°000'8) 000 (00°000°8) uonReZIGeIS PUGAH - JuBWRIIRY  ZTT
%£8'79  (9b'B9T'LT) 000 $57990°6Z LSEESE (00" vEZ'9b) 00°0 {00'beZ'9K) eipsy ;shoidug  ZTZ
%000 (0005227} 00'0 00'0 000 (00°052'0} 000 (00'082'0) uonesuadwoy) uawhoidwaun 01T
%SSvz  {000ST'P) 000 00°0S£'T 00009 {00°005°5} 000 (00°005°) ueinsy] fejuag 80T
%816  (ST0/8°b) 000 29°96£'€05 6L°6€0°CS {00'£92°8S) 000 (00°£9T'8%S) duensu] leipaw £02
%8579  (00°STH) 000 00769 ar'es (00’6011} 000 (00°601°T) oueInsur g 907
%T6LS  (STWHIIT) 000 L 6L ST 95'5£8°81 (00°££2°292) 00°¢ {00°2£2°£90) nRWaIRY MRS YOZ
%IT09  {b€'v98°'8L) 0070 99'628'811 HLTS'vT (00°'v69'¢6T) 000 (00v69'261) Aundas [epos  TOZ
%5806  {(STH8EE) 000 SLSTYEE 0L'SLEY (00°000°2€) (00°000°0€) (00°000°2) SJauped) AMASGNS PAYISI-UON 86T
%98'20T  8T'E6E 00°0 81'€6€’s £9°8bS (00°000's) 000 (00°000") SIayIeaL 3IMNSANS payay  S6T
%0ty  (z6ZESLTT) 000 80'661°1£2 05707282 (00 z£0'65E) 00°000'0€ {00°2£0'68¢5) wsibojoyied yrsads LT
%5018 {98¢6L'LL) 000 preeseee 1£402°2E (00'125°01%) 00°0 (00'1Z8°0TY) SuRsIssy jeuoneonpy €91
%S57s  (05°898°65) 000 05'298°'19 S7'981°9 {00'1€L'27T) 000 {00'1€L°21T) 5i3yJes) punogowioy 87T
%EE'ES  (2£'998'T) 000 STEET'C 99992 {00"000°b} 000 {00°000°t) weibold Jappey masey  /IT
%6v'99  (1£'6T0'29¢) 000 69°8£0°21S"T 61'2I2'68T (00°8S0°pLT'D) 000 (00°850°b22°2) siapeal 977
[¢1174 92

%96'04 (LV'S6L'BOE'6)  vL'629'E95 6/'086'6L1°CT 080869552 (00°90t'zso'ze)  (00°000'002) {00'90¥'ZS8'1E) weibaid uonpnnsug Jeinbay  QOYIL I|OL
%00'00T (090} 00'0 ObEbE'SE O EHE“8E {00'vE'8E) (00pre'se) 00'0 yewdmnby Byi0 067
00TTL

axg ddue(eg sapueIquindul  saumppuadxg  svanmpuadxg 3o6png SusWpuBWY junowy 326png uondossg JUN0XY  J3qUINN JUNOIOY

396png passqundusuny  Gurpueisyng eq-03-ieds  eq-o3-yuow papuawy J9bpng
30 %
Jooyas asodind jeiausg IPT :pung
b1 jo ¢ Sbeq ST0T Iudy

Wd Z€:¢ ST0e/TL/s 2wl /=1eg pung Aq [0 Aq AJeliwng S3JNIPUIAX3 JO JUIWIRIS M :Aq pajeas)
piomen) ejAe) “sn uoIEINP3 JO pieog AJuno) susaun pauyag Do :ewep sedway



%EC'EET  00'SL 000 00°00€ 00051 (co'szz) 000 (00522} oueinsug Busq  B0Z
%b8'92T  SL'0SE'E 000 SLSE8'ST ST'1S5°1 (00'sb'zr) 000 (00°s8"21} DURINSU [eipal 07
%60°60T 00T 00°0 0042 o'z {ooz) 000 (0022) souelnsur 7 90T
%9'66  (09°S2) 00°0 0’9217 £6°99L (00'zsT'2) 00'0 (00'Z51°2) WWIRY 3es  H0T
%61°Z0T  99°00T 000 99'069'p 75°02S {00°08S'Y) 000 (00°065°) AQunoas eos  10Z
%ILLY9 (b9ULS5'0T) 00°0 9€'SST'EP Pee'S (00°€£L'E9) 000 (00°'£€L59) sobem g sapeles JayIp 681
%0C'68  (09°185'p) 000 001928 0p'8£9° (00°Z91'zY) 000 {00 29128} PuUCsIad [eSusy 29T
o1TZL
%90'0E (ET'T09'S80’S)  8Z'TOE’ZL0T 60°£TL’690°T TT'8EE'SOE {0oo0e9'zrT’z)  (00'0LS2Z'y) (00°090'sT8'Z) weisBoid uoQEINPI |LUCKREIOA  QDETL IX30L
%99 {68°€2£'208'T) 60°066'St Y6'6bL'EL 591991 (z6'€90°826'T) (z6°€T8°€16°T) (00°082'p1) wswdinbg uopannsyy jeuonesos  0EZ
%000 (10°006°Z19'T) 00°0 (10°0) {00"000°01} (000067191} (00°s2£'009'1) (00°2£1°1) sabieyd 1210 665
%96'Y (ET°€44°0£9) 00°0€ £8°96L'bE 00°002 (00°005502) (00°005'z89) (00°000°€2) sleuel puy SIddns IS0 66
%00°09T  00°G00'ST 00°000'¥T 00°000'vT 00700042 (00°000'0¢) {00°000°0€) 0070 aemyos  T4b
%ELTT  (8L/505°212) 69°180°9¢ £5TIP'9T TVE6b'Y (00°000's22) (00°000°28T) (0000088} sa)iddns jeuopnnsu] 624
%000 (00°000°T) 000 0070 00’0 (00"000'1) 000 (00000°'1T) 1dnb3-sao1nas ledsy puy aoueusUR  9EE
%bEYZT  09'9£9'1ET 000 09°9£9°T€9 ST60T'8rT (00°000°00S) 000 {00"000°005) SWaSAS [00YOS OO YIM SPeAuoy  TIE
%IE9T  (9TWbT'8T) 000 b4 565" 0£'96€ (00°008°12) 000 (00°008'12) UOHEZINGE)S PUGA - WUBWIIFY /1T
%6L5E (S9°£95°€7) 00'0 ITEET'ET TE'TVET (3£°969°9€) (92°69T) (00'£25'9¢8) areoipaly Jshodusy 217
%000 (00 002°c) 00°0 000 000 (00°00Z°€) 000 {00°00Z’E) uogesuadwo) JuswAoidwsun 017
%I6'T (00 00£2) 00°0 00°0ST 00°0ST {00°058°7) 000 (00'0582) aoueinsul [e3uag 802
%EO'T9  (PO°521°50T) 000 96°$p9'pOT T6'6£8°S1T (00°222'652) 00°0 (00°2£2'692) 2dueinsul {@ipaw  Z0T
%96'8T  {TH'2€0°T) 000 6S°THZ SS'T (00'p22'1) 00°0 (00pL2'T) uensuyn 907
%LE'SE  (£5°0ST1ZT) 000 £°682°99 TE290°C (00'0bb'28T) (00°800T) {00°z£p'981) wwaRy s 0T
%8Z'St  (Iv'ETy99) 000 16°€96'%5 85°6£8'S {ze8e'121) (ze120) (60°999°0ZT) Anoes jewos 102
%SLPTT OTENLE 00'0 OT'ETL'8T 05681 (00°co0‘sT) 000 (00000°sT) SI3YoR3) AMSqNS paunD-uoN 96T
%0vys  {€£°002'S) 000 (9°664'9 ST'260'7 (00'005°21) 000 {00°005°ZT) SIRYORIL AIMNSGNS payU)  SHT
%00'D (00'bE9°TT) 00'0 000 000 (00°+€9°1T) (00'b£9°TT) 000 sabem g saueles Yo 681
%00°00T  SS9€6'8S 000 §5°9£6'8S 000 000 000 0070 JouUOsIad Bouepinny €21
%eLTT  {(9LEEE’?) 000 $9°999 €£°E8 {00°000c) 000 (00°000°€) wesbold ioppe pasey /11
%SH8s  (bS'819°209) 000 9b'£66'068 #5'508°00T (00219864 T) 00'0 (00'219'866°T) sipes) 97T
00ETL
axg aduejeg saJuelqunouz  saunppuadxy  sasnjpuadxy 3obpng YUaWpURWY junowy jabpng uondisaq unody J3QUINN Junocoy
19bpng passqunousun  Bulpumsang djed-03-Jes)  Neq-03-yuow papuswy 0bpng
30 %
jooyds asodling |esaudn I¥T pung
$T Jo € abey SZ02 |udy
Wd Z€°2 Se0z/zi/s auny /aeg pung Aq [gO Aq Adeiling SSUNJIPUDSAXT JO JUBDELS o) tAq pajealn
Piopmen) eihey uasn uonednpg 0 paeog AJuno) susaun pouysq 97 awey sjeidwa)



%bETE  ($9'98€°28) 00°0 9E'ET19E (9T0LY {o0"000°02T) 00°0 {00"000°0Z1} sabem g seueles Joyi0 68T
%90'66  (90°582) 00°0 ¥6'260°€8 651058 {00'8188) 000 (00°818°¢8) Suepusny  $9T
%8p'8s  (0£7€€8T6Y) 00°0 0€£°05L'769 80°10Z°H0T (00'v8S481'T) (00'zpL'66T) (00°2v8'v86) j2uuosIag oueping €271
%000 (00°000°T) 000 000 000 (00°000°T) 000 {00000'T) weibold Jappe] saiey  L1T
0ETTL
%98'vL (TT'ETE'ETIT) PSSE'ET SEYSL'ETY Z0'st 08 (00"E€0’TS8) 00'0 {00°€€0°1S8} 0ZITL =0
%01 67°97EL 6L°96¢'S 05'675°L 0118’9 (00°000"9) 00°0 {00°000°9) Jawdinbg yyesH S/
%083 (L2°95TE) £p126'T 0£'900°S 00°0S (00°v80°01) 00°0 (00'+80°01) sabueyd Y10 665
%EE'68  (00°091) 00°089 00099 0009 (00"005°T) 000 (00°005°1) WwatwdojpAsa yeis/omas-ul TS
%C6'65  (BE6LLY) L8y (11744 S6°11T {00°008°TT) 00°0 (00°008°1T) siesel puy sajjddns o0 661
%S1°¢6  (56°885) 000 551169 000 {00°005°2) 00°0 (00°005°¢) s3|ddns |edipa puy sbruq €T
%00'0 {00 0S1'9) 00°0 00°0 00'0 (000519} 000 (00°0s1'9) SSQIRS PIPRIUCD JaYl)  66€
%58'69  (9¢°TL0°) 00°06 v9'0bE'S 09'%LE'T (00°zos’sn) (00°000°S} (002058} jprell  SSE
%00°0 (00°002) 000 000 00'0 (00°002) 000 {00°002) sabuey) S0 QbE
%T6'IT  (18°500'T) 000 617061 000 (00°965'T) 000 (00°965°T) uonesWNWWoy  £0E
%10'€9  (Z1'066'7) 000 88'€60'S 8°0¥9 (00'v80'8) 00'0 (00'+80'8) uedipapy sehoidug 21T
%000 (00"0S¥) 000 000 000 (00°0Sb) 000 {00°05k) uonesusduio) Juswhoidwaun  0T¢
%0£'ss  (00°T96) 00’ 00'681'T 00'6EY (00°0sT'D) 000 (00°0ST°7) ouensu] Eusg  BOZ
%bS'I8  (887£91'0€) 000 TTHIT'EET TULP6'ET (00°zeb'e91) 00°0 (co'zeb‘e9T) soueinsuy [epan  £07
%0569  (00°6L) 000 00081 (T4 (00'652) 00°0 (006527} suensuray 90T
%ELBY  (L£759Z8T) 000 £9'PST0b 29'602'S {00°0TH"8s) 000 {00°0Z1'85) wBWamsY LS HOT
%I0'€S  (2€°98L21) 00°0 89°08L'1C PO'OLL'T {00'£95"%5) 000 (00°£95'pE) Ajanoss jlepas 102
%9203 (00°SSL'P) 000 0098’ 00°0 {ooetrTI) 000 (00'611°2T) sebep g saueles fnQ 68T
%S0'S.  {€9°S9H°Z1T) 00°0 L'H0E'8EE T9L60°pb (00°02£°05+) 00°000°S (00°04L"55Y) [3uuosid [epaly  TET
%9674 (00°89€LT) 00°0 00°785'v¥ SLUS'S (00°056°19) 000 (00°056°T9) iopangliosmedns  SOT
SIVUARS JIeIH  DTTZL
%t188 {(06'9Z£0Z) D0°0 OT'S96'EST 09'SYI'TT (00°Z69'PLT) 00°0 (00°269'vLT) 0TTZL (2301
%000 {00001 000 00°0 000 (oo co1) 00°0 (o0°001) sabieys BYI0 665
%000 (00°002) 000 00°0 00C {00'002) 000 (00'002) sieusiely puy sanddng ;B0 66b
%0T'€0T  TS'SZE'T 00°0 15°S2T'bb 000 (00°008°zY) 000 (00°008'Zk) S0IARS POPRINC) BYID  66E
%2201 20°6 000 204607 (A ras (00 €20°T) 000 (00°££0'T) aseopay whodws 21T
%000 (p0°0sT) 000 o 000 (00r0sT} 000 {o0"051) uonesuadwo) aswhoidwsun 072
oT1ZL
axg sauejeq sdUeIqundug  soanyipuadxy  sainjipusdxg jabpng SjusWpUlWY  junowy Jabpng uojIdIdSa@ JUNOIOY  JOquIN JUNCIDY
1obpng pasaqundusun  Buipueysing 9}eQ-03-1€3)  S)eq-03-ljuol popudwy Pbpng
oy
#ON {ooyos asodind |esauan IPT I pung
+1 Jo p abeg SZ0Z judy
Wd Z€:Z S20T/21/S iswll /areg PUnd Aq {q0 Aq AlRWIWING SINPPUIAXT JO JUSWIELS 291 tAq pajeal)
piomes) ejiey 95N uoljednpy jo pieog AJuno) ausaln pauyad D91 :owepN spejdwa)



%ET'TET  66'£29'Sh 00°0 66°ZH9'48T S0'1€8’TT {00°610°2pT) 000 {00'610°ZHT) Wawaiey 1Ms  HOT
%OTHIT  HIILE'9T 00°0 PI1LT'8ET 00898 (00roce'TIT) 000 (00" 0£E1TT) Aunoes jepos 107
%0b'80T  00°0Z€ 00°0 00°02€’'s 0£'6£2 (00'000°c) 0070 (00°000's) SI3Y3831 INIRSANS pauRED-UON 861
%88'6b  {£v'T001) 00°0 £5°266 £9'6¢T (00'000'2) 00'0 (00°000'7) SI\Pea) NISqNs pauptsD  S6T
%S 1L (66°988°6F) 800 10°287'10T 91'£26'01 (00'691'T11) 00'0 {00°691°1H1) sabey, g seuees Jayl0 681
%T0°80T  S8°v80°C/ 00°0 S8'¥80'7L6 00'0 (00°000'006) (08°000°006) 000 sjuswAey snuog  §8T
%see  (61'899°%) 00°¢ 18'844'S€E 9b'0TL'E (00 Lvb'ew) 000 (00'Ltb'sh) sjuesissy jeuoqednpy €91
%08 (0v'889°2) 000 09°'682'CE 0Z'520°¢ (00'9,6'6€) 000 (00'8£6'6¢) PuucsIRd oD 79T
%00'00T  SS'T6E'9 00'0 S5°16E'9 00°0 000 000 000 [BUuosIag Jayndwio jesorpnnsur  BET
%9826  (£8'TZ€'€E) 00'0 £T'69E'bED 65'VE0bY (00°169°29t) 00°0 (00°'169°29%) {UUOSI3g eIpay uonednp /€T
%8L€9  (6Z'Lp8'9ES) 000 TL790°€6S BOE'TL {00'016'626) 00"000'% (00°016¢£6) sueueiqn 67T
%000F  (80°000°¢} 00°0 26'666'T 66'6tZ (00°000°S) 000 (00°000's) weibasd Jappe ey Z1T
%LIE8  (01°b92'6T) 000 06'S79 VT 65°29b'bT {00"068°€1) 00'0 (00°068°¢41) JopRug/losisdng  GOT
1) €442
%9873 (S6'PTS'9eL) LO0'6PE'T 82°062'SPT'T T9PLI'TIT (0E'PST'E86°T)  (0€ £SE’SEE) (00'T08'vb9'T) Hoddng JUapMS PIRO  OETTL =301
%000 (00"002'2E) 00°0 000 000 (00'00z°ze) {00'000°2€) {00'002) wewdnb3 2y 067
%S£°30T  00'ISE STLST'T SLE6EY SE°E8h (00°00Z'S} 000 (c0002°s) sefieyy B0 665
%916 (91°€91'€0) 000 $898€'2 00'0 {00°005'52) (00°000'+7) (00°005°1) uswdojaAsg Yes/eoIAes Ul $ZS
%61'cs  (00°6H0°T) 48 (4 81°609°T A4 {00°0S8'0) Q00 {00°058'2) slepeyy puy sayddng ;e 664
%S0°06  (bE'SLOHT) 00°0 99'v2E' LTI 0E'6LE°S (00'00b°THT)} (00 000'62) (00°001°211) SIOIAIBG PIRNUC) JBYI0  66E
%95'p {rb'v56) c00 95'Sk 00'0 (00°000°T) {00°000'T) 000 ARl GSE
%00°0 (00°000°027) 000 000 00°0 (00-000’0z} 00°000°0T (00°000°0€) funsal puy uogenjeay  ZZg
%S6'9CT  SLELO 000 SLELT'E ST'T6E (00°005"2) 000 (00°005°2) UoHezZIqeS PUGAH - JuBwaunsy /17
%ELDD  (LT°917%) 000 £L9TT $E£869'T (06°288'8T) (06'6p2€E) (00°cgr’sT) ueNpay Johoidwy  ZTZ
%00°0 (00'005) 000 000 000 (00°003) 000 {00°008) uopesuadwiod uswioidwaun  QT¢
%S8'sz  (65°210°E) 000 00'050'T 00°0St {65°790°%} (65°795} {(00°005°¢) souelnsu [eusg 80T
%LS80T Z8'E6S'ET 000 60°€ET'2LT ZE'LT6'6T {¢z'6e585T) {£2'epo'bT) (00'968°¢€T) ouaInsu] jepe 0T
%059, {(80°08) 000 ¥£'09Z 80°0€ (zg'ove) (zaes) (00°882) aouemsur 3 90T
%0979  (59°016'sE) 00°0 89°811°09 b85S (€€°620'96) (€€29521) {00°29v'82) wswamey RIS HOT
%Zb'65  (6999/7€) 000 02086t £0°8£8'9 (6€°¢bL'08) (6£°000'9T) (00°£0£¥9) fQunass jenes 102
%00°0 (00°0002) 000 00°0 00°0 {00°000'T) 00°0 (00°000°) SIaLdedt AIMNSQNS paueD-UoN 961
%000 (00°000'2) 00 00°0 00°0 {00°000°2) 000 (00000°2) SIB\DEIL BMASYNS pauita)  G6T
0EYTL
ax3g aouejeg sddueIqWNDOUZ  saanyipuadxy  saunyjipuadxy 1P6png SUBWPUAWY  Junowy 3o6png uondinsag JUNCODY  JSQUINN IUNCODY
PRhpng passqunousun  Bulpuersing 3jeg-0j-Jes) 2)eQ-03-LIUOK papuauy Js36png
)
10 % jooips asodund |elauany IPT :pund
b1 jo G obed §20T Hady
Wd Z€'Z Szae/ei/s 3wl /ayeq pund Aq [q0 Aq Alewwing S3INYPUIAXT JO JUBWANLS 291 :Aq pajeasn
Plojmen) ejhe uoi3edanpg jo preog Auno) ausalD pauysd D97 :ewep ajedwa)



%bTP9  (b670SL) 000 90°6bE’T 95'6bT (00001°2) (00°001°2} 000 UoneZINGeIS PUGAH - JusuRIndY  ZTC
%9518 (L5TL'T) 000 &LTY's 85°185 {00°006'9) 000 (007006'9) alesipaly saholdwa 212
%00°0 (00°0sT) 000 000 000 (00'0ST) 000 {0070ST) uopesuadwod Juawiodiaun 012
%ssbs  (00°5£€) 000 00°05% 00"00€E (00°sz8) 00'0 {00°528) soueinsu] feuaq 80T
%ep'eL  (99°588'ST) 000 vEHe8'EL PIZHRE (00°0££'65) 000 (00°0££'68) aueinsy] [epsw  Z0T
%007, (09€g) 00’0 0’98 ob's {o0'0ZT) 00°0 (o0"021) asueinsul a7 90T
%Ip1IL  (86'SEHTT) 000 20°49S'8T L6616 {00°000°0%) 000 (00 0000t} juswaunzy axeas 0T
%bae8  (09°20L'%) 000 02'290'¥Z 6498b'C (0002£'92) 00°0 (00'02£82) Aqunoss epos 102
%Z9Ts  (0L7€62°9€) 00'0 0E'Lb2'96 EE'EST'TY (00 T¥STET) 00°0 (00°Tp5°ZET) sabep, g sauejes a0 681
%00'0 {00°z20°01) 000 000 000 (00'zL0°0T) 00°000°01 (00°2£0°02) (S)Aeemes 1971
%8958 (09'€66'6) 00'¢ 0v°98£'65 £E'08b"9 (00°082'69) 000 (00708269} jauucsiag JuRWssassy  SET
%859 (¥9°Z91'6T) 000 9¢L£8'9¢ L9°%09'p (00'000'95} (00°00095) 00°0 jPuuosiad leapa  TET
%889  (£9'816'€9) 000 £€'062'8€T 65'8£0°2T (00'691'202) 00°005'8t (00-699°052) |UUOSiSd enboiodAsyd  HZT
%0008  (00°009) 000 00°00+'T 00°00¢ (00°000°} 000 (00°000°c} wesBoid soppe] o2y LIT
%b7'e8  (09°181°9T) 000 0+°'88£'08 »8'8E0'8 (00°0£596) {00°00%) (00°0£196) J0p2g/105189dns  SOT
0zTTL
%0£'06 {V8TES'LZE) SY'TEO'TT TL0ZO'6E0'E LETSST0T (00°989'££8’E)  (00°000°006) (00°989'£L¥T) 0tZZL 1e0L
%00°0 (0co'000'1) 00°0 00°0 00°0 (00°000°1) 000 (00°000'7) uawdinby BRO 064
%25Ls  (£9'989) 00°0 £S°€98 000 (00700S°T) (00°000°1) (00°00S) sebieyd BRO 565
%000 (o0°000's) 000 000 00°0 (00'000°s) 000 (00°000’s) Juswdorag geis/mmias-ul  Hs
%S6'ST  (Z£p0r'8) 09'9ST'T 89'8€Y 00°0 (o0'000°0T) 000 (00°000°01) s|enalel puy sanddng ;suiQ 664
%{5'6L  (00°€Z8'S) 00'0 0024922 000 {00°005'82) 000 (00°005'82) eipaly/sxo0g Aeign  TEY
%GSESE  9T'ZEO'8E 996 $9°595'€h 00°00b'E (00°000'ST) 000 (0000051} S3DIAISS PAIIBIUDD JBYID  66E
%6ET6  (66°5H0°T) 000 10°%0£'12 S6'€8E°T (o0r0sL'€n) 000 (00°05¢'€7) jpaer  SSE
%0070 {co°001) 000 000 000 (00°00T) 000 (00°007) 1dinb3-sa91035 steday puy oueusjuleyy  9EE
%00'0 (06°000'S) 000 000 000 (00°000°s) 000 (00°000's) siweynsuc)  80E
%88'08  {(00°0DET) £T60b £2°060°S 98'€65 (00°008'9) 000 (00°008'9) uopeaunwwe)  Z0E
%08, (£0'888) 000 L6'TITE 90'¢6 (00°000°%) (00°000°¢) (00°000'T) uoRezZyIqEsS PUgAH - uswaugey  LT¢
%GTHRT  0S°THR'9 000 06°6/8C€ LE0P0'T (00°2€0°92) 000 (00°2£092) aueips Lhojduss  ZTC
%00'0 (007006} 00'0 00'0 000 (00006} 000 {00°006) uopjesuadwo) uswiodwaun  OTE
%Irpe  (00°E9Z'T) 000 00°281'T 00°0ST (00°0SH°E) 000 {00°0st°e) ueirnsul ey 80C
%5888 (18'6£L'1€) 00°0 61°256'75Z ££°951'bT {00°£69v82) 00°0 {00°£69'+82) soueinsuy [edipa  £0T
%828  (Z'68) 00°0 f:rafYad 86'TH (00815} 000 {00°815) ueinsur Y7 907
01ZZL
axg 3oue|eg saoueIqunduz  S3Jnllpuddx3  sainjlpuadxl 1=6png NuUaWpusWy junowy 12bpng uondpsog JUNddY  JaquIng JUNCIdY
yobpng pasaqunousupy  Sulpuesng Neq-03-1ed),  Ne-03-yuow popuawy Jabpng
0,
0% 100Y2s 9soding jeiauds IPT :puny
$1 Jo g obed S20T Indy
Wd TE:T ST0T/TT/S Buny /aeq puni Aq QO Aq AJewiung sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswaies o1 1Aq p93eas)
pAOIMELD) AR HES uanRednp3 o pieog AJUno) IUdIIDH poauyag 191 :awen ajejdway



%Iz’s9  (Zzege's) 000 8L'€9S'ET 01°66b (00°'108'02) 000 (00 T08'02) Aunoss lepes 102
%0e'19  {(00°0SH01) 000 00'055°91 000508 (00°00022) 000 (00°000°22) S334 TIDqUISY MWW puy precg 16T
%9,'89  (E2°80£°€6) 000 LL°T6T7'90C 000 (00°00000€) 000 (00°000°00€} Aeq Ayasbuoy 98T
%€ee'es  (69'T¥5°E) 000 1€'656" 0070 (00°005°8) 000 (00°0058) pieog oy Aleenag  8TT
0TETL
%L0'LZT 007TLY'6S 00°0LE'Y 00°T08'pLT OE"68T'9C (00°00£'612) 00'0 (00"00£°612) 0STZL 1|0L
%6S'EHT  86'6LTTH 007008 86'6L1'BET 0£'682'SC (00°000°26) 000 (00"000°26) awemyos TP
%098 (00°0£€’'T) 00°0£5°E 00°001'S 00'0 (00°000°01) 000 (00°000°0T} buigen  0Lb
%EH9TT  TO'TTS'8T 00'0 20'122'1€T 000 {00 00L'2TT) 000 (00"00L'ZIT) Auapsuue) puul  0S€
0STTL
Y%Lt Lz  {69°66E°297) 000 TELLL'66 0E'8LE'6 {00"2£1°29¢) (00°6£2'THT) (00°868°vZ1) wesboid uonednpy [euonednA  0ETTL 190l
%000 (00°6LT'797) 000 00'0 00°0 (00'6L2'2HT) (00°6£2'T¥0) 00°0 wewdinby Jsyio 064
%8I'8 (59°'+19'%) 000 SETIP 000 (00°920's) 00'bLY (00°005's) Aey GSE
%6zes  (1£°5¢€2) 000 69'2LT'T PHLIT (00'80¥'1) (00'ET) (00°S6£'T) asepay Johoidwy  TTZ
%000 (00'vE) 0070 000 000 (o0ve) 00’0 {00'p5) uonesuaduio) Juswhoidurun 012
%00°0 {00°0ST) 000 00e 000 (00057} 000 (000sT) souesnsup [ewsq 80T
%sy6.  (00°THLT) 000 00°ST89 00'T0L (00°955°8) 000 (00°955°8} aoueinsu] leapaly  LOT
%0008  (00°€) 0070 00zt 0zt (00°'51) {00'1} (00'v1) duensur 3 907
%L0'€8  (2b'2S0'T) 00'e 8SE91"S €9°25S (00'912'9) {0g-001) (00'211°9) JuswWameY |AS  $0OT
%sze8  (1£°800°T) 000 67%10'S 61°208 {00'€209) {00°09) (00°£96°S) Aundas fepos 10T
%0008  (00°002) 00'0 00°008 00°00T {00°000°T) 00’0 (00°000'T) welbeld Joppe] Jsaven  /T1
%eces (0978091} 000 0b'88€'08 ¥8'8£0'8 {00°0£t'96) {00°00€) {00°0£1"96) Jopaugfiosiaadns - S0T
0€TTL
%TesL  (Er'8YR66T) 09'855'0T £6°60L'8ES TT'E9S'YS (00 £11’6%2) (00°000°0T) (00'£1T'6€L) 0TTTL 1201
%It (bS6E6'T) 000 9p°095 00'TIT (00'005°7) 000 {00°005'T) sableys R0 665
%Lt (0T'S6E) 000 08'$00°T 000 (00°00b'1) 00°0 {00"00p'1) swdofEarsg geas/omas-ur - HES
%8978  {(2T'506'T) TWSIT'Y 9€'6/67 £L°VST (00'000°TT) 000 (00°000°1T} sleusield puy salddns o0 66%
%88 {127120'2) 89°8Z6'€ 1108027 50596 {00'000'8T) (00°000'01) (00°000'8) ARl SSE
%0098  (00°0¥1) 0070 00°098 00'0 (00'000'1) 000 (00°000'1) idinbz-saoivag sleday puy sdueusjuely  9EE
%000 (00°055) 000 000 000 {00°055} 000 (00°08S) suawied y1185/5ea1  OLE
%Z6'65  (05°€92'T) 000 05°9€9'2 00°ISE (00°00v'v} 000 (00°00p't? sapuaby 24gnd BI0 IM sPeques  OTE
%0008  (00°00€) 05T 05°589 0z'9L (000057} 000 (00005°1) vonesunwwey  £0€
0TTLL
ax3 aouejeq saouIquniuy  seamipuadx3  saanypuadxy 16png SJUDLWIpUBUWY  Junowy 3P6png uondiSsQg WUNCOSY  JIGUINN JUNODDY
1°6pnga passquinousaun  Bujpuersang 2jeQq-03-1eas  ed-03-YIUuo| papuswy 3e6png
30 %

joods aso0ding |eI3U3D ™Y :pund

T 4o £ abed §70T Hidy
Wd zg:z szozfet/s iPwL/aeq pung Aq [qO Aq AIRWIWNG S3JN}puadxy JO JUSWIIRS 391 :Aq pajeas
piogmes)) ejAey 198N uoneanpy jo pJeocg AJuno) auIlH pauysq D97 :ewey sjejdwa)



%61'BIT  HZ'ELZ'T 11°06L'T CT'EBb'S 101 (00°000°) 000 {00'000°2) SSOAIBS PIIIRIUOD BIRO  66E
%ITIET  Lp'88T'T pEEBL'T €9'v61'E 00411 {00°000°p} 000 {00°000%) ARl SSE
%101 (9£°615°C) 0£'SSt bE'SZ0'C 000 {00°000'8) 00°0 {00°0008) safuey) |esod  8HE
%000 (00 00g) 000 000 000 {00'00€E) 000 (00 00¢g) idinb3-semAses Jleday puy soueusjuiey  9€E
%8106  (00°5£8) 000 00°699'2 00°0 {00'005'8) 000 (00°005'8) sdiysisquialy puy seng  0ZE
%8LTIT 9E'S6T'E 9€9Lp 00°61L°T SS'T9% (00°000°s2) 000 (00"000°52) uopeunuwe)  Z0€
%SSH0T  09'81E 96'bL8'E $8Eb9E 7LL00'T (000002} 00°0 (000002} Buisipaapy  20€
%8e+8  (FOHP9) 000 96°8Lb'E 6I°L1E (00'ezT’y) 000 (oo'ezT'p) aseapsy plodug  Z1C
%000 {00 0rT) 00°¢ 00°0 00°0 (oo opT} 500 (a0 ovT) wonesuadwo)) juswioidwaun  01Z
%00°08  (00°00£) 000 00°00€ 00’0 (00009} 000 (00°009) suemnsu | 80T
%8676  (9£'684'T) 00'0 v2'269'eC $L000'2 (00'28p'ST) 000 (00°78Y'S2) aumnsul epaly  £0T
%98'8s  (98°€2) 00'0 T HE (1744 {00°85) oo'a (00°8S) ueinsul 347 90T
%08's8  (Zr'¥68°T7) 000 85°€6°LT #0'¥85'T (00°88€°00) 000 (00 88€'07) wswaipay Nws  H0T
%BEP8  (PEESLT) 000 99°5/8'Y1 1€9S€°T (006z9'c1} 000 (00°629'2T) Runag lepos 10T
%898  {LZ7'8L8'S) 000 £LE88'SE 0b'9TT'E {00°79L'vb) 00'0 {00'29Lvt) |BuUosiad [sp 291
%00°0 (00°000°T) 000 00°0 000 (00°000'T) 000 {00°000'T) weibosd Joppe] Pase)  LT1
%606  (86°50v°6) 000 Z0'y89'76 1T°0£5'8 (00'060°201) 00'0 (00060°20T) (shuesissy €01
%s6bs  {LE'HT8'0T) 000 £9°985°LTT SE'609°0T (00'TQE'8ET) 000 (00'T0E'8€T) 1200 dAROSIIWPY/fedo Aunad  TOT
0TETL
%Lv'TL  {0T'BIBSEE) €E€"PLS'OT LS OLY'ELS ST /9T’E9 (00'ET6'612°T) 000 {00'E16'612'T) 0T£TL |00
%90°Z01  00'S91 19°€20'S 6€'160'E fa¥ac4 (00°000°8} 00’0 (00°000°8) sabueys i 665
%6809  (57°888'%) 000 SLT19L S2'00E’T (00°005'21) 000 (00°00s°zT) a1 - siedlddy 30 uonebnsaaug ey £ES
%586  (€£5°SBZ'W) 000 Lb'p12'S62 £€6°T9241 (e0°000°00£) 000 (00r000"00€} uoissiwwo) se:sny 0TS
%086 (00°6LE) 000 DO TLEVT 00°00€ (00°052'vT) (00°000"81) (00°052'9) S30IAI9S PIIOERUD) IR0 66€
%80E2T  TLHT6'E 2L00S'S 0S'E2H'ST 8TLET {00"000'21) (00°000'2) (00°000°ST) loaey  SSE
%bE'8s  (02'599) 000 08'HEE'6E 00°9€L {00°000°0%) (00°000'ST) (00°000°52) somas [efa1  TEE
%89°SET  00°HO9'E 000 00'b02€Y 00°620°8 {o0'o0T'01) 000 (00°00T°0T) sdijsiequisy puy seng  OZE
%00°00T  00°0 000 00°000'EE 000 (00'000"ee) (00°000'8) (00°000°s2) saNARS Ipny  SOE
%228 (16295°T) 000 60°L6T'E ££'911 (00°598°p) 000 (00°s98'%) ueps Phodwz  ZTC
%Iy (Ep'€00'ST2) 00°0 £5°96b'561 SpZS8'ST (00°005°0Tt) 00°000°ch (00'00S"eSY} oueansy] PRl LOT
%0TpT  {05°S2S'T) 000 05°p8p ov'z9 (000102} 000 (00'010°2) ouemsur ay] 90T
%159 {9£760€) 000 b9LLS 000 {00'288) 000 (00°£88) wpwagsy Ae|s  HOT
OTEZL
dax3 aouejeqg SBDURIqUINDOUT  SAImipuadx3  sainjpuadxy Io6png SsjuawpudWwy  jJunowy 196png uoRdIdSa WNONDY  JqIINN JUNCIDY
jebpng pasaquniusun  Guipuersang 9jeq-03-ieaA  23eQ-03-tQuUON papuswy wbpng
30 %

Jooyos asoding jessuas IvT :pund

1 40 8 abed 5207 idy
Wd Z£:Z §20e/el/s aunl/seq puny Aq [qO Aq Alewwing saJnjpuadxy JO Juiudies 091 :Aq pajeas)
paomer) ejAey aasn uonjednpz jo pieog AJuno) dUalg pauyaq 397 :awep ajeduid)



%t8'8L (8S'v6¥'006) ILVL8TT TL6ET'SEEE IP'LEO0'YYE (0o's0s’05Z'y) 000 {00"605‘0SZ’Y) otz lejoL
%00'8C (z0'06%'1) 000 86°655 86°655 {00°000°2) 000 {00°000°2} awdinby uonegsiuwpy 10/
%00'0 (00°000°T) 000 00'0 000 {00°000°1) 000 (000001} sabieyd Y0 665
%ES'EL  (00°009'T) 9/°00£'C 26691 00042 {00°000°9) 000 (00°000°9} sleuanety puy salddng B0 661
%60°c6  (1T°607°€) 0£'9T0°ZT 61'vL8'62 (S'EPY'S (00"000sH} 000 {00°000°SP) SIDIAIFS PAPRIULD A0 66E
%Q0°0 {00°005°2} 00°0 000 000 (00°005'2) 00°0 (00°005'2) PARlL  SSE
%00°0 (00°000°T) 000 000 000 (00°000'1) 000 (00°000°T) 1dinb3-sNIAIRS Heddy puy soueusiuel  9EE
%P8HS  (98°£96'8T) STLST 68°¢/8°2C S6'ST6'E (00°000°24) 00'0 (00°000°2¥) uoneunwwo)  Z0g
%00°00T  86'€90T 000 $6'€90°1 2TSIT 0070 000 000 uoReziliges pugAH - JusweIdy  L1¢
%6294  {08087°0Y) 000 0TLLO'EE $6°15€E {00°8se’ew) 00°0 (00°85£'ep) seopay Jokodwy 21T
%00°0 (00°005> 000 00°0 000 (60°005) 00°0 {00°008) uonesusdwo) awAcidwaun Q1T
%947€  (00°058'S) 000 00°058'7 00°05% {00°004'8} 00°0 {00°004'83 Puainsul [@uaq 80T
%ze6L  (LT°9LT'0ET) 000 £8'89€°964 SE'E99'S (00°'S¥5'929) 00°000'ST {00°Sb5'T9) 2auminsuf PR £0T
%eTgs  (00°68T) 000 00°S29 9149 (00'b98} 00°0 (00'v98) asuensur a1 90¢
%808  (90°280°bb) 000 +6'8ZE'58T 0£296°8T (00'TTP'622) 000 (o0 T1¥'622) Juswamay 1S HOT
%b0'9L  (19°vTh'vh) 000 6£°0£6'00T 87°88Z'bL (00'56€7581) 000 (00'56£'381) Aunoss lepos  10Z
%09'sz  (0£°656'12) 000 0£'p+0'89 81°208'9 (00°000°06) 000 (00°000'06) sabep g salees B3RO 68T
%IILL  (E6¢ET'BST) 000 £0°78€'€8S §9'75€'8S (00°029'152) 000 (00°0Z9°1SL) (s)lepnas 197
%geb.  (80°S66°TT) 000 Z6'T16'2E9 FANX£4)4 (00°£06°058) (00 000'%) (00°206'9p8) sjedouud wesissy  6£7
%6L8E  (2LULS'E) 000 82'L2E'2 16062 (00°000'9) 000 (00'000'9) wesboiy soppe] ey £L11
%9°e8  {08°L4S'¥Z0) 00°0 0STET'EET’T ST€92'Z11 (00'602'£SE'T) (00"000'1T) (00°602°9b€'T) sedpuid  H0T
1] 42
%vs'88 (B8S°19T'SY) TEETL0T TT'886'T9€ YS IBT'IE {o0'EL6'0TY) 00°0 {00'cL6'0Z8) 0zZEZL (oL
%00°0 (00°009) 00'0 000 00'0 {00°009) 000 (00°009) juawdinb3 uonensiuiwpy  T0Z
%0070 {00'005) 00°0 000 00'e {00°00S) 000 {00005) sebiey) PYID 665
%678 (S0°6E6) YL 2EsT 17820t 25'986 (00'005°S) 000 (00°005'S) soddng a0y SEb
0ZELL
ax3 Nuejeg ssoueiqundul  saumjpuadxy  saampuadxy 326png SuUSWpUSWY junowy 336png uondpsa JUNADY  JIqUINYN JUNCDDY
36png passqundusun  Buipueysing 9jeQg-03-1E3A RJ-01-UIUOW popuswy jobpng
30 Y

jooyas asoding |eiauan I¥T : puny

b1 Jo 6 abed STOZ |udy
Wd 2€:T seoz/ei/s iswn] faleq pund Aq [qo AqQ Adewwing SauNIpuadx3 40 JUIWEIS om 1Aq pajeas)
plomen) ejiey 9sn uoneInp3 Jo pieog AJUN0) UMD pauysq 091 ewey ejdwdy



%56€8 (b6 19} 000 90'85¢"€ 97'559 {00°000'%} 000 (00°000°t) [onel  SGE
%00°0ZZ  00°000'9 SE'EEL'T §0'998'6 000 (00°000'S) 000 {00°000") sdinb3-sa01uag Jjeday puy adueusjuel  9EE
%00°00T  9Et 000 9E 000 00°0 00'0 000 UORRZIGAS PUGAH - Judwauidy  ZTZ
%6069  (bTLE9'L) 00°0 9L'890°LT 95°6£9°T (00°90L'vZ) 000 {00'902£'47) aueoipaly PAodwz T2
%000 {00°005'2} 00°0 000 000 (00°00S°2) 000 {00°00s'0) uonesuadwo) JuswAoidwaun  0T¢
%00°ST  (00°05T'y) 000 00°0SL 00°00¢ (00°000°) 00'0 (00°000°S) Soueinsuy [R3Usq  80Z
o%eb'ss,  (TT°198°90T) 000 68'980'8¢2€ 8'SIEDE (00 8v6'vED) 000 (00'8+6'pER) suesnsu] jeoips  £0C
%Ic6r  (£6'01S) 000 LO°L6v £b°1S (00°800'1) 000 (00'800°T) Buensur T 90T
%ELTL  (BT08EZS) 000 TLESLTET 96°LT6'TT (00'b£T'S8T) 000 (00°pET1'581) Wowauey eys  HOT
%06'EL  (88'€€L'ST) 00’0 79'098'tL 0463 (00°65'86) 00°0 {00'+6586) Aunoes jepos  T0C
%9ET6  (YT629'TT) 000 9£'186'721 GY'9E9°TT (00'TTS'PET) 000 00'119'%€1) sobem B SaUeleS 12Y10 68T
%8769  {Z¥'vEIZ8Y) 000 85°590280'1 1Z°8€8'S0T (00'061°695'1) 000 (00'061°695°T) 13uuosiad [eipoisny - 991
0T9ZL
%8T¥8  (6T°TL0'E6) YO"ELT £1°969'860 v L6L'6Y (00°Z¥6°16S) 00°0 {00Z¥6'165) 0TSTL 3oL
%o {107902°7) 000 66°E6L 000 (00°000'c} 00'¢ (00'000°€) juswdinby uopensuwpy  T0L
WISTPT LS 00°0 Viga¥i 000 (0c"008) 000 (00"005) sabiey) opo 665
%00°0 (00°005'1) 000 00°0 000 (00°005'1) 00°0 (00°005'T) sjeuajely puy ssiddns oo 66¢
%00'00T  TTZTH'TE 000 A WHE 000 00°0 000 000 alemyos  Tib
%Ly E0T  Lb69 9v'ZLl TEZ68'E 165 (00000} 00°0 (00°000'7) seiddns sayQ  SEV
%8Lb9  {L0'€T1'T) 8T SH'SER‘E 66°TCC {00°000'9) 00°0 (00°000'9) sayddng Suissacolg exeqg TP
%ST'Z (sT'69£7€) 00'0 S8'0EL 00°0 (00005'zE) 00’0 (00°005°2¢) SIOIAIZS PIPRIUOD JAN0  66E
%LS'0 FSvLb'D) 000 'S 000 {00°005"p) 000 (00°005'y) [oARl  GGE
2%00°0 (00"000'1) 000 00'0 000 (00'000°1) 000 {00°000°T) idinb3-s2011195 aeday puy 3dueuURl  9EE
%ZE8T  (00°STE'T) 00°0 00562 00'S6Z (00°019°T) 00°0 {00°015T) sdysPQual puy sang  OZE
%818 (SUELE) 000 S8'P6E’Y 65'€5P {00°99¢'5) 00'0 {00'89€'S) auepsy PAoidwa 212
%000 (00°0bT) 000 00°0 000 {00°0bT) 000 (00"0pT) uonesusdwo) Juawiodwaun 012
%00°00T 000 000 00°050°T 00°009 (00°050'T) 000 {00°050°T) soueinsul |musg  80Z
%or'88  (0£'008'6) 000 0£'62T°SL 92912 (00°0£6°VB) 000 (00°0£6'¥8) aaueinsu] |e2Ipal £0T
%976  {ov2) 000 09°c6 0Z'01 (00'70T) 000 {00'101) oueinsur 8y 902
%b9'08  (91'/5°8) 00'0 bB'STL'SE SL'ESE'E (00°16Z'p) 00'0 (00'T6Z'v1} wewanmay A;ms  H0Z
%8818  (P'BST'Y) 000 91'Z6L'81 9661 (0015622} 000 {00°156'22) Aundes fenos 107
%92'58  (9T'Shb'pb) 000 v8'E0L'292 9T ZEV'0E (0o'6v1'21E) 00’0 (00'6pT'21E) {suuosiad eousp 297
%1028  {L1'862°CF) 000 £8°€50°95 9b'8eE’S (00°Z5€'89) 000 (00" z5£"89) topaafiosiadng  GOT
01STL
axg Jduefeg sadjueiqunouy  saunjipuadxy  saunypusdxzy wb6png SJUBWIpUBWY  Junowy jabpng uopdirsag UNOdDY  Jaquiny JUNCoY
j°bpng passqunousun  Buipuesang 21eQ-03-Jea) I3eq-03-YIuon papusuy 196png
o
0% Jooyos asodind [eisuan IPE pund
+T 40 01 abed STOT Idy
Wd Z€1T szoz/Tu/s sy /ajed Pund Aq [QO AqQ AJewIuINg SAINYPUIEXT JO JUBLWARES 291 :Aq pazeas)
plopmer]) ejAey A9SN uoeonpy jo pieog AJuno) FuUIBIH paulaq D9 :ewep ajejdwad)



0tTLeL

%EE 68  (96'906'+HT) TELIV'S6 00°LL9'LIT'T ZI'TS6's9 (st'100'8s€’'T)  (8T'8Te’€0?) (00'E£L9'PSTT) Jueld JO ueUIUEW  OTITL 130l
%00°00T (827 00°802°21 00°8T1'16T 000 (§7'82e'c07} (8z'8ze'c00) 00 wewdinbs epo 067
%000 (00054'%) 000 00°0 000 (00°05£'%} 000 (000sL'y) wawdinby souewsiueW LT
%£8°05  (£6'595'HT) 0T'H65'8 [B'6£9'91 00025 (00°000°05) 00°0 (00000708} sebleys SYI0 665
%96'86  (25°€€2) [¢] grad & SEVETET 092 (0000522} 000 (00005°22) sjieusiely puy ssiddng Jsyi0  66F
%00°0TZ  00°005'9T S7'909°2 SL7€68'8T +9'9b9 (00°000'ST) 00°0 (007000°T) sued Ausundely puy Juswdinby - 8TY
%bLZTOTE 00081 SEbPE'ET S0'SES'T6 66'S02’E (00°000'%€) 00'0 (00°000°vE) SAMAIBS PIPRIUOD IS0  H6E
%000 (00°005) 000 00°0 000 {00°00S)} 000 (00°00S} ARyl SSE
%E€9°0TT  TH'STE’0T 80°09£ST £€'SS5bE 08'969 (00°000°0S) 000 (00-000'05) 1dinb3-sac1nsss Jleday puy dueudjuely  9EE
%6T°9TT  8ETLECE 0t'859'6T 86°ETL'21T 95'SE6'0T (00°000"002) 000 (00°000°002) AppENG-SIAAISS Jleday puy oueudjuey  SEE
%00°00Z  00°000°S SGLEE'E 5v'299'9 9/'6€8 (00°000°5) 00'0 (00"000°S) a0MRg Alpuney  6ZE
%987y  (00°008) 6£°591 Thed 16°9€ {00'aop'T) 00°0 (00 00v'T) uogesunwwoy  Z0E
%e02L  (95°b85'T) 000 o ZIE'S 88'€8Y {00°'268'9) 000 {00°£68'9) aseoipaly sehodws 212
%000 {co08g) 00'0 000 000 {00°08€) 000 (co"08¢g) uogesuadwoy waluioidwaun  0TC
%0057 (0070SE'T) 00°0 00°0Sy 000 (00'008°T) 000 (00°008'1) ssuminsul jejuaq 807
%189 (¥0'206'EE) 00'0 96°0SHbL 8T'STTL (00°€SE80T) 000 (007 £5¢'80T) 2ouemsy] jeoipald 20T
%0r'Z9  (08'59) 00'0 0Z°601 00’21 (00's£T) 000 {oosz1) asueinsur i 90<
%l6vo  (88°0v9'C2) 000 TEss Y TS'TL0'Y (00°b2sb9) 000 (00b2s'v9) Jusweunay aers  H0C
%889 (£6°090°2T) 000 10842t 20'690'2 (00'6€€°vE) 000 {00°6€€'HE) Aunoag lenos 10T
%06'9%  (£5°8S5'bbT) 00°0 £5°991°26C 06°LEV'TE (00°sTL'980) 000 (00's72'9¢b) [3uuossad dueusuel /9T
%85ve  (95°02€'8T) 00°0 b 60b'EE Ov'015'C {00°0€2'1S) 000 (00 0££'15) jouuosiad [2uap 791
%69ZL  (89°658'pT) 00°0 EorL'1s 00°0 0000999} 000 (00°00999) Jopang/iosiuadng  SOT
0r9zL
vs%eres  (59°619'604) 96°£9£'9S 6€"L0ETLT'E YL 8TL'SYE (00'169°'280'Y)  00'C (00"169°2£0°Y) 019ZL |e30L
%81°00T  0S°LT 000 05220'SY 00°0/5'9 (00°000°5T) 000 (00°000°ST) Jwowdinbg uonessdo Jueld 022
%000s  (00°005) STLST SLTPE or°'8e (00°000°1) 00’0 (00°000T) safleld B0 665
%65'90T  STHIE STI9T 00°80£'C 00'050'2 (00"000°s) 000 (0070005} Seudlel puy siddns oo 668
%LLEOT  £T'9E0°9 00°0 £2°9€0°991 66'89°7¢ {00°000°09T)} 000 (00°000°'09T) 1amag puy 1a3epm  HSh
%86'80T  TL'9TT°ZL 00'0 TLOTLHT 8b'SkL'Z1 {00°000°SET) 000 (00°000'SET) seo leneny  bED
%6216 {€679ST'L6) 00'0 LO°EP8'LT0'T £8°60p'311T (00°000°5TT'T) 00°0 (00°000'STT'T) Apuss  STH
%bb'bET  TL8ST6E LT°TEY'TY $5'978'T11 00°0 (00°000°¥1 1} 00°0 (007000'%11) sayddng jespoysnd 0T+
%1991  SO'8TS'8Y PEVTP'TT 1/°€0T'SE 00'8£6'T {00°000°82) 000 (00°000'82) SIONIFS PAPRRUO) BYID  66E
0T9ZL
aaq aoue|jeg SA0URIGWNDUI  SUMIpuRdX]  s3impuadx3y 196png sjuswpuswy  junowy Ja6png uondpsaq WUNOdOY  JOqUINN JUNCdoY
3°6png pasoqundudun  BupuEIsIND 2eQ-031-4eIA  31eq-01-YIUoW papuawy 196png
%
= jooyos asodind [eIIUd9 IHT :pund
#1 Jo 1T abeg 620z Hudy
Wd z€'z sz0z/eT/s 3wl /a3eq puna Aq [qO Aq ARWILING SUNJPPUIIXT JO JuawWIIelS oo :Aq pgear)
plomel] epie) uesny uonedNp3 30 pieog Aquno) aussin pauyeq D97 Swey ajejdwal



%618, {16°95H'T) 000 60°€TL’S S5TIS {00'0899) 000 {00°089"9) WPwaInSY S YOT
%1605 (028617 00°0 08'6£2'2 95°507 (00'82t'p) 000 (00'82t'y) Apmss jepos 10
%8079  (9€°68ELD) 00°0 YOEE8’ v 09°'66¢Y (00'€ee'?y) 00°0 (00'c2z'es) sobem g soueles N0 681
118142
%tsze  (b6¥Ts'099) €8'S80°EL ETHIS'SHO'E +5'095'S0E {oo'szr'scs’s)  (00°000'8) (00'sTT'1£L°E) 0TLZL 0L
%01°Ts (007108} 000 00°665'% 000 (00°000°6) 00°0 (00°000'6) wewdinb3 uopeyodsuett 622
%IT'TTT 7295011 S6'8Lb'6 LTLLs'1s 90'18L {00°0000S) 000 (00°000°0S) sefley) PYI0 665
%Pz (19°Thb'p) SL'8L46'T $9'620°0T W8L6T (00r00s2T) 000 (00°005°21) Seusiely puy saNddns PO 661
%/S'8ET  ETT90LL £0°097°ZE 07°085'¥bT 6982092 (00°6££'66T) 000 (00'6£2'66T) speqd opgdA  £5F
%00°00T 000 0£'b9b'81 0£'5€5'92 8b'v6Y'y (00°000°st) 000 {00°000°sH) soqnL puy saat  0Sb
%Z£9'9TT  00°000°E STHHE'S SL'SS0°ST 08'6S€ (00°000'8T) 000 {00°000°81) sueuqm  EEL
%59P9  (STT15'92) 000 SL8sbst LO°820°S (00°000°52) 000 (00"000°52) sujoses  STb
%bs'STT  88'%S8 8€'662'C 05°550y {74 ¢4 {00°00S°S) 000 (00°005'S) sayddng abetes  HZH
%6575 {€9°985'18T) 000 LEVIHTOT 85°€£1'92 {00°000'€8E) {00°000'8} (00'000°S2E) P eseia ZTH
%00'S08  00°§25°2 00°ST 00°000'E 00000 (00°008) 00'0 (00"005) SINAIRG PIPRUOD B0 66F
%9Lb9  (br'8Le?) 000 95 ILE D HE"989 (00°05£'9) 000 (000s2'®) prelL  SSE
%00'0 (00°00€) 00°0 00°0 000 {00°00€) 000 (00°00€) siuey  1SE
%zesy  (00°626'L) 00°C 00°'1£5°9 00’818 (00°00S'pT) 000 {00°005°¥T) SIIARS |usg puy [ESIpal  ObE
%Ey'EL  (29°601°2) ¥Z°906 YEYR6'Y £0°S67 (00'000'8) 000 (c0"000'8) NINUPA-SI3IAIDS Neday puy BoueUBuRl  8EE
%00'00T  00°0 1114 £5'€8L'Y oLty (00°000's) 00°0 (00°000°S) aoes Aipune  62€
%95'92  (£0°989) 0s'ZIS EH'10P'T ¥8'282 (00°00S°0) 000 (00°005°0) voneaunwwoy  Z0€
%8se8  (91°€98) 000 PAELS'ET 6b°87€°C (00°££1'82) 000 (00'¢£T82) 210ipoi Ao dwz TTZ
%00'¢ (00°00z’€) 000 00°0 0070 (00002°%) 000 (00°002'€) uonesuadwo) wswAcidwaun  0TZ
%Iz0E  (01°0Z6'%) 000 06°621'C 00°00€ (00°0s0'2) 000 (00'050°2) uensul |usa 802
%898  (b9'1£9°69) 000 9E+96'09F 1T°601'1H {00°9£3'0€S) 000 (009€9°0E9) Soueansu] jeoipa ZOZ
%658y  (bb66L) 00'0 95'SS/ LTEL {00°ssS'T) 000 {00°555°T) souennsug ayn - 90¢
%eSLL  (9L°6%6°0S) 000 ¥2'999'SL1 LT {00°919'922) 000 (00'919°922) wewamdy Mes 0T
%sT8.  (11'699'ST) 00'0 65'€£8'T6 £8'SET'S (00°€0s2T1) go'c {00'€0S°21T) Aunaag epos 10T
%bL89  {£6'652'86) 00'0 £0'bT0'91Z 00'159'p2 (00°¥8Z'v1E) 000 {00'¥87'p1€) sabep 3 saueles Y10 68T
%Sh'e8  (T€60T'vTe) 000 89°'TL9'0ETT SO'TTL'ELT (00°188'b5£°T) 000 (00'T88"%SET) s;aaua sng  9bT
%8616 (L0°8v£1T) 00°0 £6'0SS6bC b2'S1E'6T (00'662'1£2) 00°0 (0066¢1£2) (s)eysw  THl
%b1's.  (T88L°07) 000 8T'9b8'79 76'286'9 (00°5£9°¢8) 00'0 {00°5£9’¢8) sopangliosisdng SOT
0TLTL
ax3 doueleg seouRiquIUl  saunppuadxg  sounjpuadx3y ¥abpng sjuaWpuaWy juhowy 3a6png uondsaQ JUNEIDY  JBqUINN JUNCIDY
uouﬂwn pausqunousufn SuipunIsIng ajeq-03-1eaX  Neq-031-IUoK pIpudwly y36png
30 %

joolds ssoding |elou3y IPT :puny

1 40 g1 2beg STOT Iudv
Wd Z€:Z S202/CT/S tawL/eneqg pund Aq [qO Aq Asewing saJnyipuadxy JO JualNe}s 91 :Aq pareasd
paopMeI) BlARY osn uonednp] Jo pleog AJUNoy) suaIH pouleg D91 :oweN ajejdwal



%96'E9T  SHE9S'ET £9°8£0'S T8'H9E'SS 25901 {00°0v8°9¢) 000 (00°0b8°9€) sabieyd B0 665
%6tLS (b 09p) 000 U 90°4ST {91°£80'T) (o1°18%) {00'259) wawdoEadg Yeysfetans-u  vZS
%TETWT  H5'989'pT 0L°558°1E $0'0£52T 92°010° (00°00££) 000 {00°004£'vE) sleuaiely puv salddns syio  66b
%gs'99  (90/8Z°2D) FOX: 1 2: 4 25°645'61 £8'527'8 (sob1L9E) {00"005°8) (59'bT2'£E) seyddns jeuomonasu] 62
%00°00T  00°000°C LTS00'T £L'466 £0°ELT 00°0 00°0 00°0 ssyddng pooy Tk
%6579 (SL1€6'D) 000 60°'152'8 85'520'T (r8'Z81'ET) v8'p2s) (00°899°21) [oredl  GSE
%00°00T 000 00"000’8T 000 000 (00°000'81) 00'0 (0000081} sueynsuo)  80E
%00°00T  £6°SLT 00°0 £5°SL1 9r°8T 000 00’0 0070 uoneziigess PUgAH - JBweuRy 1T
‘10L'2 €480’ TY 000 T2ZHR'TT £6°pLT'T {sv'8st) {8v"s€er) 000 asenpal hoidwy 212
%00°00T  00'8SS 000 00855 000 000 00°0 000 souensy] egusq 802
%ISTT  (bL'S60'PEL) 000 64'605'56 0b'€82'8 (£5'509'628) TeTES OV (58'2€1'08) aoueInsu] [@IPSW  L0T
%00°00T 96'Sh 600 96°9% %S 000 000 000 ouesnsur 3N 902
L8t 80'519'79 000 H0O°'8E1'99 20'6259 (96'225'c) (96'225'S) 000 wouny 33@s  H0T
'00LT 00'4SL'8Y co'o 88'1£9'05 BL'E€TO'S {88'v£8'T) (88'£8'T) 00'0 Aunoss [epos 102
%I9TET  0£°SOEWOT 000 08°298'0£9 65°909'18 {05'295'929) {00°0vZ'0g) (05°7ze'965) sabem B saueles ;oo 687
%00°00T  £9'905'8 000 199058 61°Z8L 00°0 00°0 000 Juuossd jowspD 79T
00EEL
%9¥'09  (T9'veETL'9r) 00'0 8£'569'0L r'008’'s (00"0£6°9TT) 00°0 {00'0£6°9TT) 0I8ZL le10L
%z6'0s  (€8°€19) 000 L1°EES L08F (00°Lv0'T) 000 00°£+0'T) aledpayy JoAoldwz 21T
%000 (00°s2) 000 000 00°0 (00°s2) 000 (00°52) uonesuadwo) JuswiAoidwaun  OT1Z
%0005 (00°0ST) 000 00°05T 000 {00"00£) 000 (00°90¢) Sueinsu] luea 80T
%66FS  {LT'9bHPT) 000 L1891 pT2ES'T {00'860°2¢) 000 (00°860"2c)} aoueansu] [ealpaly  £0Z
%6528  (50°S) 000 S6'EZ o (00°62) Q00 (00°67) Bdueinsu 3y 902
018ZL
axgy aosuejeg saouesqumUl  saunjipuadxy  saunjipuddxy jobpng SJuSWpUIWY  junowuy }abpng uwoIdsag JUNCODY JSUINN JUNoDdY
P0pna  passqunduaun  BuipumsINo jeg-0)-1ea Ijeq-03-luoK papuawy jebpng
0%

jooyds asoding jeiausn ™WwI :pund

1 Jo £1 sbed 5207 ll4dv
Wd Z£:Z 5z02/21/5 punl /ojeq pung Aq IqQ Aq Atewiing $31N)pUadx3 Jo WIWNAS 291 1Aq pageat)
PlogMer) BjAR) LI9SM uoieanpy jo paeog AjuUno) susaun pauyag DoH1 tawep jejdwa)



%EE'69  (SG'EEY'SLE'TT) SBTOL'SEG'T S LT9'syo’sy  L1°L68°86C'S (sT'v96'9s6TL)  (ST'v9z'i86'8)  (00°00L'696°€9) L4 {pung Jod je3oL
%EE'69  (SE'EE9'SLETT) SB'TOL'SES'T Strzzo’svo’sy  LTTL6B'S6T'S (sz'v96'956°TL) (ST'¥9T'e86'8)  (00°00£'696'E9) Ie30L
%EE'69  (S6'CE9'SLETT) SB'TOL'SEE'T SpsTo'svo’sy LT L68'86L'S (sz'v96°986°TL) (szvor'e86's) (00°00L’'696'E9) [=®301
%trzs (VLE6LZ'SET'T)  06°86S'VES 9£"0V6’L0Y TS"£9V’8C (oo'ece’ses’r)  (ooese'ece’s)  (00°000°S) 00T9L I€30L
%00°0 (ou-gee’see) 000 000 000 {o0eee’ece) (o0-gee'eee) 000 puel STZ
%86y (YL09'L6L) TVLEE'ESL $1°202°6€ 10°968'€2 (00°000°065'T) {00°000°065'1) oo'o swsuacadwy buippng  £04
%0686  (00°000'S} 8L7192'18 TT8eL'89¢ 0S'TLZ'Y (00°000°s5+} {00°000°0S+) {00°000°s) spompry  HOE

00194
%TL'69 (05°00L/99%) €2'059°6 0T 0S5'v30'T LO'STO'9TT (£8'006°0¥5‘T)  (€£8'/SL'TT) (00"EPT'6TST) 00tEL €301
%000 (00°000°€)} 00’0 000 000 {00°000'E) {00000} 000 sjera3eld puy SAddng RO 66
%5T'S  (pbesL'on) £2'059'6 9T°18L'b 000 (€8°002'52) {€8°007's7) 00°0 sanddns jeuononnsul 62
%H0'TL (995189} 000 pEPE]'ZIT 90°150°91 (00°052'9€2) (00'2LE'v2) (00°8£8191) sepuaby diiqng 130 LM Spenua) - 0TE
%IgPy  (96'8ST'T) 000 ¥O TV £9°41T (000012} (06006} (000021} uonezZiges pUgAH - JuswRunEy  L1T
%l6ze  (92'660°S} 000 ¥£089'8 65°890'T (000sL'eT) 00°0SH (00°002°vY) aedipa sRAoidwy  ZTT
%00°007 000 000 000 00°0 000 0008 {00°0v8) uonesuadwo) Juswhodwaun 0T
%61be  {00°0SE'D) 000 00°0SZ 00'0St (00"00T’E) 00°00€ (00 00+'E) soueinsul feuag 80T
%5598 (bS0L8°€T) 000 9b'629°€ST 9T°Z6H'bT (00"0052LT) 00'00Z°22 (00°00£'02) soueinsu] jepal  £0Z
%018 (1£759) 000 6Z°bEC 08z (00°00¢) 00°5Z (00'szs) souemsup 3y 902
%56'59  (09°60p°€T) 000 ObOvE'Sy STOLb'S (00'052'89) 00'0S£'91 (00°005°s8) jusweuny Mg 0T
%OCES  (bO'6LE'TT) 00'0 96'0£8'9€ 0Z'06b’ {00 052°8S} 00°0S€'Z (00°009°09) AQunies jepes  10C
%6679 {0£'020°%) 000 0£'626'9 SEHT6 {00°000°TT} (00000°9) (00°000°5) SIBPe3L NSNS payipad-uoN 86T
%LL6VE  9EVVLE 00°0 9EHHT'9 €6'056't (000052} 0070052 (00°000°S) SJa2e3) AMBASANS Py S6T
%9ETL  {TT990°8T) 000 8L°EE6'69 SLTHRL (00'000°86) 00°000°TT (00°000'50T) sluejsissy jeuoseonpy €97
%999 (9E°LH5UD) 00°0 YOTSHbS 85'950'89 {00°000°218) 00°052°8C (00°0S2'SK8) siapesy 911
%EEPL  {LE7179) 00°0 £9'/86°LT 69'8LE'T (00'002'%0) (00°056°T) (00°052'22) lopaugfiosinedns - SOT
ooveEL
%6592 (ELIST'SLE) T9LvL'09 $9°S79'99T°T 9£'699°LTT (00'sZ5TO9’T)  00'0 (00°szs'z09'T) 00EEL 12301
00EEL
ax3 aduejeg souesqunauy  saunppuadxy  saunjipuadxy 6png SJUBWpUIWY junowy 3abpng uondiosag JuUNoddY  JIGUINYN JUNOODY
1@9bpng passqunduaun  SupuRasINg Jjea-03-Jes)  Aed-03-YIUoW papulwy 1bpng
JO Y%
° [ooyos asodingd [es3uss IPT :pung
t1 jo 1 abed STOT ludy
Wd 21T ST0Z/elfs tawy) /areq pung Aq [q0 Aq Alewwng SAUMIpuadxy Jo JUBIWBINS 05} :Aq paeasd
pIosmes) BiARy 119S() uoI3EONP3 J0 pieoy AJUNOD U3 pouyaq Jo1 sweN yejdwa)



sP9laud (13P3Y [00WPS

ZPT Sleo} pund

00'0
(T£'190'v98ET) SI0UR|RG PUng PUR ‘SIUNOCSIY JO SMOLUT PILIBgE( ‘salliqern) 1oL
{z1'680°00€) sopmba )L
(00°¢+00Z¢) UoREINP3 o4 PapLISy 196png SSSYE
¥Z'9ET06 UOREsNp3 204 paplnsay SSSPE
SLbHHOE 1B2A 1Ol - SSouelquIndug 17402
(s0'cz£°00T) JE3A WAUND - SOUBIGWINIU OTTHE
(65'ZL6’€9S‘ET) SIRIqen 0L
(69'020°1£2'S) (januo)) senusasy 00582
(eg'sep's8rs) (lenued) suogeudosddy 00782
000 PRIy Z6€12
000 Aunuuy djlep ¥BETTZ
000 SUEOINP3Q UON IPBS 08£1T
s Auqesia 1qesn 012
oo Hewysnup 219 44
0070 Wncaay sbuies el S9EIT
000 SSaUY 1eIAUD 3|qesn oE1Z
00°0 WOTAN S1qesn 4314
00'0 8JIT |CA d1qensn 19€1Z
000 SBIAZT pUY QUBLLYSIIRD 09€12
00°¢ 31 SIBuLe 33SSIUUIL SSEIT
000 ROURD Hqesn ESETT
000 SUT 3J1 Uuely 30RI0H (414 ¢4
000 lejuag uotedwio) 3214
00°0 Syauag duwod asgrz
000 Aem poyun 6VE1Z
000 u3pI2Y jgesn SPETT
00°0 OSVL - Suipuads xal4 - 21e@ P39S ShELZ
000 SUT S/RYDR3Y |2UOREN HETZ
)] a7 3iqesn HETT
000 SU] BYdeaL 00 1D THETZ
000 NGEIS PLOAM JuRURINY ZEETZ
000 1590 383U M1 0P 1E€T2
000 SUCHNGLALDTD JUSLLIZINSY OLETZ
00'0 uoRINP3Q 3JedIpa Ivholdw3 SZETT
000 xe| AJUnsas enos 0Ze1Z
00'e predun puy pRYLAIM XeL Swodul [s1€2 ¢4
(£0°9152p) djqeAed SOy 00112
TLT90°98°ET SIN0SIY JO SMOPINO PRLIBQA PUB BSSY |01
TLTI0PIB'ET PSSY |00
£5°2ST I3 SIA S0k JOd 3AWSTY OL PBUD dx3 0091
9SLbL'vl (1023u0D) SpUNJ 20 0L Sudysuer) 0TSHT
SHT¥S'€SRS (103u0D) Je9 JUBLING - SDIYPpURAX]y 005Sp1
60°£22'00T (louo3) soueiquindug pazepinbiun 00ZbT
£8°Z84'S0T'8 SINUBMSY pIjewnsy 00TbT
000 SJUBWUIIA0G RO wiey ang 0£PTT
(ST'£9L'01D) 33TSMUL LAM USED obTIT
WLLT sjueg uf yse) 0€TTT
Iduejeqg Gutpugz uodiL3s9Q JURCOOY J3qWNNIUNCaY
S10{0.d (24P [00YIS T :pung
Lo L ¥Bed SZ0T Iudv
WY 65:T1 S202/Z1/5 @wiL/ayeq pozy 129ys 1 pazuewoag :Aq pageasy
piogmen) epiey uasn uoiRINPI Jo piecyg AuUnoy ausalg 133Ys duejeg psuysg D91 oweN qejdway



IS"9ZT'LEY'T

(98'6€TLZ6E) %8T'0L I8°8L0'9EVT (€£'S99°TEL'S) SS'¥hL'891'8 ¥0'8T9'1ES’9 Jejol
00°0

000 %00°007 (ogc1e’on) (og'ere’or) 000 00'c 31e15 ybnouy] jelepad 2o 065.b w6
9LEL9'Y

00°0 %6166 SL€T (00°059't} 9,9y 000 JURID 1Y URd AMOSY UBDUBLIY YOvib 002
£0°262'80L

0070 %66'L8 ST'1T9bZE (88'189'8££'D) £0°€62'€0LT 00'966'¥66'T JuelD) PY Ligld SNosay Uedliawy 10v/t €6
09°'+69'T9

(99°'166°91) %bb'99 STLTI022T (18ep'152) 9€'S5Y'8/E 9£'09£'9T€ WRLWdoPA3[ Joud Jamoyuasia 681 007
8T°b65’6S

(z9°¢60'0) %96'67 ET°LLS'PIT (zz00K'0L) SELL6'YET LT€8E'SLT uonesnp3 (eany 8bTLb 00§
66'6T0'ba

000 %09°C ¥9'919'19 (»0's¥9'1) 89'192°€9 695°1€8°8 uonsinboy abienbuen ysibug STLY T0E
L0°0EL'TS

(z8'bs9'sT) %Ty 8 v88YL'ES (g2vor'os) L0°ETZ'P0T 00'€8%'TS S1URID jOOYISI4 UONEdNP3 jerads ShTLb 016
S5°€90'¥92

(s£'z8L'v8T) %E9'S9 09'E9b'TZL {(s6'8€L2LE'T) 55'702'660°C 00°6£1°5€8'T 0l Sue.D - uoiednpg [epads £b1LY 006
EEEPY'TEY

(68°9££'59T) %8£°09 8T TT8'ES6 (88'bET'SLH'T) 90°96°1€H°2 €£°70£'000°C anpJ €307 O) SHIUBIY T BLL THTLb o1t
000

@rav's %TbEL L1'€T5°6E (zs'861°607) 69'124'8¥T 69°T2L'3p1 O} SIUBID) JIseq - INPJ (eLONEI0A 1€ 008
000

000 %00°00T 000 00'0 000 000 SUPaLD uMIpuadxy 08THt 076
000

000 %00°001 00'0 000 00°0 000 SPUrUY SNOBUR|IRISIW 0L1bb X

BnUBASY JUBMIND paziledy paz(jeaJun pozieay d1A pajelnnsy jejo) SsjuswpURwY uondudsag uoiPUN pund-qns

% /353 Jeuibuo
spafold |es2pad J00YIS YT G puny

€ Jo 7 abed SZ0T pdy pazuewwns

WY 0S:6 5Z02/TT/S :3wj/eleq POZLIPWILING SSNUIAIY JO JUWJE}S JUSWIEYS BnusHoY :Aq pajessy

puoMeL) BIARY HE uonedNpy Jo pieocg AJUno) IUdI9 pauyag Do Swey ajejdwa)



TS 9ZTLE9'T

(98'STL'T6E) %810, T8'8L0°OEP'T {££'599°2€L'S) SSb/'89T’8 Y0°8T19'TES’D Z¥T  :pungJod [e30L
SNUIAIY Juaun) pazyesy pazjjeasun pazyeay Al pajewnsy 3oL sjusWpudy uondudsag uonouny pund-qng
% /153 reujbuo
spRloid [e1spay [00LRS T pund
£ Jo g 3bey SZ0T udy PoZUEWING
WY 05:6 5202/Z1/s w1 /sieq PRZIJEWWNS SSNUIAY JO JUDWEIS juswels anUIHSY :Aq pajeadd
plomer) ejAey BETNY UoREINP3 JO pavog AJUNOD IUSID pauysq D91 Dwep ajejdway



%9002,  {08°15T) 00°0 0Z'SSE 08'vE {00°£08) (00°8€) (00°69%) uemsuf a3y 90T
%599 (62'T1L'62) 00'0 T£'SE0°6S 05¢8Y'9 {00°ZbL'88) (00°zos'or) (00°5v6°2L) Jusuwamay s H0T
%8eE9  (ST966°ET) 000 SCEES' Y €999 (00'0ESS9) 000 (00°0£5799) Auross jepog 10T
%S0'1E  (S0°'8¥E'6) 000 Sb'602'Y 09°262 (05'¢55'€T) (00°005°T) (05°£50°2T) siaLpeal AMNSGNS paynisd-uoN 86T
%112 (8£°80EW) 000 TTLSTT 0£'9%T (06's9b'S) 00°0 (06'59v°5) SI9YdeRL AMASANS PaYRPD  S61
%I10'S9  {(08'STE'SS) 000 0Z'1L£'80T 00'T6€'ET (00°£89'99T) (00°000°2T) (00°£89"6bT) sibojowed yoseds 141
%66'62  (TZT'ZES'TET) 000 68°62£'02% 90°S0b b (oT'291'858) (S5°€T16'E12) (55'8¥2'60€) sjuelsissy (euoneanpl €97
%9019 (b9'TLb20T) 00'0 9£'659'091 '280°0T (00'1£7°€92) 00°0 (00 1€1°€90) syesl 91T
weusfiolrd uoneonpy [e133ds  QOTTZ
Y%se'es (15TSLTTL) SYEVYTY 60'T69°606'T 6"89€'19T (60'¢88'eT£T) (1£v66'TL8) (8£°z68'0t8'T) weiBolgd uogonnsut senBoy  00TTZ 9301
%0r06  (Z8ZIZ'0v) vT'£80'E $SIBb'SLE 5198’y (09°19£'8TH) (09°792'6£€) (00°000°6€) Jwawdinb3 uoponnsup senbay  22L
%6P8  (Z6°STT'Y) 000 SL'856'TT 000 (£9'pL0'bT) (£9%£0'8) (00°000°T1) sjeu)eyy puy sayddns BYO 661
%b6'E0T  BS'E6E'E] 1670£8'ST LEOTLLES 00'299°S (00°85T0bE) {00'8p1'0S1) (00"000°061) emyos  TLp
%EB6  (267461°8) PE'SYSTT LL81T'9E 2L'018'65 {£0°296'9€E) (e b15'092) (1£°4b5°91T) sayddns jeuononisu - 6ZH
%bT'T9  (EE'TTL02) 000 9 E65'ZE 000 {6£'50€°€S) (gL 566'52) (¢001E'8E) S30|AIRS papenuoD AP0 66€
%00'0 (00°000'p) 000 000 000 (00°000°) 000 (00°000'%) PRUIMED-UON - S QNS Jed suwD  04€
%000 (60°000°9} 000 000 000 {00°000'9) 00°0 (00°000°9) paynIE) - SIBYdea) qng Jod spPAUD  69E
%ssy  (£4620°0T) 000 £2°046'8 44 x4 (00°005'8T) (00°002'7} (00'00€"9T) sresipa hodus 21T
%00°00T 000 000 0070041 000 (o000L'T) 000 (00'002'1) uonesuadwo) wawhoidwaun  0TZ
%Lz (00009'7) 000 00°009 00°0 (00'002'T) 00°00Z {00°00v°2) doueunsul (Musg  80C
%2529 (66'bbL'09) 00°0 10°SS2'9ZT 69°€SLTT {00°000°281) 00'0 (00'000°28T) ueinsu] s L0T
%80, ($B'69) 00°0 91°S9T SEZLT (00's€2) 000 (00°s€2) uesnsup 0 902
%96'6p  ((8PEQ'TH) 000 £1°596'0% L6°L69'p {00"000°28) (00°000°6) (00"000°€2) WPy 3els  $OZ
%bT 8P  (89'99Z°L€) 000 TEEELVE SLETE'E {00°000'22) {(00°005'p) (00°00529) Aunxs lepos 107
%00'00T  SOZIS 000 50°Z1S {11 000 000 00'0 SI9YoLa| MMNSANS payeD-uoN 86T
%0Q00°00T E£60T 0070 €L60T €00 00°0 000 000 Siayoea) Amnsgns payna)  GeT
%zesy (087 TLE'%6E) 00°0 05'879'E 00°S8€ (00°000'22) (00"000'20) 000 sobem g sauejes oY 68T
9%ZEYs  (LEZPS'GE) 000 £9'25¥'sY 98268t (00"000'08) (00°000'6€) {00°000°TH) suegsissy jeuageonps €91
%9p9s  {9T+98'8Zh) 00'0 +8'SET'9SS 1£°681'59 (00"000°s86) 00700022 {00°000°250°T) siayes) 971
weiboid vonpnnsug Jenbay QOTTZ
ax3y duejeyg sasuesquumduy saunipuadxy  sainypuadxy ebpng sjuswpuIwy junowy }3bpng uondids3a@ JUNODDY  J3qUINN FJUNOIDY
W¢b6png passqumduaun  Bulpuersind eq-03-1La\  I3eg-03-YIUOoW papuswy 326png
30 %

5193{0.1d jesopag |O0YIS TPT  pund

S JO 1 obed §Z0T judy
WY £0:07 520Z/C1/5 eyl /a3eq pund Aq [qO AgQ Aewilung saJnjipuadxy §o Juawiels 91 *Aq pajeasd
piojmel) eAE)y Josn uoREINPg Jo pleog AJUNO) auaaLD pauysg D97 :aweN 3ejdwag



%00°00T 000 00'c 00°0ST 00°0 (00'0ST) 00°0 (oo 0sT) duRINsu] [ewRa 80T
%58 (05'THE'D) 000 0E'SES’0E 06941 (08°9£8'p€) (08"9£8'T) (0000507} soueinsu] |eoIpaN Z0T
%EST6  (00°€) 000 ob'ZE (17481 {ob'sg) (av"0z} (oo'sT) souemsur N 90T
%858 (b2'690°2) 000 06'€80°Z1 SEETE (p9'EST'PT) (b9°gsL'8) (00°00t°s) wawaiRy s H0T
%018 (81462 00'0 20°9S2°01 56'692 {0z ess‘zr) {0z 'esv's) (00°001°9) Aunxes jepos  T0C
%0005 (0070521 000 00°0sZ'1T 00'0 {00"005°22) 00°0 (00°005°22) sabep, 8 Soejes PYID 68T
%9L88  ($9°720°07) 000 9€°2£0'8ST L9VEEY (00°00T'8£7) (00°00961T) (00°005'85) |ouuossad 3vuepns  £CT
Hoddns Juspms 230 OETZL
%00'00T 00°0 000 TTTER’90T 000 (zz°'1€8'907) (zz'1€8'901) 00'0 SOJARS PIeaH  0TTIZL 1€wdL
%00°00T 000 000 p608TT 00'0 (+6°081°T) (v6'081°1} 000 el PAodwy 71T
%00'00T  00'C 00°0 PIHIT0T 00’0 (p9y17'01) {9v12'ot) 000 dueinsu] |eP3l  L0T
%00'00T 000 000 00'81 00'0 (00°81) (o081) 00°0 soueinsup 3y 90T
%00'00T 000 000 98°£76'8 000 (98°£26'8) (98°£26'8) 000 Wy 3ms 0T
%00°00T 000 000 ¥5'640'S 000 (+S°640'5) (b5°610°S} 000 Anoss lepos 10T
%00°00T 000 000 (Zaz dt 00'0 T rb18) T r'18) 000 jouuosIRg [ipe  TEY
SAVIAIBS BB  OZTZL
%Z1'98 (S6'T09°VT) 00°008°t 75'864'S8 00°SST'9 (zv"00z's0T) TZ°1T0°6 (69"TZTTHIT) wesb01d uoREdNPI IEUOREI0A  DOSTL J&OL
%00°00T  00°0 000 7562681 000 (eseL6'81) TTT20'6 {pLv66°L7) Wewdinb3 uondnusuf feuoeson  OEL
%Z6'66  (00°52) 007008 00'5£0'5Z 00's51'9 (00°006°62) o0 (00°006°62) sjeuaiei puy saiddng o 66
%ZThL  (S6'9L5'%1) 00'0 00°052'Ty 000 (56'9Z£95) 00°0 (56°92£°95) alemyos I/
welbosd uoneInpy jeuoneson  00ETL
%9t'89 (Z8'689°80S) (193 4 96"L¥9'T0T'T E€L0TL'OET {c6'v8c'z19's) (T9°€L€’002) (SETTV'TIV'T) weuboug uonesnp3 (epads  00ZTL 12101
%Is¢T  (80°504'6) 66'650'C 000 000 (¢0'59£'11) £6°SE (oo oz1'ZY) Juawdinb3 uoneonp3 fepads  SZL
%E509  {TTovb'e) 0Z'£8€ 86'555°Z1 000252t (ov'£8€°12) (00"06€'TT} (ore66's) S|euel puy sayddng 1210 661
%I0E (00 L1L'0T) 000 00°€E€E 00'0b1 (00°050TY) {00-000'6) {00050°2) sajiddns euagongsu] 629
%000 (00°052) 000 000 000 (00°052) 000 {o0'0s2) SSOIAIRS PIEQUE) BRO  66E
%EEE8  (L5'99L'T) 00°0 €5°£88'bT 00°0 (00°089°4T) {00°000') (00°059°€T) 1dinb3-se0nRs seday puy dueustuR  9EE
%Sy'zh  (0b'p65'2S) 000 09°06%'2 SH'809'y (00°sg0‘001) 00'ST6'66 {00°000°002) Sepusby slemid yim speaue)  CTE
%00°00T  0£°0 000 0£'0 000 000 000 000 uonezyiqes PUAAH - uswaugy  L1T
%LE'E  (LEPTI'S) 000 £9ETL6 £E'T60T {o0'8ze'sT) 00°0 (0¢8Z£'s1) ayealpap sAojdwy  TTT
%917 {0€802'1) 000 $9'9¢ 000 {oo'sez'n) 000 (00's£2'T) uonesuadwon awAcdwaun 012
%091z {00°018°€) 000 00°050°T 00°0St (00°098'v} 000 (00'038') dueinsul jwag 80T
%8578  (Or'Svy'Ly) 000 09°Zh6'vCZ +0"S6E'Z2 (00'16€'2£2) (00°000°¢€} (00°16€692) duensul [expap  L0T
weiboid vonednp3 jenads  Q0ZTL
ax3 aduejeqd sadueIquinduz  sunjipuadxy  saunjpuadx3 136png SjusWwpusWY  jJunowy 336png uoididSaQg JUNCIDY  JAQWINN JUNODY
126png pausqunoualun  Guipueising aeqg-oj-iess  INea-03-YHUoK popuswy 3a6png
4O %

spalosd |esapad [ooyds T i puny

S Jo ¢ obed STOT (1dy
WV €0:0T §202/21/8 iswl /aeq pun4 Aq £qQ Aq Atewiwng Sa4njipuadxy Jo JuUaWANLIS 291 :Aq pajessy
plomen) ejAey uoQeanpy jo pieog A3uno) auaaly pauled o1 dweN jejdwag



%LLv9  (16°THE'S} 000 80'659'T1 SLOLEY (66°000°8T) (66'82) (0ozze'21) Aunaag jepos 10T
%6579  (95°6¥6'T¢€) 000 G5'90b'ES 89'91Z'9 (11°25¢'58) (11'p£2'1) {00°8£0'v8) sabeps g sauejes o0 68T
%269, (0T'vST'6) 00°0 08'bb8'0E 09°£E6'T (00°660'0) 00'0 (00'660°0b) (supemes 191
%0e'0L  (9£7556°8Y) 000 42°888'STT €0°984'b1 (00'+8°$91) 000 (00 ¥8°P9T) puuosiad joipsy TET
weibold uoReonp3 |eRads  0ZZZL
%Ee'9s  (00°¢8T'6EE) 66'98Y'ST 06'086°0€EY 76°690°TE (e v59’s8L) (zeo6T'LvT) (£5'p9£’BES) weiboud uonpniysuy Jeinbay  0TTTL (€0L
%00'0 (000052} 00°0 000 000 (00 0050 (00°005) {00°000°'2) juswdinbg WO 06
%000 (000081} 000 00°0 00°0 (00°008'7) (00'008'T) 000 uswdinbg uogeredp Jueld 074
%ST'Y (LL'8rb'vbT) 00°009'6 0L'se 000 (L6'6L0'%5T) (€8°¢68"941) W9'9LT'L) sabieyy B0 665
%bloz  (18°286'87) 6THLET 56°00£59 PreLs's (50°850'26) (88'v£0'60) (£17¢86°29) wawdopaeg Jasfoomss-ul - IS
%OTZE  (66°LET'ET) 0L20s’E 0£'LETY vE6LT (66'£88°02) (eT¢9t’e) (9£029TT) sleusyeiy puy sayddns 2po 664
%esLz  (97°652°€) 0070 bLOvZ'T 856 (00°00S"r} (00°008) {00°000'%) PARIL  SSE
%S8'S9  (2E910°2) 00°0 80°888°C £9'582 {0b'+06°S) {ov294) (00281's) JiedIpa Jskoidus 21T
%000 (00"0627) 00°0 000 000 (00082} 00°0 (00°062) uopesuadwo) Juawhoidwaun 0T
%0005 {0000¢) 00'0 00°00€ 00°0ST (00°009} 00'0 (00°009) ueinsuy |puaq 807
%8728  (£9'992'6) 00'0 358 3387 95°250°% {00°00T'¥S) 00°0 {00°00T'¥S) soueinsu @psl  Z0T
%t69.  (€STTD) 000 Lb'8E ¥5'E (oo708) 000 {00°0%) sueinsup 3y 90T
%679 (T1°861°TT) 000 Lb'SHO'6T £2°0L2'1 (85" E¥T'0€) (85'%80°S) (00°'651°57) uswaiRsy 15 07
%b0Z9  (07°850°8) 00’0 0Z'88€E'9T 6€°€90°T (0¥ 9vb'p2) (0v'96T°E) {008b2'12) Auioas jezos 10T
%818, (09°95€°S7) 00°0 Ob'EP8'06 000 {00002°911) (00'00z‘05) (00000'99) sobem g soueles G 681
%1159 {15°9£8'9S) 000 6v°£21°501 8THL0TY (00°000°€9T) 000 (00°000'€91) sayoeo) jeuonnisu] 2T
%86'0Z  (oy'LeL’oT) 00°0 09°792'92 02'108°7 (00°000°28) 000 (00"000°2€) (s)uepnss 19T
%1eTs  (e8°906°02) 000 L1°€50°TS ££°798's (00°000"€2) 000 {00°000°cs) Jopangflosiniedns  SOT
weibolg vondnasur Jenbay  0TZZL
%ev2s  (TTT80°08) ££°£8Y'9T LT 68T 'BST 99'8LL'6 (19°858°PSE) (T8'€6€'TLT) {00°'59v'€8T) Yoddng Juapmis BP0 0ETTL 12300
%E6LS  (LTTL9'6) 85910y LEEEE'S L£°012°1 (zz'120'cd) (ze'Teo's) {00°000°7) ssbeyd PO 66S
%2586 (£9°S81) 000 LrEIETy 00D (00°005°Z1) 00'0 (00°005°ZT) WawidoEARQ JeIs/eomas-u]  ¥ZS
%STHr  (00°56£'8T) SL0LY'TT 01'€8E'0T 92'v86 (s8'819'15) (58'8+9'6) {00°000°Tr) Sjeuzey puy salddns B0 664
%00°0 (00°008) 000 00'0 00°0 (00°008} (00°008) o0'e SIOIAIRS PAPEIUCD PO 66E
%5916 (§T°5Z1) 000 SLBLE'T b8'SET (00°005°1} 000 (00"005'F) P SSE
%st'zs  (01'129) 000 09°'B6E'T £1°€9 (0£'616'7) {oL612'T) (0000Z'1) aleopan Jekoidws 212
%00°001 000 000 00°00T 00°0 (00001} 000 (00"001) uonesuadwio) Justwiodwaun 012
Moddng juspm§ 1330 0€TZL
ox3 aduejeq sdueIqWNIU]  saimpuddx3  saimyipuadxy ¥9b6png SjUaWpUBWY  junousy Jobpng uondpsag JUNCI3Y  JIGLUAN JUNODDY
196png pasaqundusun  Buipueising 93ed-03-1e3A  JEQ-03-YIUOW papuuy Wb6png
30 %

5139(0.44 jeiapad jooyos THT 1 puny

S Jo £ abeq SZ0T ludy
WY £0°0T SZ0T/Z1/S :awi) fareq pund Aq [qO Aq AlRLULING S3INEPUDMAXT JO JUIWANRIS 37 :Aq pajeaud
piopmeid ejAe) %N uoReINP3 Jo pleog AJunod UL pauyaq Do awep sjejdwa)



%lT9Z (SCEEL'0L8'T)  SO6TE'TON S6°E€9°948°S L 6E9'96E (s5°£69'8v8'2)  (15°9TT°289°T)  (v0'1ZS'TIZ'9) tejoL
%LT'9L (SL'€5L048°T)  SH'6ZE'TOT S6°€E£9'948'S 1L'6£9'86E (ss'¢69'sv8’L)  (15'9TV'2E9't) (vO'TLS'TIT9) 1e30L
%906  (00°000°9€) ag'o 98°LbL YT 000 (95°L¥£'0S) (95" L¥T’0T) (00'0050€E) IO sidysuRll  DOT66 1€OL
%906  (00°000°9€) 00°0 95°LbL BT 000 (95°Lb£'08) (95°£42'02) (00°00s°0€) wop waupul  HOS
g su9jsuell  pOT66
%0£'66 (ST'v9sP) 00°0 bLLE0°TTS'T 000 (68'T09°92S’T)  IT'E0P'68 {00'S00’9T9°T) Aepng (euded Jeinboy 00792 I®AOL
%00°00T 000 000 9€'09£°980'T 000 (9€'09¢'980'1) (s¢-g8z'8eT) {00'720°856) awdnb3 uonesdg ueld 074
%9686  (ST'¥9S'P) 000 8€'LI9'SEY 000 (ES'TH ObY) LP'169°1T {00 €€6°259) uodngsuo) buiping 90
Aepno jeyded sejnbay  00T9L
%000  (007005°2) 00°0 000 000 (00"005°2) 00'0 (00°005°2) uvogepodsued)  0¥ZTZ =01
%00°¢ (00°000°) 000 00°0 000 (00°000°S) 000 (00°000°s} sabsey) N0 665
%00°0 (0070052} 000 000 000 (00°005°2) 000 (00°005'2) SIBUMO IPIYSA YIM sPequo)  STE
uonepodsuell QOTLZL
%LSLE (21°S8P°T) 00'0 88 PIS'T 90TEL (00°000’t) 00°0 (00'000°p) weifoid UOREINPT [RUOREICA  OETZL {ei0L
%y  (28°595°T) 000 Y PEL'T 81°689 (00"c00'E) aoe (00°000°€) Wswdopasq yeis/eomas-ul  HZS
%b0'8 (09'616) 00'0 0+'08 88Tk (00000'1) 000 (00°000°1) [pARl  GGE
weibold UOREINPT [BUORIOA  OEZTL
%EE'EL (6670L8'FST) S8'¥99°0Z T8'$60'S0P ot +T8'8S {s9°0£9°08S) {00'0Z¢’'91T) (s9°01Z'v9v) weiboid uogeonpy jepads  0ZZZL €101
%8s (50'516) 000 567821 SE'6HE (00'002'2) (00'000°1) {00'00z'1) sabieyd 20 665
%b0H9  (19°6b5°5) 00°£06 ¥0°086'8 90°592 (59°2e4'ST) (00'00e"01) (so'zer's) WaWwdo[3Asq Yers/mas-ur TS
%E0'06  {51°262°2) S8'19L'6T 00'9%6 00°9+6 (00°000'c2} (00700522} (00005) sleuanely puy salddng a0 66F
%eez  (00'060°T) 00°0 00°0TH 00°0TH (00°005'1) (00005} {00"000°1) SARS PIPRIUO) Y0 66E
%Ipbs  (L6'S6T'8) 00°0 E0'H08'6 0T'68.'T (00°000'81) (o0-000'0T) (60°000°8) eresL  SGE
%000 (0o-cot) 000 00°0 000 (0o 001) 000 (00°00T7) sebiey) jexsod  8bE
%000 {coro0t) 000 00'0 00'0 {00°00T) 00°0 (o0001) 1dinb3-53A13S sleday puy soueuuiely  9EE
%P6'Es  (S5°8/8°02) 00'c SPICT'60T 8S'ETHET {00°000°0 1} (00°000'0L) (00"000°09) Sa0Uaby 332Ald YU SpRBU0D)  CTE
%ELvd  (1L°SBP'T) 000 9£°92L'T 19°0¢€ {yTr'y) {p'81) (00'v6TD) P PAodwa 21T
%0070 (00°££7) 00°0 000 00°0 (00'zeT) 000 (00°££T) uonesuadwo) Juswhordwaun  0TZ
%zo'es  (00°STD) 00°0 00°009 00°0ST (go'stR) o0'o (00'sT8) Lueinsy] [euag 80T
%E0'18  {ST'6bT'0T) 000 SL0BL'EY £OLOV'Y (00°00'bS) 000 {00°0p0*1S) ssueunsuy [e31paly 0T
%S08, (00°LT) 000 00°€9 0€'9 (00'08) 000 (00°08) aduensuL 37 90C
%ES'89  (LT8HTL) 00°0 9T°695°ST 1£°582°T (evetL'ze) (eb'9rs) (00°696'12) wswany ayems  H0OT
wesbosd uoneanp3 eads  0ZZTL
ax3y aduejeg sasuesquindug  saunjipuadxy  sainypuadxl yabpng SHUSWPUBWY junowy jobpng uondpsag WUNoddyY JSQUINN JUNOIDY
w=bpng passqunousun Bulpuxsang 91e(Q-03-1Ed  SJ2F-0)-IUOKW poapuduy 396png
3O %

spsfoid [esapad |ooyds YTt puny

§ Jo  abed SZ0Z (udy
WY €0:0T SZ0Z/Z1/S awi]/areq Pung Aq [qQ AqQ AlRWLUING S3NNPPUIEXT JO JUBWIRILIS 291 :Aq pajeald
pIopMEL) RAR)Y 9sn uonedMpy §0 pieog AJuno) IuIn pauyag D91 eweN jejdwa)



%eT9L  (SLEEL’0L8'T) SO'6TETOT S6°'EE9'9L8’'S TL'6€9'86€ (ss'e698vs’s)  (1S°9TV’£€91)  (¢0'TLS'TIT'9)

LT pund Jo4 [ejoL

ax3 duejeg suelqumouy  saunjipuadxy  saunypuadxy 3ebpng SjuswIpusWY  Junotuy 3P6png uondi>SoQ JUNO0Y  JOQUINN JUNDIDY
196png posaqunoudun  BulpuesIng  ANeqg-ol-ded)  Neg-03-Yauop papuawy yebpng
40 %
spafoid [e1apad |ooyds TFT : pung
S jo G abeg STOZT Iudv
WY €0:0T SZoT/er/s PwiL/aeq Pung Aq [qO Aq Alewung S3IN3puadxd JO LIS 291 iAq pajeas)

piomel) ejAey uIsn uoedNpy Jo pieog AJUNo) audaly

peuyRg o7 Bwep syedwal



epR33yed [eu3)D

EPT S|220] pung

00'0
(69'662'860°LT) souRjeg pund pue ‘SsaNOSaY JO SMoyu] pauajag 'sopIpgery |e0)
(85°6¥9°'578°7} ssmba o1
00°000'00E 43S ISUT-UON JO UoNRIdAQ 103 papLsaY 19Bpng 0ZSbE
(bt'085£62°) 135 1Su[-UON JO ucnesad Jod paRLaSTY 0LSbE
00°'L68'L6T Jes), Joild - ssoueIquInoul 0ZIbE
(b1°991°92) e, JURLITY - SFOURIGINOLI [13¢<3
(erort'ece’s) saniqen  jeoL
(1£'2£0'105°€) {lanuo)) senuanay 00982
(00°60C°2LLY) (1anuo)) suogeudaddy 00182
000 [euaq uouedwo) 1S€1Z
000 ayr 3yqesn wWeT
00'0 Sul Jeyaest 0] 19 {214
000 SUORNALILCD JUSWRAURTY 0£€TZ
000 uoipnpaq aseips 33A0dwy SZETT
000 XeL AQundas |enog 0ZETZ
0Z'sé diqedeq sunooy 00112
69°S64°860°TT SOUNOSVY JO SMOJAND PAIRAJBQ pue IIsSY | R0L
69°S6L'860°TT nIsSSY  |e0L
16'+82'928° {1aquod) Jeas Juaun) - sanypuadxq 0051
¥1°991°9C (lenuoD) sazwesquunouz pajepnbiun 00zHT
00'602'2LY'Y SANUBADY pajernsy 00LHT
000 SUULLIRACY JBYID Woly anQ OEPTT
000 21qEN3I3Y KUNODY 0THIT
S9'SE6'TLL'T 3NSTUL YIM yseD U494+
66'66T'T 3ueg uf ysed 0ETII
aduejeg Supug uondLpsag Junoddy JILINNIUNCIDY
BLBI9JED [eNUID €pT Pung4
} 4o | abed €Z0T wdy
Wd £0:Z1 Sz0z/el/s saunl/xeq PIZURLIWAS JPIYS Fouejeg p3ziRWYeg *Aq pneas)
paymesy ejie)| s uoReINp3 40 pieog Ajunc auswue 198YS due(eg puYR] 97 e Nejdwsy,



(80°£96°0S¢T) %S8T 8L 69'9LT'TL6 (TE°TEOD'TOSE) 00'60Z°2LY Y 0070 00°60T°2UY'Y {24} ipung 104 2101
TOO 000 U0 0 TG00 OO0 000 000 SUIISNVHL DNLLYE3d0 1910L 0006V
000 Jo0pnd ON 000 000 000 000 000 Siejsuel] bugesan 0096k
TOO VoS 36 ZE EhP T8¢ 1E0Z96 110c)  UOTIFEGLE OO0 OO LIPEGLE TNIRNEIA0D 1983033 19101 O00ZF
000 %GO ZE% {Z0v01 81} {Z0v96'99) 00095 v 000 00 098 8 RO - vasn (2727
000 %S55°€0T (£9'918VC) (g£972£8'€2L) 00°9T0°669 000 00°910'669 sepjealg laa 94
000 %00°0 00°2Ze10E 000 00°2ZE10¢ 000 00°ZCE'T0E SSIpoWWa) ¥asn iy
000 %/6°86 L0TH0ET (£6'0/1°T22°2) 00°eT2'¥be'e 000 00" €IV Youn-ucipness 194 Vi~
TOO0 V281 D6 YZ o501 GC ECT 1E) OO UBS CE 000 D0 088 CE TISCINNIL 30 3115 TWI0L O009%
000 Y%B1'96 TL85¢CT {(ecec91e) 00'08B'CE 000 00DBB ZE SD[AISS PoCS [0043S 0Z55%
EEE00T — WGECTTE0T  \EEZITB0T)  (EECIL 60V 000001 000 00000 T SNEASE V50T 53010 19101 OO0F
000 J80pNg ON 000 oo 000 000 oo'o SPUNJaY 3STW [TA e
{S6°6£0°0T) %ECTI60T (€€2TT'80T) (€€°2TT'60T) 00°000°T 000 00°000°'T pauwie] sassiu] et 4
TETZt60ve] AR 500506 \OUGCLOVE)  OUBIGPPLY TG00 =00 BTETETT  SIDIAGIS INJUEND HOd SIDUVAD 1VIOL OO0y
l£6'608°E9E) %9 Br 80'T19's02 (€6'159'%61) 00'eE9 00k 000 0O'ESC U0F SEES SHED B Y GESER
(00°2£6°2) %18 SS'0CS b1 (S'808°CT) 00'62E'¢ST 00'¢ 00°62£°LST Jsepiealg wol4 aWwodul | X424
(0SH02°'6v) %SL 6L ZTECE LT (8/'/12'89) 00°1$5°58 000 00°THS°S8 S NPY-SiUswied Yyoun (44154
(99°5£6'61) %8¥ b1 60'vE1 6ck {16°059°2L) 00°G8£°10S 00°0 00°682°10S UUpJIyD-SjUsWARY (oum TCSEY
INUBAIY JUBLIND) pazijeasun pozyedy dlA pajewnss [e30L SjudpUIWY 353 |euIblIO

e|3194e) [RAUD T : pung

T JO T abed S$TOT ludy pun4 gns Aq

JUBWIBIR]S SNUBASY
Wd £0:2T SZ0Z/21/S :Pwil /a3eq pung-qns Aq SaNU3ASY JO JusLINES 991 iAq pajeald
plomen) ejaey M9sn uonRkEdNp3 Jo parog AJUNGY) dUIBVIDH pauueg D91 DdWeN gejdud )



%EL 08 (56°£52'616) ¥1°991°9Z 16'¥8Z'9Z8'E 6T'EZS V6V (0060z'zLL’y) 000 (00°60T°TLL'Y) EPT (pund 104 €01
o%EL 08 (S6£SL'6T6) YT99T°9Z 16'¢82'9T8’E 6T°ELS Y6V (o0'60T'TLL'Y) 000 (o0"60Z'TLL'Y) oL
%€eL'08 (S56'452'616) 199195 T6'¥ST'9T8'E 6L ETS V6V (o0'60T'TZL'Y) 000 (00°602°2LL'Y) leloL
%eL08  (56°252°616) PI°99T°9T 16'¥BT'9L8’E 6T°ETS' V6P {00'60Z°TLL'Y) 0O (00"607°2LL YY) :das pood  00TEL [e30L
%6E'18  (96°€8€'86) 60°46b'9 $6'689'€Tl Sb'ESE'se (00°1£5'825) 000 (00°'1£5'825) wRwidinbg aoses pood  0TL
%ev'sg  (09'0¢8) 00°0€8 or662'y 000 (00'000'9) 000 (00°000'9) sabueyd oo 665
%00°00T Eb'T 000 T 610 00°0 000 000 uolssiwwo) sasnl - 0TS
%616  (T10°ZE0'T) 16°520°E 80°0¥L'8 000 (00'86£°21} 000 {00'86£'TT) sjeusie puy sanddng Jxno - 66b
%000 {00°zze'108) 000 000 000 (00°Z2€'10€) 000 (00 zes 10E} sagipowwo) - epsny 69
%00'00T 0070 61°921 19°€48'2 000 (00°000°€) 00°0 (00°000°5) sayddng aoy)o  SEb
%8998  (0S+ZH'20S) 00°0 0S0B0'€0E’'E pTbS0'TY (00°s05°018'€) 000 (00'505°018°€) SAVIIDS PAPRIUOD B0 66E
%96ZT  (eb°048) 000 £5°671 000 {00°000°T) 00'0 {00°000°T) AR SSE
%00'0 (00°000'S) 000 000 000 {00°000°S) 00°0 (00"000'S) suLiod puy Auonels ‘Gunuud  6PE
%00°0 {007000°E) 00'¢ 000 000 {00°000°€} 00°0 (00°000°c) sofiuey) jeisod  8bE
%98'TyT  00°000°ST S6'989'ST SO'ETE'PE £0°209 (00°000°SE) 00°0 (00"000°sE} 1dinb3-s0jARS Jieday puy dueuUEKW  SEE
%SEST  (82'¢S8Y) 00°0 TLLHS'T 000 {00°005'9) 000 (00°005'9) vopesunwiwey  £0E
%5992 (0B'bHT) 000 0T'SLb 0Z'sk (007029) 000 (00°029) aseoipajy s2koidw3 1T
%000 (00°0£) 000 00°0 00°0 (00°0£) 000 (000£) uogesusdwod wawAiodwaun 01T
%000 {0070s1) 00°0 000 00°0 {00°0sT) 000 {00°0ST) aoueinsul eweg 802
%6628  (00°SOT’T) 000 005608 00'SS< (00"002°6) 000 (00°002°6} Soueinsu] jexpa  Z0T
%0008 (00°€) 000 00721 0zt (00°ST) 000 (oo sT) aoueinsur o 90T
%898,  (BTEWO'T) 000 2L6Y8'E ¥9°99€ (00°€68'p) 000 {00°€68'%) wewaimey s 0T
%00'8L  (21°€L8) 000 88°1£0°C $'€6T {00°509°7) 00'0 (00°509°2) Aunoas epos 10T
%898,  (0b'bS6'8) 000 09°SHOEE 0TLP1'E 00°000°2H) 000 (00'000°Z) |uuosRg jeopep 29T

00TEL
ax3 aJuejeg seoueJqWINDUZ  saunjipusdxg  sainypuadxy 396png sjuWpuURWY  junoluy Jabpng uoidinsa( JUNOIOY  JaqUNN JUN0dY

wbpng passqunousun  Buipueising ajeq-0j-Jea)  eq-o03-YIuow papuawy 1abpng

30 %
elga)e] [enuaD e€PT  pund
T Jo 1 9beq §707 ludy

Wd 90:2T 570Z/Z1/s iy faged puny Aq [0 Aq AJewwns S3INUPUadX3 JO JUBWANEIS 91 :Aq payessd
plojmer) ejAex (198N uoResnp3 jo pieog Ajuno) sualn pauysq D91 PweN ajeduwia)



000 spolod jepde) uopesnpl LL3 190y puny

(6T'566'9€L°CT) Jed pund pue ‘s, 30 Smou] PRUIRJRA ‘SIALGET IOl
(ge'86£°€09°CY) saginby |ej0L
12'650'SHLET paubisseun = = ~0006€-£L1
(00'T15'S80°T) s350dung JLAQ 104 PRRLSIY = - 06SYE-LLT
(08 12¥'bS6°€T) 313 - 53{0ud [ende) Jod papLASAY - 31D -SBSYE-LZT
(b2 b61788£701) 1ga) 10U - SROURIGUINDUT - - OTTRE-LLT
(00'0££°0ZT) g9 3UAUN) - SadUelqUINDU B 11442721
(96°96T‘€€6°6) sopgIqen (el
(00'ers'1e) saxe) Auadoid Jusnbuiag paussag = = -SbB6Z-LLT
(00'8v6°0£Z'T) soxel Aysdaid WeLND pawagea - - -ObB6Z-LLT
{96'550°€82°4) {1enu03) sanusAzy - - -00S8Z-4£1
(00°05948¢°T) (1013002} suenejdosddy - -D0T8Z-LL1
000 afgeiey sjuNcOdY = -00TTT-LLT
62°S66°98L°LT $30IN05IY JO SMOLAING PALAIQ PUR NISSY  [01
6T'S66°'9EL’LT PSSV 0L
15°T£5'580'9 U3 SIA 04 JO4 3AI3SaY oL PEUD = = -009T-LLT
9L'525'0EE (100u0D) Jeaa wain) - sain)puadx3 = - -00SbT-2LT
00°0£L°0ZT {iequod) saoueiqunsu3 patepinbyun - - -00ZPT-LLT
00'059°28€"1 S3NUAIY pjewnsa < - -00THT-LLY
(00°202°5€) et Apadoud 3|qepIOoUN 104 SOUBMO|NY - - -OTSTI-LT
00'0SY'T0E'T d|geanoay saxe) Auadald - = -00STT-£L1
00°0 3{qRAlSDTY SJUNOXDY = = OIPTI-LLT
20'ST6'6ES'8T BASNUL YU Ysed B 444 7741
vuejeg uopdinsaq WNoBY JaquInN Junoxy

spofoud ended vogeonpy L£3 = pungd

1 40 1 3begd STOT judy pun4 gns g pung
Wd EZ°¢ S20Z/TL/S  -owiLL/xaeq pund-qns pue puni Ag 339ys ouejeq Aq139us douLeq :Aq paqeauy
pAyMEBID BIASY RSN uonednp3 Jo pieod AJUnod AUIWD pauPdq D97 ueN edwal




{(8£°529'9209) %S8PLS (96'sot's68's) (96'SS0'E8Z'Z) _ DO'DS9'ZBET 000 00°0S9'Z8E°1 12108
TGEUFIEIDD) Wbl 6ISOE  (ZBZEBES0G) (L8 Z:SE0L9]  UOUOU0UL T00 UO0000Z ___ JNNJA3Y Vo0 1 B3H10 V101 OO0FF
L6 vEL T009) 96p78 ON (Z67EL1009) (ZEFELT009) 500 000 000 ~ SUCHNGHWCD  OLiay
(2b'S06'TT) %TS'0TS {06'201°28) {06°20T°Z0T) 00'000°02 00'0 0000002 pawes jseseul 01T
TEEPE0EL] Vol I8 TG LEV 881 (6O BIZGZT L]  OOUSOZ9E YL 000 00059 Z9E T SIXVL IVOOT IVIOL _ OU00F
; % TOR9E T 000E 000 00000 € SSDX3 Ueg  DZEOR
(18292} %25"00T {05°9) (05°952'T) 00'05T'T 000 00°0S2'T 10 S9xEL JO NI Ul JUSLWARY €910
{60°9€T} %88'8L1 {z8'88¢) (z8'88'T) 00'000'T 00°0 00'000'T A3 |E007 SIXEL JO BN Ul JUBWARY  ZOTO
(1e£8) %09°901 oree) (O1°€£8) 00'0S€ 000 00°05€ VAL $3Xe 40 nar] ul sjuaARg 19T0¢
(6b'ET) 130png oN {€9°EEC'TT) (€9°€€2'TT) 00'0 00°0 000 soxel an-Pld  0STOb
(ZZ'9e0) %STELT {z1°985'S) (Zr-9se'eT) 00°005°2 000 00°005'L Aeusd gisaseul  ObToy
(19°611°T) %0E'9.LT ETTHE'S) (ETTPEZT) 00'000°Z 000 00°000°Z HRID NI 0ETOp
000 %09'¥8 oLt (0€°2Zp) 0005 000 00°0S Anannjueg uopda)o) VISNUL  SZTOK
7208 YoLL'ELT {59°£66'9T} (59°£60°6£) 00°005°2Z 000 00'005°22 B3/ 10Ud-SUORIBY|OD S33SUL OZTOb
{89'508°0T) %89°78 L0622 (£2'625'S60°T) 00°000°S2E"T 000 00°000°52€°T xel Apadoid Juaund 0110t
SNUBADYH JuaLIng pozijeay pazijealun pax(esy aLa pojewiysy jejol SJUpuIwY 3s3 |euibugQ
% SP3104d [E3CED UORRONPT L1 tpund
T 4o T abed STOT 14dy pund qns Aq
JUSWISIELS SNUAASY
Wd 80:Z 5202/21/S i2un]/aeq PUN4-GNS AQ SANURADY O JUIWANLIS o9 iAQ PRI
paomel) ejaey esn uogeanp3 Jo pieog AJuno)) auaaly pauyaq Ho :ewep aje|dawz]



%S6'TE (YT reE’0es) 00°0€2°0ZT 9L STS'9EE €8'STEPT (00059°48€'T) 000 (00°059°¢8E'T) o (pung 104 (e30L
%S6'Z€ (YT r6E‘DEG) 00°0££'0Z1 9L'STS'9EE €£8°8TEPT (00'0s9'28€'T) o000 (00°059°£8£°T) 1|01
%S6'T€  {¥Z'P6E'DEG) 00°0££0ZT 9L°STS’'9EE ESBIEPT (00059°28€'T) 000 (00'059°£8ET) Ie30L
%S6'7€  (PT'H6E'0EG) 00'0££'0ZT 9L°STS'9EE £8"8TEYT (00059288t} 000 (00°059°£8€T) 00ET6 [RI0L
%00°0 (00°000°09S) 000 00°0 000 (00°000°095) 000 {00°000°095) udwidinby uenepodsues; 674
%0000 00°048'+C 00'0 00°048'5T 00 00°0 000 000 juawdinby soueuayuiely LT/
%e8/r  (65°851'80€) 00°0£6'8€ 15°79£'¢bT 00'6£5°6 (00°0ST'T6S) 00°0 {00°0ST’16S) sureAcdw] buippng  £0/
%993 (SL'508'1T) 00'0 STY69'pT £8'b9E {00°005'9¢) 000 {00°005°9€) uoissiuwio) s3sni - 0TS
%05'75  {00°000'5Z) 00°008°18 00'00Z'€H 00'SLE'V (00°000°002) 000 (00°000°002) spaupy  HOE

s19foud |eyide) uonednpy  OOET6
ax3g souejeg sooueiquindug  saanjipuedxz  saunjipusdxy 1abpng Sjuswpudwy  Junowy 3obpng uondnsag JUNCIOY  JIGUINN JUNCODY
9bpng passquinsusun  GupueisIng 2jeq-03)-iead) e -03-YIuow papuauly 396png
30 %
spafold jeyde) voneanpa LLT i pund
1 Jo T abed 5207 judy
Wd 2z:z s20zfeils Puiy fareq pund Aq [qO Aq Adewnung s2an)puadx3 Jo JUAUNRAS 01> :Aq psgean)

PIOIMEL) BlARY B

uoeINpa JO PIeog AJUNa) susaug

psuyeq 291 :PweN Aejdwal



ut paurny podar [udy 19e pajas||o:

0 0STT 09 60T0£T 0951 s'Ly 1443 00y 0181 0Zsy 09581 | 099¢€€T 091LL 09LS £°60T 8€S €SL EL'ELSE T6'Y9LT STVIOL
STVD Sg1 Sd1 ST Sg1 SNO.L # STVD Sd1 Sd1 S91 Sg1 Sd7T Sa1 SNOL # # SNOL SNO.L
605101 AA1CT TIRITY
701 S06

099°¢ 08¥% ST LIT 0896 086 89 P 0T 153 £SLET 9608 0¢

0vy'T L0 4! 0TL'L 9T'6 0T 8¢C 80951 149 6C

0Tr'9 ¥6'S Lvy 0868 916 61 LT 9L 811 £6° 0¥ 8C

09L°S1 ¥'0 8 098°T LLy [44 9 v €91 9L'IL LT

P61 691 £8TT [43 134 ov'L61 £8961 9T

69°LL ¥C

00¢'y 081°Z1 0901 £9°L 0T LT 89°0¢1 6T LL £C

08L il £C 53 19061 £1L9 [44

0vL'9 [4°)4 L9 0066 6C L £€C 4 Tssel 9¢89 1T

09¢’¢S S pLT 00€'C €19 53 9¢ SO¥61 ££°95 0T

0TE'8 091'v1 090°1 £9°1¢C e IS 6V vET £9ov1 61

0¢ll 09 0269 09¢ 10T SL1 085 02011 096 59°¢ 91l £C £E°L11 S6SL 91

08L°C 09L’S 0cT’e S06 £l [44 clvel 8T LY Sl

0cTel ¥0'€ PSIL S09 9T 143 89°6¥1 Sy 09 vl

00[°8 080°¢ 0 9C [44 9r'i6l 8609 €1

08.L€EL 484 [S¢ 0r8€l 09T'1 78'0C :14 L4 87 6¢T il 4!

008C 0v6'c orT1l 00€ PS'L 1T 6T Th S01 86 0L 6

0Tl U39 &l 101 0181 00L'1 8L9 61 T S9°€91 9'6v 8

090°C 80V S8¢C 099°L 598 e, 6C 45Y4! 6856 L

0066 00 ocr's 6 v 33 ov 1L 01T 9C'LL 9

0898 [ [43} 089°%1 81¢C St 49 £1°67C 96 6€1 S

001°C 09971 ovL 8Pl 91 ¥C 60671 £9°6L [4

08S'y 06C 61 691 080°S 088°C 090°F SL6 4 6T 6P TSI £0 89 L
AZATIILLINY Uwﬂmauw-_\w JTI pauleq ”MW%M HOLVIAVY LHOIAM | INNOD | TIO Liva | wav | ano | 90 | orisvida Ssvyd " NOILVI1S STAVIA

aasn \m::.D poless /SHue]/stagstuey INILL JAIL TAIL | GIsn fA4Add0D S Sad- | Savga HIASNVIL e CRAZ(

J1LSVM dIT0S ALNNOJ IN3IUO



12°60T 1S°T9 L'LYy 1V101 ANVYD
689 68'9 S3NId 1SIM
98°LT 98°/1 INIIYD 1SIM
0 NMOLYINTYM
9Z'9 9Z'9 JAISANNNS
0 SIINVT “1S
0 O3NOoY
0 JNVEIHO
TL'S IL'S d1vNOQd
¢€9 ¢E9 334D ISYOH
A4S A4 AYVN3H 1VH
¥6°S ¥6°S INOLSAIYO
€0°€T €0'ET sngia
vE'9 vE'9 YOHINY SSOHD
0 SONIYdS 4vI1D
S0'9 S0'9 NO.LAIIVE
£9°22 £9°T¢ NO.ldVv
V1oL AVAIY4d| AVASYNHL| AvVASINGIM Avasini AVANOW Y3INID
seoe/e/s ST0e/1/s SZ/1/540)3IM

AVa ¥3d SNOL HOLDVdINOD

HILSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAYD




8L'LET 8€°'SS 69°0V G'GE '8P S0°'L8 1V101 ANVYD
6€'8 6€'8 SINId 1SIM
LE'LE vTLT €1°02 INIIYD 1SIM
LS'ET s <T'8 NMOLYIITYM
8S'TT €19 G8'v AAISANNNS
8'€T 2T9 8S°L SINVT LS
LLET 16°S 97'8 oE[/[o}!]
LS'L 6T'T 8€'9 MNVE3IH0
ST'ET s SL'T 66°S a1vyNoQ\
1,12 L0'8 [TV LY'6 MIFYD ISYOH
Sb€e 96'TT 67°TT QYVN3H 1VH
10'6 10'6 ANOLSATYD
€8'CT T¥'91 MsSNg3da

€8°L €8°'L YOHONY SSOH)
€9 €9 SONIYAS V31D
9E'TT 98't <9 NO.LAITIVE
65°8€ €6°TC 90°LT NOl4v
V101 AVAIYd| AvASYNHL| AvdsaNaIm Avasiani AVANOW ETTYED)
6z0z/6/S Sz0z/8/s szoe/L/s Sz0z/9/s szoe/s/s 6Z/S/S 40 X3IM

AVQ ¥3d SNOL HO1OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANATID




11°SL2 vS°6S 8T'LY 6C'8¢ 6'Th 1'86 1V101 ANVYD
T'vT 86'S 4% SANId 1SIM
LY 8€ €L°LT v£°0C INIIYD 1SIM
YT v's 8's NMOLYINTYM
6C'TT 89'9 19’ JAISANNNS
Q'L Sl SAINVT "1S
99'€T ¥S'S r4%:; oEo}!
LL'Y LL'Y MINVEIHO
LO'TT 66"V 80'9 a1vNOa
£0°0¢ €1'9 Sty 9%°6 334D ISHOH
86°S¢ €8'TT ST'vI QYVN3H TVvH
€9'VT 85'9 S0'8 INOLSAIYD
89'8¢ 1921 10°91T nsngia
LT 1€9 6€'8 YOHONY SSOH)
'S 'S SONIYdS ¥V31D
ve'er ST'9 609 NOLATIVE
8€'8€ LL'T 19'9T NO.1ldv
V10l AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM AVasani AVANOW YIINDD
Szoz/9t/s  |szoz/st/s szoe/vi/s qzoz/€tr/s qzoe/et/s SZ/TT/S 40 X3Im

AVQ ¥3d SNOL HO1OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD AINATID




6S°2LT 85°6S 1TTY 8T'0F 20°LE S'v6 V101 ANVYD
St'8 St'8 SINId 1SIM
80°6€ 8T ¥9°02 INIIYO 1SIM
10°ST €9 85'8 NMOLYINTYM
80'CT 10'8 LO'Y JAISANNNS
9'T 9L'L v8'L SANVT °1S
62T 209 T8 o3Jnoy
9T'9 919 JNVEIH0
6€'TT 8t's 16°S a1vNOQ
66'1C 1L 'S LE'6 MIFYD ISHOH
9T'¥T LLTT 6€°CT AYVN3H TVH
75’8 4 20'9 INOLSATYD
€1°62 8T'ET St'9T sngaa
v0'8 v0'8 YOHINY SSOWD
€6'S £6'S SONIYJS ¥V3I1D
1€°CT ZS'S 6,9 NOLATIIVE
G8°6€ ZE€T €5°9T NOLd4v
V101 AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM AVasani AVANOW Y3IINTD
gzoe/se/s  |szoe/ze/s szoz/te/s  |seoz/oz/s Sz0Z/61/S 6Z/61/5 40 X3IMm

AVQd ¥3d SNO1 ¥O.1OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANAHED




¥6°¥8¢ €8'89 9C'Eh TLe T ob T¥°S0T TV101 ANVYD
TLET €8'9 88'9 SANId 1SIM
IT'IP TS°LT 6S'€T INIFYO 1SIM
87'ST 86°S €6 NMOLYINTYM
LEVT (44 GT'9 IAISANNNS
LT6 LT'6 SAINVT “1S
66'CT 9/t €78 O3nNoY
L0'S L0'S MNVEIHO
16°0T LY 29 ai1vNOQ2\
T'1¢ 1T'6 47 LS'0T M33YD ISHOH
v9°vZ 18'11 €8°C1 AYVN3H TVH
G'€T 87'S 44! ANOLSAIYD
8T'TE LS9T TLYT Nsng3aa
1S'vT 1L 'L YOHONY SSOY)
6L'S 6L'S SONIHS YVYI1D
L8°0T v6'€ €6'9 NOLATIVE
¥S'0b 12 ¥S'6T NO.14Y
1viol AVAlYdd| AVASYNHL| AvASINAIM Avasany AVANOW Y3IINDD
gz0z/og/s  |szoz/e/s szoe/8se/s szoe/Le/s szoe/9e/s 62/92/s 40 ¥3IMm

AVQd ¥3d SNOL HO1OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHIAD




€9°6LTT TV101L ANVYD
VSIS SANId 1SIM
68°€LT IN33YO 1SIM
9€'8S NMOLYINTYM
85°9S AAISANNNS
L1°9Y SANVT "LS
TL'PS (OF [/\[0}.]
LS'EC JNVE3IHO
9¢'¢s a1vNO@dIN
91°16 A33Y¥D ISHOH
LEOTT QYVN3H TVH
919 ANOLSATUD
[4Ar4))! AsSNg3a
1S HOHINY SSOHD
(484 SONIHCS 4V3I1D
£€8°CS NO.LATTIVE
€0°08T NO.ldVv

SC0C AVYIN HO4 STV101 HOLOVYdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD AINHAID




(@3sn 31) SQ¥YI XIM Y04 NMOHS ATNO LINNOWY LSO ‘ILON+

sz ssoss 0 S'6108 Zve9 sTviOL
73N dOHS z6v s
SYONYL NOILVLS ¥34SNVAL 6LS. 6952
440 110y 08l 6€.2 €02S 08¢l 89001 0881 HLHOMNIA Gcoc €S
S18Vd /XINNY SlL 14514 (114 0S82-4 Q404 j 744 [474
FIONYNILNIVIN /OINVHDIIN 001 6LL §/S0S1 LLS6YL 08¢-4 @d04 6L0C v
FONYNILNIVN /OINVHOIN cLil 901 yraner4" vL0sCL 052-4 Q404 yA% 4 oy
FONVYNILNIVN /OINVHOIW 926 866 110891 S80/.91 08¢-4 404 8L0¢ 6€
HOL103HIQ LINVISISSY v6.L 6Ll Locol 29SS 058¢-4 a404 ceoe 8¢
d0103410 LNV1SISSY Sorl 89LL f45i5144 LSy 0§2-4 404 c¢caoe LE
FONVYNILNIVIN H3LN3D €8 L9l £80¥%1 [e]0]0] 4" 0S62-4 a404 ¢c0e 9¢
440 7110 6L8l 09ee LS 8/0¥6 8L.LE 494D MOVIN [44A A St
440 7710y cc8 S98 8'L6l 09598 g69468 4¥9HD UIVYIN [444 ve
VL3N /ON3a 9} L9v £e ¥GS8¢C 1808¢C 0S¢-4 404 (444 €e
d3av01 LNOYS [A° g 1% vice Zevl LLLBLL 1G6SL1 ¥93L AOVYIN fAAA (4%
AONYL 37ddvHO VLI /ONTA ¥se c'ss ¥0SC.L 0slcL TYNOILYNYILNI Lcoc L€
d3AVO1 LNOH4 0 LE68S| €685} CLONEN HOVIN €L0C [0}
¥3Av01 LNOY4 0 S22 6v7E8E S889HIN XOVIN v1L02 6c
FONVYNILNIVIA /OINVHO3IN 0 60162€E 60lL6ce 0S¢-4 404 1002 8¢
IvVLIW /ON3a 8C'G 089St 969} 06686 [0} 77X 0S¢-4 404 0coc L2
Iv13IW /ONn3a 8. 685 0¥Ss0L 9G/69 06€-4 404 0c0c 174
ADNHL IddVHD TVLIWN /ONIA | 78] .0l G'9Ll 286G/, 8069 HIANIMLHDIZYA T4 A €C
S3IMddNS Y31NID v. 6l 8/80¢ ¥080¢ SSIHIX3 AATHD 6661 (¥4
440 110¥ 89Sl 62S¢C 206V 6262 00v0L 0881 H1IHOMNIN gecoe 6l
440 170d 6LL YA AN 29¢ ovoel G9/LLL OAT0OA {404 8L
440 T10d 69 0 81l 16SCL) 16SCLL £1L8ND MOVIN 7102 Ll
440 7110y A 69¢€9/1 89€9/1 £L8ND MOVIN 102 9l
440 110y £€9 ove 1414 09686 0cog6l €L8ND MOV 4504 Sl
HONHL I1ddVHD TVLIIN /ON3A SL'et 9/91 2'8s¢ 0/8S¢ velve TYNOILYNHILNI e0c gl
JONVYNILNIVIN 43LNID z.i8 gEd L¥¥2oc 69S1L0C X ¥ 0S¢-4 800¢C i
FTOADIN /43AYOT LNOYA 9e'8¢C YA YA c'1e9 L9962V 09/6¢€ 931 MOVIN | AN LL
AONYL ADIAE3S £6¢C 89 oc VA 4% SlyS LN ADYIN £20c oL
440 7110y 90v [={e]% 6/.¥68 €.068 ELLAD MOVIN 900¢ [}
d3av0o1 LNOYd c0'9 €69 L'LEL rrecel 188261 93 L MOVIN glL0¢c 8
AY3IANTA HINIVINOD 09¢ A 0ees 0.82 TYNOILYNHILNI 600¢ L
JONVNILNIVYIN /OINYHOIN V.. 987 v9.6.2 0668.¢C 05¢-4 404 1661 9
FONVYNILNIVIN /OINVHOIN 880 86¢ S0s eLiciL SLZLLL 082-4 404 €L0c €
d3AvO01 1NOYS 89'61 6¥6¢C G'€C9 688961 0yeesL AOVIN 6lL0¢ L
H0103dia 69Y 9'ee £€88¢2 9e8e 06¢-4 404 ccoe 00
sjeb alanel sjeb sjeb abea) obea)
=ai A"__m_oV ° m_m__s_ ! | =00 tony _oon__E_mW:"_ mhm_\_m_“"_ mc_u"_m\_,_ mc_cc_w_um L dVIA | #0NNL

AVIAl ST, YV3IA TVISIH
140434 I9DVITIN /SVYD ILSYM AI10S ALNNOD INIFYD




Greene County Budget and Finance Committee/ Budget Workshop
Meeting-Minutes May 7th, 2025
Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Paul Burkey- Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner

ALSO:

Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Roger Woolsey- County Attorney
Wesley Holt — Sheriff Gary Rector-Highway

David Beverly — Chief Deputy Kevin Swatsell - Road Superintendent
TJ Manis- Director Greene County/Greeneville EMS Myron Hughes- EMS

OTHERS:

Spencer Morrell- Greeneville Sun Jeff Taylor — Greene County Partnership Director

Chris Malone- Greene County Schools Director Kayla Crawford- Greene County Schools

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Kevin Morrison called the Budget and Finance committee meeting to order on Wednesday, May
7th, 2025 at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Annex Conference Room. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion to approve the Budget & Finance minutes for the April 2nd, 2025 meeting, April 31 & April 17t
workshops was made by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion was
approved with no opposition.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS:
For their review, the Committee received budget requests that had already been previously approved by
Mayor Morrison.

I RESOLUTIONS:

A. A Resolution to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal year Greene County Schools Capital
Projects Fund budget for Bond proceeds.
Motion was made to approve resolution A by Commissioner Peters and was
seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

B. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating funds $150,000
for the Enhanced Ambulance Medicaid reimbursement project for the Emergency
Medical Services Department for the FYE June 30, 2025.

Motion was made to approve resolution B by Commissioner Smithson and was
seconded by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

C. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating funds to the
Emergency Medical Services Department in the amount of $35,310 for an allocation
of in-service training supplement for the FYE June 30, 2025.
Motion to approve resolution C was made by Commissioner Burkey and seconded
by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

D. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal
year budget to increase appropriations to the Inspection and Regulations
department to adjust Part-Time wages 27,000, due to a formula error in the original
budget worksheet for the FYE June 30, 2025.

Motion was made to approve resolution D by Commissioner Smithson and was
seconded by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee/ Budget Workshop
Meeting-Minutes May 7th, 2025
Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee

E. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating up to $450,000
for the purchase and implementation of body-worn and vehicle cameras for Law
Enforcement and Animal Control officers for the FYE June 30, 2025.

Motion was made to approve resolution E by Commissioner Quillen and was
seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion carried.

F. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body authorizing short-term loans to
County Water Utility Districts Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated § 9-21-107
and establishing a Greene County Water Committee for the FYE June 30, 2025.
Motion was made to approve resolution F by Commissioner Smithson and was
seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion carried

G. A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating funds for
ongoing recovery efforts from the Hurricane Helene for the fiscal year 2024-
2025.

Motion to approve resolution G was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded
by Commissioner Burkey. All agreed.

Jancie Painter, Gifts for Kids, requested a contribution of $5,000 for the organization. She handed
out flyers for Christmas in July to be held July 11" 3:00PM till?? Location will be in the Towne
Square Shopping Center on Summer Street, Greeneville Tennessee. To follow up with her request
a non-profit request sheet will be sent to her requesting the amount of her request and the Gifts
for Kids latest financials.

BUDGET WORKSHOP:

Budget Director Danny Lowery presented the proposed 2025-2026 FUND 151 General Debt
Service.

One outstanding debt showing. New Annex, everything else off. Moody’s credit report rating from
double A three to a double A two, same as Johnson City which is very good.

2025-2026 Proposed budget for FUND 156 Education Debt Service

1,5 million complete, Chuckey-Doak addition last payment, Three debts HVAC, Track & CTE.
2025-2026 Proposed budget for FUND 171 Capital Projects.

Annex project is coming to a swift close. The only large outstanding Capital Project is a solution
for Courthouse is plumbing, got past asbestos, toxins.

Commissioner Quillen made a motion that the three Debt Services heard today as presented be
taken in as advisement. Commissioner Smithson seconded the motion. All agreed.

NEXT MEETING:

The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, June
4th, 8:30 A.M. Held in the Greene County Ag Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Peterson made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Burkey seconded the
motion. All agreed. Adjourn at 10:30 A.M.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
April 23, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Members Present:
Kevin Morrison — Mayor Danny Lowery-Budget Director Erin Elmore- HR

Chris Malone - School Dir.  Brad Peters-Comm. Kathy Crawford-Comm.
William Dabbs-Comm. Roger Woolsey- County Atty. Wesley Holt — Sheriff

Also, Present:

Kim Peterson-TSC John McInturff-MM&B Tammy Cutshall- Atty Assist.
Leslie Jones — Clinic Chris Poynter-Baldwin

Call to Order:

Mayor Morrison called meeting to order in the conference room at the Greene County Annex.
Quorum was present.

Minutes:
Motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and was seconded by Commissioner Dabbs to
approve the minutes from March 26, 2025. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Reports:

Clinic — Leslie Jones gave the clinic reports for March 2025. There were 295 patients, 24 less
than last year. Of the 295 visits, there were 182 provider visits and 137 nurse visits. The clinic
performed 69 biometric physicals, 8 more than last year. Leslie stated there are 29
employees/spouses left to do biometric physicals and of those 29, 14 have scheduled
appointments. Leslie stated 15 have not called to schedule appointments but 8 of those 15 did not
do their biometrics last year either.

Financial - Danny Lowery emailed the financial reports for March 2025 to the Insurance
Committee on April 16, 2025. Danny stated we finally received re-insurance payments of a little
over half a million dollars. Danny also stated April claims so far are a little under our average so
hopefully on the up swing there. Mayor Morrison asked if that improved the trends and Danny
said it did but he still has a little bit of concern.

A motion to approve the financial reports was made by Sheriff Holt. Motion was seconded by
Commissioner Peters. Reports were approved with no opposition.

Discussion:

Other Business.

Chris Poynter with Baldwin handed out a graph to the committee with the re-insurance renewal
quotes. Chris stated to the committee that we need to move carriers. Our current carrier, HM Life
Insurance Company, is at an increase of 37% for the renewal. Chris thinks he could go back to
them and get it down to about 20-25% but the reality is he has Blue Cross (third column on the
graph) at -0.81% and we need to take that while we have it. Chris stated he went to 20 different
carriers and the best we could get was 11 — 19%. Chris stated even after all the claims, we are going



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
April 23, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

down, which is crazy. Chris suggested one more recommendation on the re-insurance to save
another 24k. Chris stated that he doesn’t think we need the Aggregate Premium of $4.50 (as
shown on graph). Chris went on to say that premium is on the whole plan and we would have to
get hit for over g million in a year to get paid on that and that is just not going to happen. John
with MM&B stated that on the workers comp we do not carry an aggregate and it’s per claim.
Motion was made by Attorney Roger Woolsey to drop the aggregate premium and to change our
re-insurance to Blue Cross instead of HM. Motion was seconded by Sheriff Holt. Motion was
approved with no opposition. Attorney Woolsey asked if our individual limit is 150k now and Chris
stated yes. Attorney Woolsey then asked how many employees will hit that? Chris said 2 right now
and couple right at it. Chris then stated our trend is better than others on large claims. Chris went
on to say that it is something we can’t plan for either. Chris also stated they are running pharmacy
numbers and will get that information back to the committee soon.

Motion to adjourn and go into closed session was made by Commissioner Dabbs. Motion was
seconded by Attorney Roger Woolsey. There was no opposition.

Claims:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and seconded by Commissioner Peters to approve
TSC-0002480. Claim was approved with no opposition.

Discussion after claims:

Mayor Morrison stated we are going to have to consider our plan to fix the roads from the damage
of trucks hauling debris from the flood. Mayor stated that would not fall on us but may have to
get an outside contractor to fix roads with some sense of urgency once all the debris is removed
from the river and the clean up crews are done. Mayor stated that the roads in question do qualify
for public assistance and only the debris hauled damaged roads. Mayor stated there are a lot of
roads to fix and people are going to start to demand they be fixed. Many officials have already
started getting calls about the roads and even about damage to a vehicle from the damaged roads.
Mayor named several roads that will need repair. Mayor just wanted to get on the record for the
insurance committee about the roads and considering a plan for fixing the roads. Mayor Morrison
stated that FEMA confirmed last week that the roads qualify for public assistance. TEMA will fix
state roads. Danny stated that the county would have to pay the entire cost up front and then get
12.5% on the back. Mayor also stated that the percentage may get lowered, per the Governor.
Attorney Woolsey asked if they were still hauling debris on all the mentioned roads and Sheriff
Holt confirmed, yes, they are still hauling debris. Attorney Woolsey asked John McInturff what
we have Takoma listed for now? John stated 16-18 million. John asked about the federal pacific
switch gear?? Mayor stated the ones on the main floor are gone and new ones in and the electrician
is working over there now on second floor and we hope to have everyone in by the end of the year.
Mayor Morrison stated that Trane will be turning on HVAC units on Monday. Mayor Morrison
stated all conduit have been replaced and the transformer outside has been replaced. Mayor stated
the new switch gear is in and active. Mayor stated that GEA supplied the transformer and lugs for
the outside, kudos to them! Attorney Woolsey wants to confirm with John that we keep the
insurance on that building moving up. Mayor stated that everything will be on new plumbing on



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
April 23, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Monday. Mayor stated that the duct work on the 2™ floor will be started next week. John asked
what the square footage of the building is, and Mayor stated 110k. Mayor stated that right now we
are at about $104.00 per square foot. Commissioner Peters asked about the asphalt plant and if
it is being used yet? Sheriff Holt thinks it is being used. Committee members continued to discuss
roads and fixing roads. Commissioner Peters stated that we will probably need a very detailed bill
package for fixing roads and Mayor agreed. Mayor stated there could be 200-300 miles of roads
that will need to be fixed. Danny stated that FEMA will fix back roads to the condition they were
before the floods and we need to have good maintenance records so we can prove the condition.
Attorney Woolsey stated we have good routine maintenance records but he is not sure if there are
records on the actual condition of the roads before the flood. Committee agreed that will be the
biggest issue.

Motion to adjourn was made by Attorney Roger Woolsey and seconded by Sheriff Holt. There was
no opposition.

Respectfully Submitted,
Beth McNeese



Greene County Commission Education Committee
5 May 2025
Regular Meeting

The Greene County Commission Education Committee met at 3:30 PM at the Greene County Schools Central Office
for its regular May meeting.

Committee Members in Attendance; Chairman Bill Dabbs, Kathy Crawford, Larkin Ciemmer, Jan Kiker, Lloyd
Bowers and Paul Burkey. Director Dr. Chris Malone was present as well.

Others in Attendance: Rick Tipton, Chairman, Greene County School Board

The Committee reviewed the minutes from the 31 March meeting. Mr. Bowers made the motion to accept the
minutes. Mr. Clemmer seconded. The motion to approve the minutes passed unanimously.

Dr. Malone presented for approval and explained a resolution to allocate the proceeds from the previously
approved $6,000,000 bond issue to the Building Improvements budget line for the new Track and the various
tennis court upgrades for which the bonds were issued. Mr. Bowers made the motion to forward the
recommendation to approve. Ms. Crawford seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Tipton provided an update on the almost completed sale of the Greene Technology Center and purchase of
the Howard McNeese Center on Hal Henard Road.

Dr. Malone provided an informal update on planning for the new County track in Tusculum, as well as the two CTE
Wing projects. The West Greene project is still scheduled for completion in time for the next school year in
August. The Chuckey-Doak project is scheduled for completion before January.

Meeting adjourned. The next Education Committee meeting will be at 3:30 PM on Monday, June 2, 2025.

fuut Cutess—

Respectfully submitted,
Paul Burkey
Secretary



Greene County Purchasing Committee

Minutes
March 17, 2025
5:15PM
Members Present:
Pamela Carpenter Jeffery Bible Tim Smithson Kevin Morrison
Others Present:
Roger Woolsey Spencer Hale Krystal Justis Dave Wright

Caroline Miller

Motion was made by Commissioner Bible and was seconded by Commissioner Carpenter to
approve minutes from the February 18, 2025, February 26, 2025 and March 10, 2025 meetings.
Motion carried with no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and was seconded by Commissioner Bible to
approve the bids for the renovations of the second, third and fourth floors of Takoma. J & F
Mechanical won the bid for HVAC Base at $1,213,000.00 with completion at three hundred
calendar days and also the bid for Plumbing at $356,360.00 with completion at one hundred
sixty days. Morristown Automatic Sprinkler won the bid for sprinkler at $495,640.00 with three
hundred sixty-five days of completion. These bidders are doing the work on the first floor as
well. Motion carried with no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and was seconded by Commissioner Bible to
adjourn. Motion carried with no opposition.



Greene County Purchasing Committee
May 7, 2025, 4:30 p.m.
Official Minutes

Members Present: Kevin Morrison, Pam Carpenter, Teddy Lawing, Tim Smithson.
Others Present: Krystal Justis, Jim Greene, Max Lowe. Matthew Elmore.

Acting Chairman Tim Smithson called the committee to order to conduct Greene
County business.

Approval of Minutes: No Meetings approved at called meeting.

Bid Convenience Center Surveillance: The bids were reviewed by the committee and
upon motion by Teddy Lawing and a second by Pam Carpenter, the bid was awarded to
Digital Watchtower, Bluff City, Tennessee for $48,912.00. This was not the low bid but
due to differences in the type of cameras and equipment, some being non-commercial
and were different specs from what was bid, the committee felt the bid from Digital
Watchtower was appropriate for what was bid.

With no further business and a motion by Kevin Morrison and a second by Pam
Carpenter, and without objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted

Teddy Lawing
Secretary
7t District County Commissioner



Greene County Emergency Communications District-911
April 10th, 2025 3:30pm

Official Minutes
Page 1

Members Present: Hoot Bowers, Pamela Carpenter, Tim Ward, Teddy Lawing,
John Waddle, Jerry Bird, Dustin Jeffers, Kevin Morrison

Member Absent: Alan Shipley, Danny Greene, Sherri Ottinger

Others Present: Kelly Dabbs, Roger Woolsey, Bobby Rader-WGRYV, John
Waddell, Wesley Holt, David Beverly, Mickey Ellis-CPA

Tim Ward called the meeting to order at 3:30pm for conducting the business of
the Greene County Emergency Communications District.

Minutes were approved for February. Hoot Bowers approved and second by
Dustin Jeffers.

Treasurer Teddy Lawing presented the treasure report with roughly $2,084,000.
This was passed by Pam Carpenter and then seconded by Hoot Bowers.
Necessary changes were made to the line items of the budget. It was amended
on and then approved by Dustin Jeffers and seconded by Hoot Bowers.

Mickey Ellis spoke on the audit from the comptroller office as we received an
acceptance letter for this.

Kelly Dabbs gave the updated training report that we are up to 22 full time
dispatchers currently and three were hired recently. Training sessions seem to be
going well.

Jerry Bird discussed with Nathan Holt as to using the TN investment pool which
is now paying 2.94%. Tim Ward suggested to Jerry that he found answers to
guestions as to moving money around.



David Beverly gave an update on the advisory meetings that are quarterly all
seemed to be going well.

Jerry Bird explained the new retirement rate of 8.42% as of July 2025. This was
passed by Teddy Lawing and seconded by Hoot Bowers.

Jerry Bird presented an award for Greene County 911 from On Star. Recognizing
us with a national award.

Jerry Bird asked the members to be thinking about the upcoming budget next
month.

The next meeting is to be held May 22, 2025 at 3:30pm.
With no further business and a motion by Hoot Bowers, and seconded by Teddy
Lawing the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully Submitted

Pamela Carpenter
Secretary



Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, March
11, 2025, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Sam-Riley-Chatrman Kevin Morrison, County Mayor

Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Reger-Weolsey-County-Attorney
Gary-Reetor-Seeretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Tim Tweed, Building Official

Edwin Remine Lyn Ashburn, Planning Department
Phillip Ottinger Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
Jason Cobble

Becky Rideout

Nick Gunter

Also participating: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.

Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the
February 11, 2025 meeting. A motion was made by Becky Rideout, seconded by Edwin Remine,
to change the minutes to mark Sam Riley as being absent, and to approve the minutes as revised.
The motion carried unanimously

Red Tail Ridge. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the final plat for
Red Tail Ridge subdivision, for 16 lots totaling 14.89 acres, located adjacent to Whirlwind Road
in the 10th civil district. Staff stated a bond was requested in an amount adequate to cover the
roadwork which needed to be completed, including the expense to pave the temporary gravel cul-
de-sac if the road was not extended to Section 2. Kevin Swatsell stated he was concerned about
the proposed retaining wall, as it did not have engineering specifications. Tim Tweed stated that
engineered drawings were not required by code unless the wall exceeded four feet in height. Staff
recommended:
1. Granting a variance to submission of the “Grading and Road Contractor” certification,
which would instead be submitted when the bond was requested to be released;
2. Accepting a bond in the amount to cover the cost to complete all remaining roadwork,
subject to review and approval of the bond by the County Attorney.
3. Approval of the final plat, with the above stated conditions.




A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to grant a variance as
recommended; accept a bond in the amount determined by the project engineer, to be reviewed
and approved by the County Attorney; and to approve the plat with those conditions. The motion
carried unanimously.

Homes 4 All Property Lots 1, 2, & 3. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Homes 4 All Property Lots 1, 2, & 3 plat, for three lots totaling 1.81 acres, located
adjacent to Gilbreath Road in the 7th civil district. Staff stated that all signatures had been
obtained, and recommended approval, as the plat met all applicable regulations. A motion was
made by Nick Gunter, seconded by Becky Rideout, to approve the plat, as it met all applicable
regulations. The motion carried unanimously.

Greene County Subdivision Regulations Revision to Appendix D. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered approving a change to Article D of the Greene County Subdivision
Regulations concerning the subdivision of property with existing septic systems. Staff stated the
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) had recently changed how they
handled plats with existing septic systems, which involved an increase in cost and time frame for
approval. The Planning Commission was presented with a history of how plats with existing septic
systems have been handled since establishment of subdivision regulations in 1972. Specifically,
the changes made to the Subdivision Regulations in January 2013, requiring that a Certificate of
Completion be signed for lots with existing septic systems. It was this requirement that, under
updated TDEC policy, involved additional time and expense for property owners

Staff stated they were unaware of anything in State planning legislation that specifically required
TDEC to approve all subdivision plats. Other local Planning Commissions permitted the
recording of plats with existing septic systems without TDEC approval.

The Planning Commission was informed that not requiring TDEC approval of lots with
preexisting septic systems did provide a savings of time and money for the property owner. One
option would be to have the property owner sign a certification on the plat that the septic system
was in good working order, to the extent of their knowledge. This was an option that both Sullivan
County and Washington County used.

Eric Ball of the Johnson City TDEC office presented information on the TDEC approval process
and options for plat approval. Extensive discussion ensued about the many possible scenarios
that could be created when plats for lots with existing septic systems were submitted for Planning
Commission approval. J. K. Perkins of TDEC stated that requiring an inspection of the system
by TDEC, which could possibly involve obtaining soil work, was slowed because there are so
few soil scientists that work in Greene County. Staff stated that, if the Planning Commission
wanted to consider granting exceptions to requiring TDEC approval of all existing septic systems,



that a meeting could be facilitated between TDEC and surveyors to discuss the issue. Becky
Rideout asked if it was possible to have a Planning Commission work session with TDEC and
surveyors to look at different scenarios. After discussion, a motion was made by Becky Rideout,
seconded by Edwin Remine, to table action on revising Appendix D., and to hold a work session
with TDEC and surveyors to identify the most common scenarios concerning subdivision and
existing septic systems, and create exceptions as appropriate. The motion carried unanimously.

Revision to proposed campground/RV park regulations. The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered approving a change to the proposed campground/RV park regulations to permit the
construction of carports over permanently placed RVs. Greene County Commissioner Jan Kiker
stated she was not aware, when the Planning Commission discussed proposed campground
regulations in February, that car ports were not permitted in campgrounds. Lyle Parton stated
having carports on campsites was a very common situation. Tim Tweed stated that the carports
were anchored to the ground, but it was an anchoring system that could be removed. A motion
was made by Nick Gunter, seconded by Becky Rideout, to recommend approval to the proposal
as submitted. The motion carried unanimously.

Lyn Ashburn informed the Planning Commission that a citizen came in before the meeting and
informed staff that she had sent a copy of the proposed campground regulations to a group called
Outdoor Hospitality Industry. A “chief strategist” with the organization expressed concern that
portions of the proposed regulations violated federal law. Lyn Ashburn stated she had extensively
researched state and federal laws, as well as local provisions, regarding campgrounds, and did not
know what the proposed violation could be. She stated she would contact the representative from
Outdoor Hospitality Industry regarding their concerns, and would report back.

Greene County Subdivision Regulations Revision to Article II.  The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered revising Article Il of the Greene County Subdivision Regulations, to
define "filing" a plat. Staff stated that T.C.A. § 13-3-404(a) read: “When a plat has been filed with
the appropriate officials of the planning commission, the plat shall be placed on the agenda of the
planning commission within thirty (30) days of the filing or the next regularly scheduled planning
commission meeting after the thirty-day period”. Because T.C.A. does not define what constitutes
“filing” a plat, staff recommended that Article II. A. of the Subdivision Regulations be revised to
add the following, as a description of the filing process.

4. Filing a plat. The information listed below must be submitted by the Department
deadline for a plat to be filed for review and approval.

a. An application for subdivision review submitted on the Department website,
containing information on the type of approval requested (preliminary, final,
administrative, or review only), as well as the requested meeting date (if
applicable).



b. A digital copy of the plat and construction plans (if any).

c. Information that the plat and, if appropriate, construction plans, have been
submitted by the applicant to the utility district providing water and/or sewer to
the property.

d. Adigitally or physically signed copy of the “Design Professional Certification
for Subdivision Plats”.

e. Any information required for determining compliance with the regulations.

f. The plat review fee.

g. Copies of plats, construction plans, and other required information may also be
submitted to the Department using paper copies, without using the Department
website.

5. Failure to file a plat.

a. Subdivision plats lacking any of the items listed in Article III. A. 4 are considered
incomplete, as they do not meet the requirements for filing.

b. If initial review of the plat determines that the filing requirements have not been
met, staff will end the review process, designate the plat as “incomplete”, and
provide a written statement to the property owner that the plat is incomplete and
therefore hasn’t been filed.

c¢. Deviation from the filing requirements, such as not showing an item required as
per the subdivision plat checklist, is permitted when staff has been informed of
the deviation prior to the plat being submitted. Such deviations most commonly
occur if there is a questions about a specific standard or requirement,

d. Planning staff shall not designate a plat as incomplete if it is the first time a
surveyor submitted a plat without the required information.

After discussion, a motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve
the revisions as proposed. The motion catried unanimously.

Greene County Subdivision Regulations Revision to Article VI. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered approving changes to the Greene County Subdivision Regulations., to
delete Article VI. Regulations for Two Lot Subdivisions on Existing Public Roads, and replace
it with a policy on approving boundary surveys. Staff recommended that boundary surveys of lots
created before adoption of the Zoning Resolution in 1984 be permitted to be recorded. Recording
boundary surveys did not guarantee that a lot could be developed as if it were a legal, conforming
lot, and there might be restriction with developing the lot.

Amy Tweed stated that the Greene County Register of Deeds office would not record plats without
a signed certification on the plat. Under current regulations, this certification was signed by the
Secretary of the Planning Commission. If the regulations were changed, a new certification would
have to be created. To avoid confusion, and to decrease the possibility that someone would think



the boundary survey was approved by the Planning Commission, staff recommended that the new
certification be signed by the Planning Coordinator.

Staff recommended deleting Article VI Regulations for two-lot subdivisions on existing publije
roads, and replacing it with the following:

ARTICLE VI. BOUNDARY SURVEYS

Under the provisions of this section, a boundary survey is a drawing based on a metes and bounds
description found in a deed recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds. The drawing is not
based on a subdivision plat, and is not approved by the Planning Commission. Boundary surveys
of lots created before September 1, 1984, may be recorded, provided they are submitted to the
Planning Office for certification that the lot was created by deed prior to this date. The survey
shall contain the following certifications

Certification for Recording. This is to certify that the lot(s) shown on this drawing
was/were not approved by the Greene County Regional Planning Commission, but
was/were created via a metes and bounds description recorded in Plat Book

Page , On

The recording of this drawing does not constitute a representation or warranty
regarding: the lot(s) having an existing subsurface sewage disposal system (SSDS);
the lot(s) being approved for such a SSDS by the Tennessee Department of
Environment and Conservation, Groundwater Protection Office, if one is not
installed; the availability and adequacy of utility services; frontage on and access
from a county or state road; the lots being buildable; or the lot(s) meeting Greene
County zoning, building code, or other applicable regulations.

Greene County Planning Coordinator Date

Certification of metes and bounds descriptive drawing: I hereby certify this drawing is based on
a metes and bounds description recorded in Plat Book Page in the Greene County
Registrar’s Office on

Registered Land Surveyor TN License No. Date



After discussion, a motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Lyle Parton, to remove
Article VI in its entirety, and replace it with Article VI. Boundary Surveys, as recommended by
staff. The motion carried unanimously.

Greene County Subdivision Regulations Revision to Article V. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered approving Greene County Subdivision Regulations to replace Article V.,
Regulations for Review and Approval of Minor Subdivisions with Article V. Time Frame for
Administrative Plat Approval. Staffstated that T.C.A. § 13-3-404(a) required subdivision plats to
be placed on the Planning Commission agenda within thirty (30) days of “filing” (or the next
regular meeting after the 30 day period), and to be approved within sixty (60) days of the meeting.
Overall, the time frame for approval of plats was, roughly, ninety (90) days. The Planning
Commission was informed that there did not appear to be any state regulation concerning the time
frame for approval of administrative plats that were certified by the Planning Coordinator, but not
reviewed by the Planning Commission. Staff recommended that Article V. be eliminated in its
entirety to be replaced with the following:

ARTICLE V. TIME FRAME FOR ADMINISTRATIVE PLAT APPROVAL

Administrative (one- and two-lot minor) subdivisions shall be reviewed and approved in the same
time frame as plats being considered by the Planning Commission, as per T.C.A. 13-3-404(a).

A motion was made by Nick Gunter, seconded by Edwin Remine, to remove Article V in its
entirety, to be replaced as recommended by staff. The motion carried unanimously.

Greene County Subdivision Regulations Revision to Article II. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered revising Article II. C. and Article II. D. 2. of the Greene County
Subdivision Regulations to change the date for subdivision plat submissions. Staff stated the
present Subdivision Regulations required plats to be submitted “at least fifteen (15) days prior to the
Planning Commission meeting”. Because the requirement did not specify business days, the standard
had been enforced as 15 calendar days. In 2024 this resulted in an average of 10.5 days between the
plat submission deadline and the Planning Commission meeting. This time frame did not provided
enough time for plat review by Planning staff, and plat revision by the surveyor, prior to the meeting.
Staff reviewed deadlines of other communitie.s, and recommended that the submission deadline be
changed to the 20™ day of the month before the meeting, as required in Greeneville. This would require

the Subdivision Regulations to be changed as follows: (text to be removed is shown struck thru; text to
be added is in bold):

Article [1.C.1:

1. Atleast-fifteen{15)-days-prior-to-the-meeting-at-which-it-is-to-be-considered—the
subdivider—shall-submitto—the-Seeretary—of the-Greene-County—RegionalPlanning
Commission—or—to—the—Planning Commission—technical-staff four—(4)—copies—of-a



prehiminary—sketeh-plat-of-the—proposed-subdivision-in-order—to-alow the Planning
Commission—teehnical—staff—and —utiliies—heads—time—to—review—and—prepare
reconnmendations-to-the Planning Commission: At least four (4) copies of a plat shall
be submitted to the Planning Office by the 20'"" day of the month prior to the
meeting at which the plat is to be considered.

Article 11.D.2:

hehelay%pmer—ke—ﬂwmee&ng—a{—whneh—rHs—te— be—eenmdered The final plat shall be
submitted to the Greene County Planning Office by the 20" day of the month

prior to the meeting at which the plat is to be considered.

A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve the changes as
proposed by staff. The motion carried unanimously.

Greene County Subdivision Regulations Revision to Article III. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered revising Atticle II1. A. of the Greene County Subdivision Regulations to
clarify that roads are not required to be extended for certain subdivisions located at the end of
existing roads. Staff stated that at the January 14, 2025 meeting, the Planning Commission
approved a plat for property located at the end of a County road. A variance was also granted to
the requirement that the subdivider construct a turn-around or dedicate right-of-way for a turn-
around, at the terminus. The rationale for the variance was that the proposed lots were located at
the end of an existing street, and each lot had adequate frontage without construction of a turn-
around. Staff was directed to prepare a clarification to the Regulations that subdividers were not
required to dedicate right-of-way or construct turn-arounds in such situations.

Staff recommended that Article III of the Subdivision Regulations be revised to add the following:

ARTICLE IIl. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND
MINIMUM STANDARDS OF DESIGN

18. Extension of streets at the terminus of existing roads. When a lot or lots are created at the
terminus of an existing County road, and the road itself is not being extended, the subdivider is not
required to dedicate right-of-way for a turn-around, or to construct a turn-around, whether
temporary or permanent.

A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Lyle Parton, to revise Atrticle III. of the
Subdivision Regulations to add verbiage as recommended by Planning staff. The motion carried
unanimously.

Administrative minor subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.

7



* Survey of a Portion of the Billy Morgan Property, for one lot totaling 0.56 acres, located
adjacent to Morgan Lop in the 22nd civil district.

* Replat of Lot 1 Silas Seaton Property, for four lots totaling 4.53 acres, located at the
intersection of Doyle Davis Road and Cedar Creek Cave Road, in the 18th civil district.

* Survey of a Portion of the Jason Smith Property for one lot totaling 3.85 acres, located
adjacent to Gardner Lane in the 16th civil district.

¢ Survey of a Portion of the Thomas Burkey, Jr. Property, for one lot totaling 2.00 acres,
located adjacent to Old Kentucky Road West in the 25th civil district.

* Don R. Mills Property for two lots totaling 1.68 acres, located adjacent to Tweed Springs
Road in the 3rd civil district.

® Replatof Tracts 3 & 4 of the Kenneth Yearwood Property for two lots totaling, 12.93 acres,
located adjacent to Jim Fox Road in the 24th civil district.

A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Edwin Remine, to accept the list. The motion
carried unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the
monthly department activity report. A motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Lyle
Parton, to accept the report. The motion carried unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Edwin Remine,
to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:35 p.m.

Approved as written: 1 ‘,5-1 Z}?ﬁ?&g; p
Secretary: ngf'ﬁt‘(% d’-’zé-

A
Chairman/Vice Chairman: | i -»(%Vééaq




Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, April 29, 2025, at
8:30 am at the Greene County Courthouse Annex, Conference Room.

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner
Beth Douthat, Vice-Chairman Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Holly Brooks, Secretary Peborah Collins, Building Pept.
Jason A. Smith, Member Kevin-Morrison. County Mayor
Robert Wilhoit, Member Roger-Woolsey County-Attorney

Bill Dabbs, Associate Member
David Crum, Associate Member

Also Present: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the February

25, 2025 meeting. A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Robert Wilhoit, to approve the
minutes as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in _of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Brian Bartlett, Elizabeth Nixson, Kathy
Thompson and Building Commissioner Tim Tweed.

900 Mt Hebron Road. The Board reviewed and considered granting a variance to decrease the rear
yard setback for 900 Mt Hebron Road (tax parcel 111-140.04) from thirty (30) feet to twenty-six and
two tenths (26.2) feet. Tim Tweed stated a building permit had been approved for a residential structure
to be placed on the property. Brian Bartlett, surveyor, stated he was hired to recombine three lots into
two on this survey, and mistakenly identified the rear yard setback requirement as twenty (20) feet,
instead of thirty (30) feet. Believing the rear yard setback was twenty (20) feet, the structure was placed
twenty-six and two-tenths (26.2) feet from the rear property line. Mr. Tweed performed a site visit after
the residential structure was placed on the property and discovered that the residence was placed too
close to the rear property line. He stated that, in absence of the survey, there was a fence line in the back
yard that appeared to mark the rear lot line, and if going by the fence line, the structure would have been
in compliance with the setback requirement. The options were to move the residence or request a
variance of three and eight-tenths (3.8) feet. Mr. Tweed stated that there was not anything that would
be a detriment to the zoning, but it would cause a hardship to move the structure. These reasons were in
state law as reasons for granting a variance. Pictures were shown of the property, where the fence line
location and old stake and fence posts could be seen. Mr. Tweed stated that he didn’t know of any other
solutions than by a variance from the BZA, as the structure was already there, and it was prebuilt when
it came in. It met all the requirements for the county and state. Mrs. Nixon, who owned the property




with her sister Kathy Thompson, spoke with the adjoining neighbor behind the property, Lou Ann
Kilday, and she had no issue with the variance.

After discussion a motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to grant a variance of 3.8
feet on the rear yard setback, currently sitting on the property at 26.2 ft., due to the undue hardship it

would create to move the residence. The motion carried unanimously.

Tweed explained to the owners of the property that the County Attorney, Roger Woolsey, would be
preparing the variance document that would need to be recorded at the Register of Deeds office.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Jason Smith, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to adjourn
the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 8:40 a.m.

Approved as written (date) 6—’5? 7’; a4 5

Secretary H(Q,Q,Lo/ &WJ)‘DW
7
Chairman/Vice Chairman 9/%&'% ém? ,;w/zp




3iva

s2|s N
J3ISSIANNIL ‘INITYO 40 ALNNOD FHL JO WAITO

IUALYNDIS

l_.tcdg

2185-525-¢€Ty

ALRNS T

LLZ)-62EE2P

£0ze-86.-¢cev

9001-8£9-€CV¥

L6LE-6£9-CCY

LELO-BESETY

2ISISYLLE NL ITIAINITAO
QATE ¥3SD 1951

VL6ZLLLLE NL dVO STING
ad 11301 zozk

£8016¥.2.8 NL ITTIAINITUO

_AMH NOSNHOI M3JYANYV 3 ¥£9¢

£v22€ NL ITTAINTTUD

81dV 1S TWHOTH M ELL
21560S¥22€ NL ITIAINITNO
AMH NOSNHOT MJ¥ANV 3 1182
SZS0SYLLE NL ITUASNIIND
IO GOOM3NId 151

L9YESYLLE N1 ITIIAINIIND

1X3 NIVIN N 0Z}

£50Z1.258¢€ NL ITUASSOUO
Y HYNOAYVYO 9t}
199€5¥L2€ N1 3TTAINIIUD
QY AU SIJVNS 5161
€7.L8 NL ITUAINITYO
3INNIAV 39908 001

€eV.L-Cv.1-G98

6168-00E-€2v

122z-62¢-¢Ty

bLZL-62C-ECh

¥.L-TL6-EZY

625¢-2.6-¢2y
£6£9-19¢-€2v
8506-58¢-98.
6916-028-¢CY
. veel-olvreey

§995-£25-€2F

8229¢¥22€ NL ATTAINIIND
__¥ID0¥od4038 222
1S6€€182¢ NL NMOLSRINOW
gy 3SNOY ¥98

£9%59192€ N1 NOL4dV

THL NOYHVINIO S8

€p22€ N1 ITUAINIIND

8 1dV 1S TVHOTI M ELL
281€€¥22€ NL ITTIAINIIUO
80 OHOH 892

§2505¥22¢ N1 3THAINIIIO
10 AOOMANId 151
Z90¥2582¢ NL FTTIASHIOON
- N1 3dI1 €€

T €¥l.€ NL ITIAINITHD

Q¥ 3TI3LNITS L6411
299€€¥2.€ NL ATTIAINIIND
919 1dV LS ¥AWNNS M 80L}

LOSYEPLLE NI ITUAINITHD

1S SIRIVHO L1}
£¥22€ NL ITUAINIIUO
FOVHUIL AVMHSY 02}

NVINTIIMS YU3JINNTC L1
Sva0Y ASAIIS GUVHOR 01
YIANNIA [HOT°6

FUOOW AV NVHLVNOT "8
INOTVIN NNAT VHANVS "2
SONINNAl YNIO .<_>_._O 9
ZO._.m_O._._ IV IIHHOS 'S
VSONIdS3 VIMVIN NSV b
NOLTva VIOYUVW '€
TIVHS1ND Q¥VHORS Q3f T

AId00D HA3ISOr T13INVA 'L

AL3H¥NS INOHd SS3NISNg

$§340av ssaANIsNg

3INOHd INOH

$S34aav IN0H

JNVN

:XQ0d ONINJEAOD FHI J0 ONIIIIW G202 ‘9T ENACL HHI SNI¥Nd OITINd XYVION
JO HOIAAO HHL OL TELOHATH HIdM DONIMOTTIOH HHI LVHL JLVLS J0 XAVLEIOAS HHL
OL XJITYAD AGTYIH I FTASSHANNIL ‘INTATYO JO0 XINNOD HHI J0 MIITO ¥ SY
0ITdNd SHIYVION J40 NOILOATH J0 HLVDIAILIHID



THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR
CHANGES IN REVENUES & EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

WHEREAS, the Greene County School System is amending the 2024-2025 Budget for the General Purpose
School Fund to budget changes in revenues and expenditures of ) -
THEREFORE, the following appropriations will be amended:
REVENUES
Account
Number Description Increase Decrease
TOTAL REVENUES $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES
Account
Number Description [ncrease Decrease
72110 162 (lerical Personnel 10,010
72110 189 Other Salaries & Wages 1,001
72110 201 Social Security 2,000
72110 204 Retirement 3,000
72110 206 Life Insurance 12
72110 207 Medical Insurance 5.750
72110 208 Dental Insurance 75
72110212 Medicare 500
72110 399 Other Contracted Services 1,326
72210 189 Other Salaries & Wages 200,000
72250 350 Internet Connectivity 30,000
72320 162 Clerical Personnel 4,000
71300 207 Medical Insurance 50,000
72310 186 Longevity Pay 85,000
72410 207 Medical [nsurance 50,000
72610 207 Medical Insurance 72,674
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 257,674 | $ 257,674

NOW, THEREFORE, BE T RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular session, this 16th day of
June 2025, a quarum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the funds be appropriated as shown

above.

County Mayor

R o)

County Attobey

Greene County Education Committee

Sponsor

\'!‘»&&
County Clerk

/

e,




THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY SCHOQLS BUDGET FOR
CIIANGES IN REVEUNES & EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

WHEREAS, the Greene County School System is amending the 2024-2025 Budget for the General Purposc
School Fund to budgel changes in rc and expenditures of S 736,524.18
THEREFORE, the folfowing appropriations will be amended:
REVENUES
Account
Number Deseription Increase Decrease
46590 Summer Leaming Camp Grant 623.447.85
46590 Transporiation Grant 113,076.33
TOTAL REVENUES § 736,524.18 | § -
EXPENDITURES
-'Euunt
Number Description Increuse Decrease
141 71100 116 SLC Regular Instruction Progrm - Teach 360,000.00
141 71100 163 SL.C Regular [nstruction Program-_Educational Assistunts 10,000.00
141 71100 189 SLC Regular Instruction Program - Other Salaries & Wages 3,600.00
141 71100201 SLC ___|Regular Ir ion Program - Social Securily 25,000.00
143 71100 204 SLC |Regular Instruction Program - Statc Reti L 31,000.00
141 71100212 SLC Regular Instruction Program - Employer Medicare 6,200.00
141 71100 429 SLC Regular Instruction Program - Instr jonal Supplics & Malerials 139,484.93
141 71100 471 SLC Regular Instruction Program - Soltware 3,000.00
141 72110 105 SLC Altendance - Supervisor/Director . 2,500.00
141 72110 162 SLC Attendance - Clerical 1,250.00
141 72110 201 SLC Attendlance - Social Secunty 232.50
141 72110 204 SLC Auendance - State Retiement 304.61
141 72110 212 SLC A J - Employer Medicare 54.38
141 72120 131 SLC lealih Services - Medical Personnel 9.,600.00
141 72120 201 SLC Health Services - Social Security 595.20
141 72120 204 SLC 1Health Services - State Retirement 1,118.40
141 72120212 SLC Health Services - Employer Medi 139.20 o
141 72410 104 SL.C Office of the Principal - Principals 7.500.00
141 72410 119 SLC OfMice of the Principal - Accountants/Bookkeepers 2,500,00
141 72410 161 SLC Office of the Principal - Seeretary(s) 13,700.00
14] 72410 162 SLC Ofice of the Pringipal - Clerical Personnel 1,250.00
14} 72410201 SLC Office of the Principul - Social Security 1,546,90
141 72410 204 SLC Office of the Principal - State Reti ! 2,509.93
141 72410 212 SLC Office of the Principal - Employer Medicare 361,78
141 72710 105 TRANS |Transporiation - Supervisor/Director 2,000.00
141 72710 146 TRANS |Transportation - Bus Drivers 68,000.00
141 72710 201 TRANS | Transportation - Social Security 4,500.00
141 72710 204 TRANS |Transportation - State R i #,200.00
14172710 212 TRANS | Transportation - Employer Medicare 1,100.00
141 72710 412 TRANS |Transportation - Diesel Fuel 29,276.33
TOTAL EXPENDITURES s 736,524.18 | § -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE (T RESOLVED by the Greene County Leglslative Body meeting in regular session, this 16th day of June 2025, a
quorum belng present and a majority voting In the affirmative, that the funds be appropriated as shown above.

Greana County Educalion Commitlee
County Mayor Sponsor

QGSCA 2. C/ ()«vc%h
County Clerk J ~




A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $13,676 TO THE SHERIFF’'S DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, the Greene County Sheriff's Department (Department) received funding for
a total of thirteen thousand six hundred seventy-six dollars ($13,676) from the sale
of surplus equipment, and;

WHEREAS, the Department requests those funds be allocated to Special Patrols -
vehicles, and;

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in
regular session this 16" day of June 2025, a quorum being present and a majority voting
in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below. -

INCREASE IN REVENUES

44530 Sale of Equipment $ 13,676
Total Increase in Revenues $ 13,676
INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54120 SPECIAL PATROLS
718 Vehicles $ 13,676
Total Increase in Other Public Safety Appropriations $ 13,676
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 13,676

Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

QCI«&J Qo W UL’Q‘“"\

County Clerk ~  County Attorney ’




ARESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2024-2025 BUDGET TO INCREASE APPROPRIATIONS IN
MULTIPLE FUNDS FOR TEMPORARY PERSONNEL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE YOUTH
EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE FIRST TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, Greene County participates in the Youth Employment Program administered by
the First Tennessee Development District (FTDD), which provides funding for part-time
youth workers placed in various departments during the summer months; and

WHEREAS, to properly account for the associated payroll expenses and benefits incurred by
the placement of these workers, certain budget amendments are necessary to reflect the
cost of part-time wages, Social Security, and Medicare contributions in the affected
departments and funds; and

WHEREAS, the wages and benefits for these part-time positions will be reimbursed to the
County through the Youth Employment Program, thereby incurring no net cost to the
County;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN
SESSION THIS 16TH DAY OF JUNE, 2025, THAT: itis necessary to amend the 2024-2025
fiscal year budget to appropriate these expenditures in the following accounts:

SECTION 1.

Total Appropriation Increase - Fund 101 (General Fund): $5,850
The General Fund (Fund 101) is hereby amended as follows:
Increase Appropriations:

Animal Contro 5120):

169 - Part-Time Personnel: $1,500

201 - Social Security: $100

212 - Employer Medicare: $25

Inspection & Regulation (#54510):

169 - Part-Time Personnel: $1,500
201 - Social Security: $100

212 - Employer Medicare: $25



A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2024-2025 BUDGET TO INCREASE APPROPRIATIONS IN
MULTIPLE FUNDS FOR TEMPORARY PERSONNEL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE YOUTH
EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE FIRST TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

Emergency Medical Services (# 0):

169 - Part-Time Personnel: $1,500

201 - Social Security: $100

212 - Employer Medicare: $25

SECTION 2.

Total Appropriation Increase - Fund 116 (Solid Waste): $3,250
The Solid Waste Fund (Fund 116) is hereby amended as follows:

Increase Revenue - Fund 116 (Solid Waste):
44180 - Expenditure Credits: $3,250

Increase Appropriations:

Sanitation Management (#55731):

169 - Part-Time Personnel: $3,000

201 - Social Security: $200

212 - Employer Medicare: $50

SECTION 3.

Total Appropriation Increase - Fund 264 (Employee Insurance): $3,250
The Employee Insurance Fund (Fund 264) is hereby amended as follows:

Increase Revenue - Fund 264 (Employee Insurance):
44180 - Expenditure Credits: $3,250

Increase Appropriations:

Em ee Benefits (#58 i

169 - Part-Time Personnel: $3,000
201 - Social Security: $200

212 - Employer Medicare: $50



ARESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2024-2025 BUDGET TO INCREASE APPROPRIATIONS IN
MULTIPLE FUNDS FOR TEMPORARY PERSONNEL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE YOUTH
EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE FIRST TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

SECTION 4.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all amounts are appropriated solely for the temporary
costs associated with the FTDD Youth Employment Program, and that said amounts shall be
reimbursed through the program, with no local match required.

Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

County Clerk ) County Attorney

l:l.



A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS FROM THE OPIOID ABATEMENT COUNCIL TO
THE GREENE COUNTY ANTI-DRUG COALITION, RECOVERY COURT, AND LAW
ENFORCEMENT ASSISTED DIVERSION (LEAD) PROGRAM FOR AMOUNTS RECEIVED
DURING THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee has established the Opioid Abatement Council, which was
created under the Tennessee Comprehensive Opioid Settlement Agreement (COSA) to
address the opioid epidemic across the state, including its profound impact on counties
such as Greene County; and

WHEREAS, Greene County was allocated a total of $228,363.04 from the funds received
from the Opioid Abatement Council in April 2025; and

WHEREAS, the funds allocated to Greene County are intended to be used for programs
aimed at opioid abatement, addiction recovery, and prevention services, to assist
individuals affected by the opioid crisis, and to support local initiatives focused on
combating opioid addiction; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition, Recovery Court, and Law Enforcement
Assisted Diversion (LEAD) Program have been identified as key local entities in the ongoing
fight against opioid abuse and addiction, and each will receive a portion of the allocated
funds to support their respective programs;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON THIS 16th DAY OF JUNE, 2025, THAT:

1. Allocation of Funds:

- The Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition will receive $128,363.04 from the funds allocated
by the Opioid Abatement Council, to be expended from Account #101-58500-316-849. This
total amount allocated to the Anti-Drug Coalition represents the full sum to be contributed
to them through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026.

- The Greene County Recovery Court will receive $50,000.00, to be expended from
Account #101-58500-316-850.

- The Greene County Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD) Program will receive
$50,000.00, to be expended from Account #101-58500-316-851.

2. Increase to General Fund Account:

- The total amount received from the Opioid Abatement Council, $228,363.04, shall be
deposited into Account #101-46845 within the Greene County General Fund. This account
shall be increased by the full amount received.

3. Total Allocation Summary:

The total amount of funds allocated to Greene County from the Opioid Abatement Council
for the year 2025 is $228,363.04. Of this total allocation, the entire sum of $128,363.04 is

E



A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS FROM THE OPIOID ABATEMENT COUNCIL TO
THE GREENE COUNTY ANTI-DRUG COALITION, RECOVERY COURT, AND LAW
ENFORCEMENT ASSISTED DIVERSION (LEAD) PROGRAM FOR AMOUNTS RECEIVED
DURING THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

designated for the Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition, with the remaining funds of $50,000
each allocated to the Recovery Court and the LEAD Program.

4. Purpose of Funds:

The funds allocated under this resolution are designed to support programs, services, and
initiatives that directly address the opioid epidemic. These funds may be utilized for a
variety of activities, including but not limited to:

- Education and prevention programs focused on opioid misuse and addiction.
- Expansion of treatment programs for individuals affected by opioid use disorders.

- Recovery support services, including peer support, case management, and mental health
counseling.

- Law enforcement efforts related to opioid abuse prevention and intervention strategies.

- Data collection, program evaluation, and other efforts aimed at understanding and
reducing the impacts of opioid addiction.

5. Narrative of the Opioid Abatement Council:

The Tennessee Opioid Abatement Council was established as a result of Tennessee’s
participation in the multi-state opioid settlement, aiming to address the growing opioid
crisis within the state. The Council administers the settlement funds and allocates them to
local governments, organizations, and initiatives that work to mitigate the impacts of opioid
addiction through a combination of prevention, treatment, law enforcement, and
community-based programs.

6. Reporting and Accountability:

The Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition, Recovery Court, and LEAD Program are required
to submit periodic reports to the Greene County Legislative Body detailing how the funds
were expended, the specific programs or services funded, and the impact of these funds on
the community’s opioid abatement efforts.

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
Q G C k_)uf
County Clerk JCounty Attorney




RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY

APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND AMENDING THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025, BUDGET FOR
FUND #116 — SOLID WASTE

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the 2024-2025 Greene County Budget to accurately
reflect revenue from the sale of obsolete equipment and funds received through the Helene
Emergency Assistance Loan (HEAL) for debris removal and disposal; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Solid Waste Department has generated revenue from the sale )
and disposal of obsolete equipment throughout the fiscal year and seeks to offset the cost of Exhdi ( A
new equipment purchases accordingly; and N W'—J

WHEREAS, the County has received a contribution from the Helene Emergency Assistance
Loan (HEAL) to support'debris management efforts, which must be reflected in the Solid
Waste budget under appropriate revenue and expenditure accounts;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN
SESSION THIS 16TH DAY OF JUNE, 2025, THAT:

SECTION 1. The 2024-2025 budget for Fund #116 - Solid Waste is hereby amended to
reflect the following increase in revenue and appropriations:

1. Sale of Equipment Revenue and Offset for Equipment Purchase:

- Increase Revenue Code 44530 - Sale of Equipment by $70,000

- Increase Appropriation in 55710 - Sanitation Management, Account 790 - Other
Equipment by $70,000

Purpose: To offset the cost of new equipment purchased throughout the year using
proceeds from the sale or disposal of obsolete or surplus equipment.

2. HEAL Contribution for Debris Removal:

- Increase Revenue Code 49800 - Transfers In by $360,000

- Increase Appropriation in 55733 - Transfer Stations, Account 310 - Contracts with Other
Public Agencies by $360,000

Purpose: To recognize the receipt of HEAL funds designated for debris removal and

disposal following Hurricane Helene and allocate these funds for contractual services with
public agencies handling transfer station operations.

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
Q (_X1w Q/ K_)C-JU
County Clerk ““County Attorney




DATE ITEM SOLD SOLD AMOUNT
4/25/2025|6,000 GAL IN GROUND TANK $ 1,237.00
4/18/2025|CASH REGISTER $ 44.75
4/18/2025|CASH REGISTER $ 44.25
4/18/2025|3 COMPARTMENT SINK 5 81.97
4/18/2025|CONVECTION DBL OVEN $ 387.00
4/18/2025| COMMERCIAL GAS STOVE $ 200.00
4/18/2025|COFFEE MACHINE 5 14.00
| 4/18/2025|STEAM CABINET 5 50.00
4/18/2025|PREP TABLE W/ SINK $ 230.00
4/18/2025 |ELECTRIC MOTOR $ 146.00
4/18/2025|GENERATOR S 360.00
4/18/2025|TRUCK #4 5 10,100.00
4/15/2025 |WHITE TRUCK BED TOOL BOX $ 16.77
2/28/2025|FORD DR, MIRRORS, FENDER FLARES $ 44.00
2/28/2025|MACK SEAT, WINDOWS & SHROUD $ 20.00
2/28/2025|MISC FRONT LOADER PARTS $ 305.00
2/28/2025|MACK #23 $ 5,443,00
2/28/2025|MISC MACK PARTS S 110.00
2/28/2025|MISC MACK TRUCK PARTS & ACCESS. $ 50.00
2/28/2025 |SPRINGS, LIGHTS & MIRRORS $ 35.00
2/28/2025|DAYTON STEEL RIM 22.5X8.25 $ 156.56
2/28/2025|CAST IRON SINK $ 75.00
2/28/2025|USED COMPRESSOR $ 385.00
2/28/2025|2 USED STEER TIRES $ 125.00
2/28/2025|2- USED CAT DOORS $ 51.00
2/28/2025|CYLINDER PARTS & BUSHINGS $ 56.00
1/24/2025|TRUCK #5 $ 1,600.00
1/24/2025| TRUCK #19 $ 4,100.00
1/24/2025|NEW/OLD STOCK- LIGHTS ASST S 78.00
1/24/2025|2- SIDE TRUCK BED TOOL BOXES $ 111.00
1/24/2025|BUCKET TEETH S 10.00
1/24/2025|NEW/ OLD STOCK BATTERY TERMINALS $ 84.00
1/24/2025|MISC TOOLS/ SUPPLIES S 20.00
1/24/2025|NEW/OLD STOCK EXHAUST CLAMPS 5 102.00
1/24/2025|MISC TIRE PATCHES & TOOLS S 52.00
1/24/2025|NEW/OLD STOCK U-JOINTS, BEARINGS $ 77.00
10/4/2024| TRUCK TOOL BOX 5 225.00
10/4/2024|HYD COUPLERS/ HOSE CLAMPS $ 10.00
10/4/2024|ANTIQUE FLOOR JACK S 37.00
10/4/2024|USED CONTROL BOX $ 10.00
10/4/2024|NEW/OLD STOCK FORD PARTS 5 135.00
10/4/2024|2- NEW/OLD STOCK CLUTCHES $ 155.00
10/4/2024|NEW/OLD STOCK FILTERS $ 77.00
10/4/2024|FUEL/ HYD TANK $ 42.00
10/4/2024|SET OF 8 USED STEEL BUD RIMS $ 160.00
10/4/2024|4- USED MICHELIN TIRES LT245/75R17 $ 235.00
8/31/2024| TRANSFER TRAILER REMOTE CONTROL TARP { $ 210.00
8/30/2024 |4 WAY TIRE WRENCHES $ 16.00
8/30/2024 | MACHINIST CABINET $ 115.00
8/30/2024 | CARAFTSMAN DRILL & 3 SHOP LIGHTS $ 12.00
8/30/2024|CAP NUTS/BOLTS $ 10.00
8/30/2024|AC STUFF/ R12 5 726.00
8/30/2024|3 PROPANE HEATERS S 19.00
8/30/2024|SHOP LIGHTS S 14.00
8/30/2024|GRINDER, BOTTLE JACKS, GREASE GUNS $ 20.00
8/30/2024|TEXA NAVIGATOR SCAN TOOL $ 137.00
8/30/2024|TRUCK #22 $ 5,000.00
8/30/2024|TRUCK #2 S 21,225.00
TOTAL $ 54,591.30

EXHIBIT

A



RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN FACILITIES
AND PROPERTIES ON HAL HENARD ROAD

WHEREAS, Greene County and the Town of Greeneville currently own certain
recreational and training facilities on Hal Henard Road including a tennis complex, a softball
complex and a shooting range; and

WHEREAS, Greene County owns a two-third (2/3) interest in those facilities
mentioned above, while the Town of Greeneville owns the remaining one-third (1/3) interest in
| those facilities; and
| WHEREAS, the tennis and softball complexes are lpcated on approximately 13 acres
‘ of a 91-acre tract identified as Greene County Tax Map 109, Parcel 008.12 (Attachment “A™), |

and the value of this 13-acre portion was used as the local match for grants awarded to
construct each facility; and
WHEREAS, a Notice of Limitation of Use (Attachment “B”) is recorded on the
property, restricting its use to recreational purposes; and ‘
WHEREAS, for several years the Town of Greeneville has provided maintenance for
the tennis complex and softball complex while Greene County has provided for the

maintenance and operation of the shooting complex all on Hal Henard Road; and

Greene County Attorney WHEREAS, previously, the tennis complex had been utilized as the home court and

Roger A. Woolsey

204 N. Cutler Street |
Greeneville, TN 37745 |
Phone: 423-798-1779

Fax:423-798-1781 | the Greene County Board of Education is in the process of renovating two existing tennis

practice facility for both Greeneville High School and Chuckey-Doak High School; however,

courts and building two new tennis courts at Chuckey-Doak High School eliminating the need
for any of the county high schools to use the tennis facility; and
WHEREAS, beginning with the 2025-2026 school year, the tennis complex will be

used only by the Greeneville High School tennis teams for matches and games; and

l G.



WHEREAS, the tennis complex is in dire need of renovations to allow the Greeneville
High School tennis team to continue to use that facility; and

WHEREAS, the softball complex is utilized by the Greeneville Parks and Recreation
Department for its recreational adult softball games and tournaments; and

WHEREAS, to simplify the continued funding and maintenance of all recreational
facilities on Hal Henard Road it would appear to be in the best interest of both the citizens of

‘ Greene County as well as the citizens of the Town of Greeneville for Greene County to convey

its two-third (2/3) interest in the tennis complex and softball complex to the Town of
Greeneville and in return for the Town of Greeneville to convey its one-third (1/3) interest in

|
| the shooting complex to Greene County; and |

WHEREAS, the Notice of Limitation of Use shall remain in effect and unaltered by this
| transfer; and

WHEREAS, previously, a proposal was presented for the renovation of the tennis

courts that were not suitable for use, with the Town of Greeneville, the Greeneville Board of

Education, and Greene County each contributing $75,000.00 for those renovations; and
WHEREAS, in recognition that the tennis courts need renovation it would appear
equitable for Greene County along with the Town of Greeneville and the Greeneville Board of

Education to each allocate a one-time lump sum payment of Seventy-Five Thousand and
Greene County Attorney |
Roger A. Woolsey . .
204 N. Cutler Street No/100 Dollar ($75,000.00) for the necessary tennis court renovations.
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session on the 16" day of June, 2025, a quorum being present and a majority
| voting in the affirmative to authorize the County Mayor to enter into an agreement and execute
documents facilitating the transfer of Greene County’s two-thirds (2/3) interest in the real

property containing the tennis complex and the softball complex on Hal Henard Road to the



Greene County Attorney ‘

Roger A. Woolsey

204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781 |

Town of Greeneville in conjunction with the agreement by the Town of Greeneville to convey

its one-third (1/3) interest in the Greene County Range and Firearms Sports Complex to Greene

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if an agreement can be entered into between
Greene County, the Town of Greeneville, and the Greeneville Board of Education to renovate
the three unplayable tennis courts, the Budget Director for Greene County is authorized and
directed to allocate Seventy-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars (875,000.00) to the Town of
Greeneville (once the renovations are complete and invoices for the work are received) for the

express purpose of providing funding for the renovation of the three tennis courts at the tennis

Budget & Finance

County Mayor

‘@@\wa &

County Mtomey

County Clerk



Attachment “A”




Attachment “B”

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION - Recreation Educational Services Division
LWCF/LPRF/NRTF/RTP

NOTICE OF LIMITATION OF USE
FOR LWCF:

The property identified in the attached general warranty deed has been acquired or
developed with federal financial assistance provided by the National Park Service of the
Department of the Interior in accordance with the Land and Water Conservation Fund
Act of 1965, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 4601-5 et seq. (1970 ed.). Pursuant to a requirement
of that law, this property may not be converted to other than public outdoor recreation
uses (whether by transfer, sale, or in any other manner) without the express written
approval of the Secretary of the Intetior. By law, the Secretary shall approve such
conversion only if he finds it to be in accord with the then existing comprehensive
statewide outdoor recreation plan and only upon such conditions as he or she deems
necessary to assure the substitution of other recreation properties of at least equal fair
market value and of reasonable equivalent usefulness and location.

FOR LPRF:

The property identified in the attached general warranty deed has been acquired or
developed with state financial assistance provided by the Local Parks and Recreation
Fund (LPRF) pursuant to TCA 67-4-409. This property may not be converted to other
than public recreation uses (whether by transfer or any other means) without the express
written approval of the Commissioner of the Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation, the Commissioner of the Department of Agriculture, and the Executive
Director of the Tennessee Wildlife Resources Agency.

THIS WILL SERVE AS A CORRECTIVE NLU TO APPLY TO THE LEGAL
DESCRIPTION ATTACHED HERETO AS “AREA A" FOR ONLY THE 13
ACRES OF THE 2/3 INTEREST IN THE BELOW NOTED DEED.

PER _WARRANTY DEED DATED 2/24/2006, RECORDED IN GREENE
COUNTY REGISTER’S OFFICE IN DEED BOOK NO. 400A PAGE 2365-2367.

FOR NRTF:

The property identified in the attached general warranty deed has been acquired or
developed with state financial assistance provided by the Natural Resources Trust Fund
(NRTF) pursuant to TCA 11-14-304. This property may not be converted to other than
public recreation uses (whether by transfer or any other means) without the express
written approval of the Commissioner of the Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation.

Book 512A Page 915




]

FOR RTP:

If the public property identified in the attached general warranty deed has been acquired
or developed with federal Transportation Equity Act of the 21% Century (TEA-21)
Recreation Trails Program (RTP) assistance through the Federal Highway Administration
(FHwA). In accordance with this act, the state may decide to protect this project under
6()(3) of the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965, as amended, 16 U.S.C.
4601-5 et seq. (1970 ed.). Pursuant to a requirement of that law, this property may not be
converted to other than public outdoor recreation uses (whether by transfer, sale, or in
any other manner) without the express written approval of the Secretary of the Interior.
By law, the Secretary shall approve such conversion only if he finds it to be in accord
with the existing comprehensive statewide outdoor recreation plan and only upon such
conditions as he or she deems necessary (o assure the substitution of other recreation
properties of at least equal fair market value and of reasonable equivalent usefulness and
location. If a project is located on private lands that may include an easement or lease,
the state requires a twenty-five year minimum commitment for public use.

D Sfhogle-.

Authorized Signature {usual]ﬁls_ﬂ:r or Agency Director if State or Federal Application)
Alan Brovles, Mayor

Printed Name and Title
reene County/Town of Greeneville Hal Henard Sports Co X

Applicant
204 N. Cutler Avenue, Sulte 206, Greeneville, TN 37745
Address

(423) 798-1768
Phone Number

Date

—=——

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before thisc;)i day of June, 2012. Alan Broyles is perso
to me or has produced proper identification.

%ﬁ@@iﬁ]@f My Commission Expires: _ m&lﬂaﬁl_&_

County of: Greene
State of Tennessee

Prepared by: First TN Development District, 3211 N. Roan St., Johnson City, TN 37601

Book 512A Page 916




AREA A

SITUATED in the 8th Civil District of Greene County, Tennessee as shown on a drawing
titled “Survey for Greene County, Tennessee”, by Miller Land Surveying, LLC, (Project
#809, file survey.dwg) and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964” in the southeasterly right-of-way
line of Hal Henard Road; said rebar being N53°42°36”E 1643.68” from a “T-bar” in the
intersection of the southeasterly right-of-way line of Hal Henard Road and the
intersection of the northerly right-of-way line of Norfolk-Southern Railway; thence
departing said rebar and continuing coincident with the southeasterly right-of-way line of
Hal Henard Road the following two calls: with the arc of a curve to the left having a
chord bearing and distance of N53°14°25”E 194.54°, a radius of 1928.20° and an arc
length of 194.62° to a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964"; thence N50°20°56”E 585.51" to
a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964 in said right-of-way line; thence said rebar and
continuing across the land of Greene County, Tennessee (Deed Book 400A, Page 2565)
the following eight calls: $36°28°17”E 169.26 to a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964”;
thence N74°20°23”E 15490’ to a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964”; thence
S20°51°55"E 72.48’ to a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964”; thence N73°53°23"E
116.21” to a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964”; thence $35°02’52”E 50.89’ to a rebar
and cap stamped “TN 1964”; thence $35°02°52”E 190.34’ to a rebar and cap stamped
“TN 1964”; thence S51°19°28”W 1139.00° to a rebar and cap stamped “TN 1964”;
thence N23°53°32”W 600.45” to the POINT of BEGINNING containing 13.00 acres
more or less.

Book 512A Page 917

BK/PG: 512A/916-917
12006172

= ﬁe\*—\ - 2S00 == A
Receiveu 0 o o =——— GLENNA BATCH 108300 _

CHECK CASH == 08126/2012 - 09:14:64 AM
FILE O == VALUE 550
MATL Q E= VORIGAGE TAX 0.00
gl Sm— FER TAX [N
wﬂ—@%& E n:.:.':gr;m FEE 15.00
= = Drr Z0o0
2010 Porn Trowm o = o ie
Nonwesn O dm I & = inmsow — 0

STATE OF TENNESSEE, GREENE COUNTY
Joy

REGISTER OF DEEDS




Greene County Attorney
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO
ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT
FOR THE USE AND BENEFIT OF GREENE COUNTY AND ALL
OF ITS INDIVIDUAL COUNTY DEPARTMENTS

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) §12-3-1205 permits any county
to participate in, sponsor, conduct, or administrator cooperative purchasing agreements
upon the approval and consent of the local legislative body; and

WHEREAS, cooperative purchasing agreements allow
local governments to purchase goods and services through local, state and national
cooperative purchasing alliances that have been competitively bid under the same
requirements as required by the laws of the purchasing entity; and

WHEREAS, Tennessee state law was amended at the request of the Tennessee
Association of Public Purchasing and the Tennessee County Commissioners’
Association for all Tennessee counties to take advantage of cooperative purchasing
agreements in effect throughout our state and nation; and

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated, §12-3-1203, states as follows:

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, any municipality, county,
utility district, or other local government of the state may participate in, sponsor,
conduct, or administer a cooperative purchasing agreement for the procurement of any
goods, supplies, services, or equipment with one (1) or more other governmental
entities outside this state, to the extent the laws of the other state permit the joint
exercise of purchasing authority, in accordance with an agreement entered into between
or among the participants; provided, such goods, supplies, services, or equipment were
procured in a manner that constitutes competitive bidding and were advertised,
evaluated, and awarded by a governmental entity and made available for use by other
governmental entities.

(2) A municipality, county, utility district, or other local government of the state
may participate in a master agreement by adopting a resolution accepting the terms of
the master agreement. If a participant in a joint or multi-party agreement is required to
advertise and receive bids, then it will be deemed sufficient for those purposes that the
purchasing entity or the entity that procured the bid complied with its own purchasing
requirements. The participant shall acquire and maintain documentation that the

H.



purchasing entity or entities that procured the bid complied with its own purchasing
requirements.

‘ WHEREAS, Greene County desires to take advantage of the above statute and
reduce the taxpayer burden for duplication of services while still taking advantage of |
‘ the lowest and best pricing under the master cooperative agreements that have been
competitively bid under the same requirements as required by the laws of the
purchasing entity.
| NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 16" day of June, 2025, a quorum being present
and a majority voting in the affirmative, to approve the Cooperative Purchasing |
| Agreement between the National Association of State Procurement Officials (NASPO)
and Greene County, Tennessee to authorize Greene County to use the cooperative
purchasing agreements of NASPO.
; BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Mayor is authorized on behalf
of Greene County to enter into this agreement. Said membership is strictly voluntary,
may be terminated upon thirty days’ written notice and the County incurred no cost for

membership. This resolution shall take effect from and after its passage.

Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey i % l) g
204 N. Cutler Street W é

Greeneville, TN 37745 % LA [ e

Phone: 423-798-1779 Sponsor County Mayor

Fax: 423-798-1781
' L.C )
| County Clerk County Attorney YJ%




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO
ACCEPT A DONATION OF REAL PROPERTY FROM THE
GREENE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of Greene County, Tennessee, (the
"Board") is the duly authorized governing body responsible for the management
and control of the public schools within Greene County, Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, the Board has the power and authority to acquire, hold, and
dispose of real property for educational purposes and the general welfare of the
school district; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that Lot 4 of the Town of Greeneville
& Greene County Board of Education subdivision of property as shown on the
survey of Brian T. Barlett, Registered L.and Surveyor, dated May 24, 2023 and
recorded in Plat Cabinet L, Slide 402 in the Register of Deeds Office for Greene
County, Tennessee, is no longer necessary for the Board's educational or
operational needs; and

WHEREAS, the Board by resolution has authorized and approved the
donation of Lot 4 of the Town of Greeneville & Greene County Board of
Education subdivision of property as shown on the survey of Brian T. Barlett,
Registered Land Surveyor, dated May 24, 2023 and recorded in Plat Cabinet L,
Slide 402 in the Register of Deeds Office for Greene County, Tennessee to the
Greene County Government for the purpose of a buffer for the adjacent firing
range and such other uses as the County may find for the property; and

WHEREAS, with sincere appreciation for the Greene County Board of
Education’s gracious act, it would appear that it would be in the manifestly best
interest of the citizens of Greene County to accept the donation and transfer of
property which would provide an additional buffer for the firing range as well as
other possible uses by the County for this property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Greene County
Legislative Body meeting in regular session on the 16" day of June, 2025, a
quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative to accept the
donation and transfer of property identified as Lot 4 of the Town of Greeneville &
Greene County Board of Education subdivision of property as shown on the
survey of Brian T. Barlett, Registered Land Surveyor, dated May 24, 2023 and
recorded in Plat Cabinet L, Slide 402 in the Register of Deeds Office for Greene

County, Tennessee.
I Page 1 of 2




Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the County Mayor is authorized and
directed to take such appropriate action as is necessary to effectuate the donation
of the property to Greene County Government, and to take all actions necessary to
complete the transfer, including, but not limited to recording the deed and taking
possession of the property.

Greene County Board of Education
Sponsor County Mayor

County Clerk County Aluérney

Page 2 of 2



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY FIXING
THE TAX LEVY IN GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2025

SECTION 1. BE IT RESOLVED that the Greene County Commissioners of
Greene County, Tennessee, assembled in regular session on this 16t day of June, 2025,
acknowledge that the combined certified property tax rate for Greene County Tennessee for
the year beginning July 1, 2025, shall be $1.6500 for residents outside of the Town of
Greeneville and $1.6400 for residents inside the Town of Greeneville, on each $100.00 of
taxable property, which is to provide revenue for each of the following funds and otherwise
conform to the following levies:

FUND RATE

General $0.8500
General-Purpose School Capital Projects 0.0900
General-Purpose School 0.3900
General Debt Service 0.1000
Self-Insurance 0.0400
Solid Waste 0.1300
General Capital Projects 0.0400
Total Inside $1.6400
Education Debt Service $0.0100
Total Outside $1.6500

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby levied a gross
receipts tax as provided by law. The proceeds of the gross receipts tax herein levied shall
accrue to the Education Debt Service Fund.

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the additional $.01 added to
the General-Purpose School Capital Projects from fiscal year 2019 is restricted for costs
associated with the construction of new schools.

SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all resolutions of the Board of
Commissioners of Greene County, Tennessee, which are in conflict with this resolution are
hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Wheel Tax shall be divided

as follows:
FUND RATE
General $ 7.00
General - VFD 5.00
Highway 43.00
Total $55.00



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY FIXING
THE TAX LEVY IN GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2025

SECTION 5. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect from and
after its passage, the public welfare requiring it. This resolution shall be spread upon the
minutes of the Board of County Commissioners.

Passed this 16! day of June, 2025.

Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor
3 3 )
F\ G Q\ (/ (_Ju’(/\-»\

County Clerk - County Attorney




A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE VARIOUS FUNDS,
DEPARTMENTS, INSTITUTIONS, OFFICES AND AGENCIES OF GREENE COUNTY,
TENNESSEE, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2025 AND ENDING JUNE
30, 2026

SECTION 1. BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Greene County,
Tennessee, assembled in a regular session on the 16th day of June, 2025 that the amounts
hereafter set out are hereby appropriated for the purpose of meeting the expenses of the
various funds, departments, institutions, offices and agencies of Greene County, Tennessee,
for the capital outlay, and for meeting the payment of principal and interest on the County’s
debt maturing during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2026,
according to the following schedule.

General Fund
General Government

County Commission 3 192,214
County Mayor 260,565
Personnel Department 220,045
County Attorney 367,634
Election Commission 579,755
Register of Deeds 445 874
Codes Compliance 36,250
GIS System 25,928
County Buildings 1,225,404
Finance

Accounting and Budgeting 598,785
Purchasing 172,595
Property Assessor 881,617
Reappraisal Program 38,951
County Trustee 451,786
County Clerk 797,677
Administration of Justice

Circuit Court 1,172,815
General Sessions Court 415,547
Sessions Drug Court 183,459
Chancery Court 645,077
Juvenile Court 336,383
District Attorney General 2,500
Other Administration of Justice 9,139
Court Room Security 404,224



Public Safety
Sheriff's Department

Special Patrols

Sexual Offender Registry

Jail

Juvenile Services

Emergency Management Agency
Rescue Squad

Disaster Relief (911)

Hazardous Material Team
Inspection & Regulation

County Coroner/Medical Examiner
Other Public Safety

Public Health & Welfare

Local Health Center

Rabies & Animal Control
Emergency Medical Services
Alcohol and Drug Program

Local Health Services-DGA Grant
Appropriation to State

Waste Pickup

Other Public Health and Welfare
Social, Cultural, and Recreational
Libraries

Parks & Fair Boards
Agriculture and Natural Resources

Agricultural Extension Service
Forest Service

Soil Conservation

Other General Government
Tourism

Industrial Development
Veteran’'s Services

Other Charges

Contributions to Other Agencies
Miscellaneous

Other Uses

Transfers Out

Total General Fund

7,177,844
133,345
10,500
7,746,694
200,000
243,198
15,000
750,000
13,500
617,944
248,100
2,031,608

664,302
498,750
5,799,962
12,500
602,542
82,000
181,347

138,000
187,580

268,618
1,500
133,425

225,000
225,000
139,718
42,360
460,610
3,789,000

42,104,171




Solid Waste Sanitation Fund:
Sanitation Management
Waste Pickup
Convenience Centers
Transfer Stations

Total Solid Waste Sanitation Fund

Worker's Compensation & Liability Fund
Risk Management
Transfer Out
Total Worker's Compensation & Liability Fund

Drug Control Fund
Drug Enforcement
Total Drug Control Fund

ARP Fund
ARP Act Grant #1
Total ARP Fund

Highway/Public Works Fund
Administration
Highway & Bridge Maintenance
Operation & Maintenance of Equip.
Asphalt Plant Operations
Other Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Highway Fund

General Debt Service Fund
General Government - Principal
General Government - Interest
General Government - Other
Total General Debt Service Fund

Education Debt Service Fund

Education Debt Service
Total Education Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects
Total Education Debt Service Fund

Economic Development Fund

Social, Cultural and Recreational Programs
Total Economic Development Fund

1,325,146
1,054,698

639,552
1,950,481

4,969,877

2,219,000
150,000

2,369,000

159,000

@ |

159,000

8,000,000

R R <2

8,000,000

321,437
8,475,559
1,384,204
2,163,532

108,770

475,000

12,928,502

325,000
230,000
105,000

660,000

3,790,000

o8P

3,790,000

815,000

&1 |en

815,000

230,000

€A |n

230,000




General Purpose School Fund
Regular Instruction Program
Special Education Program
Vocational Education Program
Attendance
Health Services
Other Student Support
Regular Instruction Program
Special Education Program
Vocational Education Program
Technology
Board of Education
Office of the Director
Office of the Principal
Fiscal Services
Operation of Plant
Maintenance of Plant
Transportation
Central and Other
Community Services
Early Childhood Education
Regular Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Total General Purpose School Fund

Central Cafeteria Fund
Food Service
Total Central Cafeteria Fund

General Purpose School Capital Projects Fund
Education Capital Projects
Total General Purpose School Capital Projects Fund

32,622,007
4,530,330
2,847,982

196,866
859,304
1,675,328
2,645,987
985,612
126,310
219,700
1,219,913
466,836
4,381,189
628,218
4,075,149
1,062,937
3,896,153
116,930
1,602,525
1,519,143
5,000

65,683,421

4,478,418

& h

4478418

2,042,650

LR

2,042,650




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the budget for the Capital Projects Fund - #171 shall
include the following projects: renovation of the former Takoma Hospital facility for an
amount up to $2.75 million, implementation of a county vehicle replacement system that will
annually include an amount not to exceed $175,000, and that various projects exceeding
$25,000 will require the approval of the County Commission.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the budget for the American Relief Plan Fund shall
include the following projects upon passage for the FYE June 30, 2026 budget: the
continuation of the TDEC ARP Water Project, the extension of the Greene County Water
Utility Loan Assistance Program originated in FYE 2025 of $1,500,000, the approved Site
Development Grant for Snapps Ferry, the approved grant of up to $5,000,000 from the State
Department of Health for the Construction of a new Health Department in Greene County
which will require a 10% match, the approved DSEW Grant of $1,000,000 that includes a
10% match, and the approved Connected Communities Facility Grant (CCF) of up to
$2,000,000 with a 10% match.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the budget for the School Federal Projects Fund shall be
the budgets approved for separate projects within the fund by the Greene County Board of
Education.

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that there are also hereby appropriated certain
portions of the commissions and fees for collecting taxes and licenses and for administering
other funds which the Trustee, County Clerk, Circuit Court Clerk, Clerk and Master, Register
of Deeds, and the Sheriff and their officially authorized deputies and assistants may
severally be entitled to receive under State Laws heretofore or hereafter enacted.
Expenditures out of commissions, and/or fees collected by the Trustee, County Clerk, Circuit
Court Clerk, Clerk and Master, Register and the Sheriff may be made for such purposes and
in such amounts as may be authorized by existing law or by valid order of any court having
power to make such appropriations. Any excess commissions and/or fees coliected over
and above the expenditures duly and conclusively authorized shall be paid over to the
Trustee and converted into the General Fund as provided by law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if any fee officials, as enumerated in Section 8-22-101,
T.C.A., operate under provisions of Section 8-22-104, T.C.A., provisions of the preceding
paragraph shall not apply to those particular officials.



1

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any amendment to the budget shall be
approved as provided in Section 5-9-407, T.C.A. One copy of each amendment shall be
filed with the County Clerk, one copy with the Chairman of the Budget Committee, and one
copy with each divisional or departmental head concerned. The reason(s) for each transfer
shall be clearly stated; however, this section shall in no case whatsoever be construed as
authorizing transfer from one fund to another, but shall apply solely to transfers within a
certain fund.

SECTION 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any appropriations made by this resolution,
which cover the same purpose for which a specific appropriation is made by statute is made
in lieu of but not in addition to said statutory appropriation. The salary, wages, or
remuneration of each officer, employee, or agent of the County shall not be in excess of the
amounts authorized by existing law or as set forth in the estimate of expenditures which
accompanies this resolution. Provided, however, that appropriations for such salaries,
wages or other remuneration hereby authorized shall in no case be construed as permitting
expenditures for an office, agency, institution, division or department of the County in excess
of the appropriation made herein for such office, agency, institution, division or department of
the County. Such appropriation shall constitute the limit to the expenditures of any office,
agency, institution, division or department for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026. The
aggregate expenditures for any item of appropriation shall in no instance be more than the
amount herein appropriated for such item.

SECTION 5. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any resolution which may hereafter be
presented to the Board of County Commissioners providing for appropriations in addition to
those made by this Budget Appropriation Resolution shall specifically provide sufficient
revenue or other funds, actually to be provided during the fiscal year in which the
expenditure is to be made, to meet such additional appropriation. Said appropriating
resolution shall be submitted to and approved by the State Director of Local Finance after its
adoption as provided by Section 9-21-403, Tennessee Code Annotated.




SECTION 6. BE IT FURTHER REOLVED, that the County Mayor and County Clerk are
hereby authorized to borrow money on revenue anticipation notes, provided such notes are
first approved by the Director of Local Finance, to pay for the expenses herein authorized
until the taxes and other revenue for the fiscal year 2025-2026 have been collected. The
proceeds of loans for each individual fund shall not exceed 60% of the appropriations of
each individual fund and shall be used only to pay the expenses and other requirements of
the fund for which the loan is made. The loan shall be paid out of revenue from the fund for
which money is borrowed. The notes evidencing the loans authorized under this section
shall be issued under the applicable sections of Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code
Annotated. Said notes shall be signed by the County Mayor and countersigned by the
County Clerk and shall mature and be paid in full without renewal no later than June 30,
2026.

SECTION 7. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the delinquent county property taxes for
the year 2024 and prior years and the interest and penalty thereon collected during the year
ending June 30, 2026 shall be apportioned to the various County funds according to the
subdivision of the tax levy for the year 2024. The Clerk and Master and the Trustee are
hereby authorized and directed to make such apportionment accordingly.

SECTION 8. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all unencumbered balances of
appropriations remaining at the end of the fiscal year shall lapse, and be of no further effect
at the end of the fiscal year at June 30, 2026.

SECTION 9. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any resolution or part of a resolution which
has heretofore been passed by the Board of County Commissioners, which is in conflict with
any provision in this resolution be and the same is hereby repealed.

SECTION 10. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect from and
after its passage and its provisions shall be in force from and after July 1, 2025. This
resolution shall be spread upon the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners.

Passed this 16™ day of June, 2025.

D AN OVL) ok

County Mayor _County Attorney

Budget & Finance Committee

County Court Clerk Sponsors



A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING
JULY 1, 2025, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109, Tennessee Code Annotated, authorizes the
Greene County Legislative Body to make appropriations to various nonprofit
organizations; and

WHEREAS the Greene County Legislative Body recognizes the various
nonprofit organizations located in Greene County have great need of funds to carry on
their nonprofit charitable work.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County
Commissioners of Greene County, on this the 16" day of June 2025:

SECTION 1. That one million eight hundred ten thousand one hundred ten dollars
($1,810,110) be appropriated to nonprofit organizations Greene County as reflected

below.

No. Agency Amount
101-54430-316 Greene County 911 $ 750,000
101-54420-316 Greeneville Rescue Squad 15,000
101-56500-316 Greeneville/Greene County Library 138,000
101-57300-316 Forestry Division 1,500
101-58110-316 Greene County Partnership - Tourism 225,000
101-58110-316 Greene County Partnership - Economic Development 225,000
101-58500-316 Greeneville Rehabilitation Center 16,650
101-58500-316 Roby Fitzgerald Adult Center 30,000
101-58500-316 Upper East TN Human Development Agency 5,000
101-58500-316 Frontier Health 15,000
101-58500-316 Keep Greene Beautiful 3,000
101-58500-316 First TN Human Resources 11,760
101-58500-316 Child Advocacy Center 1,200
101-58500-316 Second Harvest Food Bank 28,000
101-58500-316 Greeneville Greene County Food Bank 10,000
101-58500-316 Greene County Association of Volunteer Fire Departments 325,000
101-58500-316 Greene County Imagination Library 3,000
101-58500-316 Greene County Rural Resources 2,000
101-58500-316 Greene County Agribusiness Committee 5,000

$ 1,810,110

L.



A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING

JULY 1, 2025, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

SECTION 2. That up to all amounts collected from the Hotel/Motel Tax for Fund #1389
be appropriated to nonprofit organizations Greene County based on the amount of
revenue collected and the organizations percentage of expenditure request as reflected
below (subject to a mid-year review).

Up To

No. Agency Percentage Amount
189-91150-316 Central Ballet Theatre 1.4% § 2,000
189-91150-316  Greeneville/Greene County History Museum 71% 10,000
189-91150-316 Greeneville Parks & Recreation 28.4% 40,000
189-91150-316  Niswonger Performing Arts Center 32.0% 45,000
189-91150-316 Dickson-Williams Historical Association 71% 10,000
189-91150-316 Boys & Girls Club 106% 15,000
189-91150-316  Greene County Partnership - NAIA Womens Beach Volleyball Championship” 71% 10,000
189-91150-316 Greene County Partnership - TDOT Directional Signs 0.6% 800
189-91150-316  Greene County Special Olympics 3.6% 5,000
189-91150-316  Greeneville/Greene County Ladies Classic 2.1% 3,000

100.0% $ 140,800

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all appropriations enumerated above are
subject to the following conditions:

1. That the nonprofit organizations to which funds are appropriated shall file with

the County Clerk and the disbursing officials a copy of any annual report of its
business affairs and transactions and the proposed use of the county’s funds
in accordance with rules promulgated by the Comptroller of the Treasury,
Chapter 0380-2-7. Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by the
chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with
Section 5-9-1090. Tennessee Code Annotated.

. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable
organizations in furtherance of their nonprofit charitable purposes benefiting
the general welfare of the residents of Greene County.

. That it is the expressed interest of the county commission of Greene County
in providing these funds to the above named nonprofit charitable
organizations to be fully in compliance with Chapter 0380-2-7 of the Rules of
the Comptroller of the Treasury, and Section 5-9-109, Tennessee Code
Annotated, and any and all other laws which may apply to county



A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING
JULY 1, 2025, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

appropriations to nonprofit organizations and so this appropriation is made
subject to compliance with any and all of these laws and regulations.

4. The amounts allocated for the Greene County Partnership for Tourism and
Economic Development are to be equal to the amount collected from
Hotel/Motel tax in the General Fund (less commissions).

5. The amount allocated to the Volunteer Fire Department comes from the
revenue generated from $5 of the Wheel Tax plus any difference in the
request and Wheel Tax funding for the additional insurance premium from the
restructuring of Greene County’s volunteer emergency organizations.

6. The amounts allocated to fund #189 will be disbursed on a quarterly basis
based on the Hotel/Motel collections for the fund. The revenue collected in
fund #189 will be appropriated based on the percentage of expenditures
made during FYE 2019 and so long as they fall into the Recreation or Arts &
Entertainment categories.

7. The vendors in fund #189 will also receive the “Up To” amount provided there
are sufficient Hotel/Motel Tax collections to support that amount. If receipts go
above those projections, the Greene County Commission reserves the right to
re-allocate any funds collected in addition to the total “Up To” estimate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect
immediately upon passage. This resolution shall be spread upon the minutes of the
Board of County Commissioners.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County
Legislative Body meeting on the 16" day of June 2025, a quorum being present and a
majority voting in the affirmative do hereby approve the above stated contributions to
other agencies.

Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

T%\BCZ[&J C (_,) U_LQ

County Clerk ' ) County Attorney >




